
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

TOWER HAMLETS 
COUNCIL 

__________________________________ 
 

Wednesday, 15 July 2009 at 7.30 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
Council Chamber, 1st Floor, 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 

5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
John S Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4204, E-mail:johns.williams@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 



 
Chief Executive’s 
Directorate 
 
Democratic Services 
Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 
Tel 020 7364 4204 
Fax 020 7364 3232 
 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets to be held in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, 
MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG at 7.30 p.m. on 
WEDNESDAY, 15 JULY 2009  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kevan Collins 
Deputy Chief Executive 
 

 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL  
 

WEDNESDAY, 15 JULY 2009 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting Members from 

voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See 
attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

3. MINUTES  
 

3 - 24 

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the unrestricted 
minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 20th May 2009 
 

 

4. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

 

5. TO RECEIVE ANY DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS  
 

25 - 28 

 The deputations and petitions that have been received for presentation 
to the meeting are set out in agenda item 5. 
 

 

6. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC  

 

29 - 32 

 (Maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 
 
The questions which have been received are set out in agenda item 6. 
 

 

7. TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE 
COUNCIL  

 

33 - 40 

 (Maximum of 30 minutes allowed) 
 
The questions which have been received are set out in agenda item 7. 
 

 



 
 

8. REPORTS FROM THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COUNCIL'S 
COMMITTEES  

 

 

8 .1 Report of the Cabinet of 6th May 2009: Joint Drinking Control Zone 
with LB Hackney for Arnold Circus and Shoreditch   

 
41 - 52 

 Report and recommendations of the Cabinet attached. 
 

 
8 .2 Report of the Cabinet of 10th June 2009:  Strategic Plan 2009/10 - 

2011/12:  Year 1 Action Plan and Outline Plan   
 

53 - 136 

 Report and recommendations of the Cabinet attached. 
 

 

9. TO RECEIVE REPORTS AND QUESTIONS ON JOINT 
ARRANGEMENTS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS (IF 
ANY)  

 

 

10. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

10 .1 Appointment of Interim Chief Executive   
 

137 - 138 
 Report of the Monitoring Officer attached. 

 
 

10 .2 Executive Decisions taken under Special Urgency Provisions   
 

139 - 142 
 Report of the Leader of the Council attached for information. 

 
 

11. TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF 
THE COUNCIL  

 

143 - 156 

 The motions submitted by Members of the Council for consideration at 
the meeting are set out in agenda item 11. 
 

 

 
 



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\9\AI00020934\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\3\9\AI00020934\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 20 MAY 2009 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 
CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Helal Abbas 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed 
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor M. Shahid Ali 
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Lutfa Begum 
Councillor Philip Briscoe 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Rupert Eckhardt 
Councillor Marc Francis 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Fazlul Haque 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque 
Councillor Carli Harper-Penman 
Councillor Clair Hawkins 
Councillor Alexander Heslop 
Councillor Shirley Houghton 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
 

Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Councillor Waiseul Islam 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones 
Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan 
Councillor Rania Khan 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid 
Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique 
Councillor A A Sardar 
Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Councillor David Snowdon 
Councillor Bill Turner 
Councillor Dulal Uddin 
Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Councillor Salim Ullah 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman 
 

 
The meeting opened at 7.38 p.m. 
 

The Mayor, Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique, in the chair  
 
 
MAYOR’S OPENING ADDRESS 
 
The Mayor welcomed everyone to the annual meeting of the Council. 
 
The Mayor, Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique, addressed the meeting 
about his year of office.  He said that he had had a wonderful year and would 
have many memories to take with him from his experiences and thanked 
Members and Officers for their support.  He had carried out almost 500 civic 
engagements, including Citizenship Ceremonies, and had the pleasure of 
meeting members of the Royal Family.  His biggest pleasure had been 
meeting the wonderful people of the borough as he had been warmly 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

welcomed by the young and the old and people from different cultures and 
faiths.  During Cllr Salique’s year of office, he had raised £43,000 between his 
two charities, the APASENTH and Child Concern Consortium. 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman paid tribute to Cllr Salique on behalf of the Council 
and Councillors Peter Golds, Abjol Miah, Stephanie Eaton and Ahmed 
Hussain also addressed the meeting about his year in office and echoed 
Councillor Rahman’s comments. 
 
 

1. TO ELECT A MAYOR OF THE BOROUGH TO HOLD OFFICE UNTIL THE 
ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL IN 2010  
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, SECONDED by Councillor Marc 
Francis and  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer be elected as Mayor until the Annual 
Meeting of the Council in 2010. 
 
Councillors Lutfur Rahman and Joshua Peck then came forward to witness 
the Mayor signing the statutory declaration of acceptance of office. 
 

 
The Mayor, Councillor Ahmed Omer in the Chair 

 
The incoming Mayor then addressed the meeting.  He paid tribute to 
Councillor Salique and thanked Members of the Council for placing their trust 
in him and giving him the opportunity to serve as Mayor.   
 
Councillor Omer expressed great pride in becoming the 45th Mayor of the 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets and the first to come from the Somali 
community which had played a significant role in the borough for well over 
100 years.  Councillor Omer drew inspiration from that heritage and hoped 
that his appointment as Mayor would inspire young people from all parts of 
the community to become actively involved in the civic life of the borough.   
 
During his term of office the Mayor informed the Council that he would be 
raising funds for two local charities - St Margaret’s House Settlement and the 
Bangladeshi Parents and Carers’ Association – both of which played a key 
role in supporting and helping citizens young and old, and those suffering 
disadvantage, to play their full role in society. 
 
Councillors Peter Golds, Stephanie Eaton, Abjol Miah and Ahmed Hussain 
addressed the meeting to congratulate Councillor Omer on his appointment. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

2. TO ELECT A DEPUTY MAYOR OF THE BOROUGH TO HOLD OFFICE 
UNTIL THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL IN 2010  
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, SECONDED by Councillor 
Joshua Peck and  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Councillor Lutfa Begum be elected as the Deputy Mayor until the Annual 
Meeting of the Council in 2010. 
 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anwara Ali, Shiria 
Khatun, Abdul Matin, Fozol Miah, Harun Miah, Abdul Munim and Tim 
O’Flaherty. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the apologies be noted. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
 

5. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 22nd April 2009 be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record of the proceedings and the Mayor 
be authorised to sign them accordingly. 
 
 

6. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR OR THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE  
 
No announcements were made. 
 
 

7. TO ELECT THE LEADER AND DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
 
 
(a) Election of the Leader of the Council 
 
Councillor Joshua Peck MOVED, Councillor Carli Harper-Penman 
SECONDED and it was  
 

Page 5



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

RESOLVED 
 
That Councillor Lutfur Rahman be elected as the Leader of the Council, until 
the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2010. 
 
 
(b) Election of the Deputy Leader of the Council  
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman MOVED, Councillor Rachael Saunders 
SECONDED and it was  
 
RESOLVED  
 
That Councillor Joshua Peck be elected as the Deputy Leader of the Council, 
until the Annual Meeting of the Council in 2010. 
 

8. TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE CABINET  
 
The Chief Executive referred Members to the tabled report which set out the 
nominations received for Cabinet positions for the municipal year 2009/2010 
together with proposed portfolios. 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, SECONDED by Councillor 
Joshua Peck and 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Cabinet to comprise of 10 Members and those Members with the 
allocated portfolios be appointed to serve as Cabinet Members until the 
Annual Meeting of the Council in 2010 as set out below: 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman  - Leader of the Council 
Councillor Joshua Peck - Deputy Leader of the Council 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed - Lead Member, Resources & Performance 
Councillor Abdul Asad - Lead Member, Children’s Services 
Councillor Abdal Ullah - Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed - Lead Member, Culture and Leisure 
Councillor Marc Francis - Lead Member, Housing & Development 
Councillor Oliur Rahman - Lead Member, Employment & Skills 
Councillor Anwara Ali - Lead Member, Health & Wellbeing 
Councillor Rania Khan - Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation 

& Community Partnerships 
 
In moving and seconding the above resolution, Councillors Lutfur Rahman 
and Joshua Peck each paid tribute to the contributions of Councillors Alibor 
Choudhury, Clair Hawkins and Sirajul Islam, who had served as members of 
the Cabinet during 2008/09.  
 
 
 

Page 6



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

9. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS TO THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE  
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, SECONDED by Councillor 
Joshua Peck and  
 
RESOLVED, with 35 Members voting in favour and none voting against:- 
 
That the following persons be appointed as Independent Members of the 
Standards Committee, each to serve a three year term of office expiring on 
20th May 2012, subject to annual confirmation by the Council:- 
 

- Ms. Salina Bagum; 
- Mr. Richard Hopkins; 
- Mr. Barry Lowe; and 
- Mr. Matthew Rowe 
 

 
10. REVIEW OF PROPORTIONALITY AND ESTABLISHMENT OF 

COMMITTEES/PANELS OF THE COUNCIL  
 
The Chief Executive referred Members to the report included in the agenda 
papers which set out the review of proportionality and recommended the 
allocation of places on the Council’s committees and panels. 
  
Councillor Lutfur Rahman MOVED and Councillor Joshua Peck SECONDED 
an AMENDMENT to the recommendations in the report as follows:-  
 

(a) “That the allocation of seats on the Strategic Development       
Committee be Labour Group 6, Conservative Group 1, Respect       
Group 1 and Liberal Democrat Group 1.  

 
(b)   That the allocation of seats on the Pensions Committee be Labour  
       Group 5, Conservative Group 2, Respect Group 1, Liberal      
       Democrat Group 1.” 

 
Councillor Peter Golds then MOVED and Councillor Tim Archer SECONDED 
“That the proportionality be agreed as set out in 3.3 of the report”. 
 
The Service Head Democratic Services advised the Council that the allocation 
of committee places recommended in the report, and that proposed in the 
amendment moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, were both in compliance 
with the proportionality rules and the Council could therefore decide between 
them.   Amendments must be taken in the order in which they were moved 
and each must be disposed of before any further amendment was considered.  
Therefore Councillor Lutfur Rahman’s amendment would be voted on first and 
if this was lost then Councillor Peter Golds’ amendment would be put.   
 
The amendment moved by Councillor Lutfur Rahman was then put to the vote 
and was AGREED.  
 

Page 7



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

The substantive recommendations as amended were then put to the vote and 
were AGREED.  Accordingly it was  
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. That the review of proportionality be noted; 
 
2. That the Committees and Panels be established for the Municipal Year 

2009/2010 and places be allocated on those Committees and Panels 
to the political groups as set out in the table below:- 
 
  Committees/panels covered by the requirement for proportionality: 
   

Committee 
 

Total Labour Conserv
-ative 

Respect Liberal 
Democrat 

Development 9 6 1 1 1 
Strategic Development 9 6 1 1 1 
General Purposes 7 5 1 1 - 
Human Resources 7 5 1 1 - 
Appeals 9 6 1 1 1 
Pensions  9 5 2 1 1 
Audit  7 4 1 1 1 
Overview & Scrutiny 
(plus 5 co-optees)  

9 6 1 1 1 
Health Scrutiny Panel 7 4 1 1 1 
Licensing 15 9 3 2 1 

 
Committee not covered by the requirement for proportionality: 
 

Committee 
 

Total Labour Conser-
vative 

Respect Liberal 
Democrat 

Standards 
(plus 9 independent 
members) 
 

5 2 1 1 1 

 
 

11. APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES/PANELS OF THE COUNCIL  
 
The Chief Executive referred Members to the tabled report which informed the 
Council of the nominations received from the political groups on the Council 
for membership of Committees/Panels of the Authority for the municipal year 
2009/2010.  The report contained a typographical error – on the final page, 
‘Deputy Leader of the Respect Group’ should read ‘Councillor Dulal Uddin’. 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, SECONDED by Councillor 
Joshua Peck and  
 
RESOLVED  
 

Page 8



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

That Members and Deputies be appointed to the Committees and Panels of 
the Council for the Municipal Year 2009/10 as set out in the tabled schedule 
appended to the minutes. 
 
 

12. APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO LONDON COUNCILS 
COMMITTEES AND FORUMS  
 
The meeting considered a report which requested the Council to make 
nominations to a number of London Council Member bodies.  An addendum 
report was tabled setting out the nominations received. 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Lutfur Rahman, SECONDED by Councillor 
Joshua Peck and  
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the Members and Deputies be nominated to the various bodies of 
London Councils as set out below: 
 
Leaders Committee (s101 Joint Committee) 
& London Council’s Limited 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Deputy) 
 

Transport and Environment Committee 
(Associated Joint Committee) 

Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 
 

Grants Committee  
(Associated Joint Committee) 

Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
 
 

Greater London Provincial Council 
 

(GLPC Employers’ Side now comprises 
15 members nominated from the 
combined membership of the Leaders’ 
Committee and the Greater London 
Employment Forum) 
 

Health and Adult Services Forum Councillor Dr. Anwara Ali 
Councillor Ahmed Omer (Deputy) 
 

Housing Forum  Councillor Marc Francis 
Councillor Shiria Khatun  (Deputy) 
 

Culture, Tourism and 2012 Forum  Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed 
Councillor Waiseul Islam  (Deputy) 
 

Crime and Public Protection Forum  Councillor Abdal Ullah 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman (Deputy) 
 

Economic Development Forum Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Councillor Rania Khan (Deputy) 
 

Children and Young People Forum  Councillor Abdal Asad 
Councillor Bill Turner  (Deputy) 
 

Page 9



COUNCIL, 20/05/2009 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

Greater London Employment Forum  Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Deputy) 
 

BME Councillors’ Network Open to all BM&E councillors. 
 

Women Councillors’ Network Open to all women councillors. 
 

London Irish Councillors’ Network A forum for all London councillors of Irish 
origin or background. 
 

Lead Members These are not nominated directly by 
boroughs 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.45 p.m.  
 
 
 
 

Councillor Ahmed Omer  
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 10



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

9 

AP
PE

ND
IX

 A
 - L

ON
DO

N 
BO

RO
UG

H 
OF

 TO
WE

R 
HA

ML
ET

S 
 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 M
EM

BE
RS

HI
P 

20
09

-20
10

 
 

AN
NU

AL
 C

OU
NC

IL 
ME

ET
IN

G 
– 2

0TH
 M

AY
 20

09
 

  
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 

(N
ine

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 
La

bo
ur

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l 
De

mo
cra

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
  

 Cll
r S

ha
fiq
ul 
Ha

qu
e  

(C
ha
ir) 

Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as
 

Cll
r A

lib
or 

Ch
ou
dh
ury

 
Cll

r F
az
lul
 H
aq
ue
 

Cll
r S

hir
ia 
Kh

atu
n 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
lla
h S

ali
qu
e 

  (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r C

lai
r H

aw
kin

s 
Cll

r D
en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

Cll
r S

ha
he
d A

li) 

 Cll
r S

hir
ley

 H
ou
gh
ton

 
   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r T

im
 Ar

ch
er 

Cll
r P

ete
r G

old
s 

Cll
r R

up
ert

 Ec
kh
ard

t) 

 Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
  

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ma

mu
n R

as
hid

) 

 Cll
r T

im
 O
’Fl
ah
ert

y 
   (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r S
tep

ha
nie

 Ea
ton

) 
        

Page 11



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

10
 

  
ST

RA
TE

GI
C 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 
(N

ine
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il t
o i

nc
lud

e 3
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e a
nd

 no
 m

or
e t

ha
n 2

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ab

ine
t) 

 
La

bo
ur

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l 
De

mo
cra

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
  

 Cll
r S

ha
fiq
ul 
Ha

qu
e  

(C
ha
ir) 

Cll
r S

ha
he
d A

li 
Cll

r A
lib
or 

Ch
ou
dh
ury

 
Cll

r S
hir
ia 
Kh

atu
n 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
Cll

r R
an
ia 
Kh

an
 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as
 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

Cll
r S

ira
jul
 Is
lam

) 
  

 Cll
r R

up
ert

 Ec
kh
ard

t 
  (D
ep
uti
es
: 

Cll
r T

im
 Ar

ch
er 

Cll
r S

hir
ley

 H
ou
gh
ton

 
Cll

r P
ete

r G
old

s) 

 Cll
r D

ula
l U

dd
in 

  (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im
) 

 

 Cll
r S

tep
ha
nie

 Ea
ton

 
  (D
ep
uty

- 
Cll

r T
im
 O
’Fl
ah
ert

y) 
        

   

Page 12



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

11
 

  
LIC

EN
SI

NG
 C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 
(Fi

fte
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 
La

bo
ur

 G
ro

up
 N

om
ina

tio
ns

  
Co

ns
erv

ati
ve

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

 
Re

sp
ec

t G
ro

up
 N

om
ina

tio
ns

  
Lib

era
l 

De
mo

cra
t 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
 

 Cll
r 

Ca
rli 

Ha
rpe

r-P
en
ma

n 
(C
ha
ir) 

Cll
r R

aji
b A

hm
ed
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Sh

ah
id 
Ali
 

Cll
r F

az
lul
 H
aq
ue
 

Cll
r A

lex
 H
es
lop

 
Cll

r C
lai
r H

aw
kin

s 
Cll

r W
ais

eu
l Is

lam
 

Cll
r R

ac
ha
el 
Sa

un
de
rs 

Cll
r M

oti
n U

z-Z
am

an
 

       

 Cll
r R

up
ert

 Ec
kh
ard

t 
Cll

r P
ete

r G
old

s 
Cll

r D
av
id 
Sn

ow
do
n 

    

 Cll
r F

oz
ol 
Mi
ah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ma

mu
n R

as
hid

 
  

 Cll
r A

bd
ul 
Ma

tin
 

 

Page 13



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

12
 

 
OV

ER
VI

EW
 A

ND
 S

CR
UT

IN
Y 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
(N

ine
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 fiv
e c

o-o
pte

d m
em

be
rs)

 
 

La
bo

ur
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Co

ns
erv

ati
ve

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Re
sp

ec
t 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Lib

era
l 

De
mo

cra
t 

Gr
ou

p N
om

ina
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

No
mi

na
ted

/C
o-o

pte
d 

Me
mb

ers
 

 Cll
r S

ira
jul
 Is
lam

 (C
ha
ir) 

Cll
r A

lex
 H
es
lop

 
Cll

r A
nn
 Ja

ck
so
n 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

Cll
r A

. A
. S

ard
ar 

Cll
r B

ill T
urn

er 
  (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r S

ali
m 

Ull
ah
 

Cll
r S

ha
he
d A

li 
Cll

r S
hir
ia 
Kh

atu
n) 

 

 Cll
r T

im
 Ar

ch
er 

    (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r P

ete
r G

old
s 

Cll
r D

av
id 
Sn

ow
do
n) 

 Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

    (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r F

oz
ol 
Mi
ah
 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ma

mu
n R

as
hid

) 
  

 Cll
r S

tep
ha
nie

 Ea
ton

 
      

 Mr
 H
as
sa
n M

ue
en
ud
din

 – 
Mu

slim
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
 

 Va
ca
nc
y 

 
–R

om
an
 

Ca
tho

lic 
Dio

ce
se
 

of 
W
es
tm
ins

ter
 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
 

 Mr
. A

hb
ab
 M

iah
 - 

Pa
ren

t 
Go

ve
rno

r re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e 

 Mr
. A

bd
ur 

Ro
uf 

– 
Pa

ren
t 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
 

 Va
ca
nc
y 

- 
Ch

urc
h 

of 
En

gla
nd
 

Dio
ce
se
 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
 

  

Page 14



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

13
 

 
 

HE
AL

TH
 S

CR
UT

IN
Y 

PA
NE

L 
(S

ev
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 
La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

Re
sp

ec
t G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Lib

era
l D

em
oc

rat
  

Gr
ou

p 
 N

om
ina

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 Cll

r B
ill T

urn
er 

Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

 
Cll

r A
lex

 H
es
lop

 
Cll

r A
nn
 Ja

ck
so
n 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r R

ac
ha
el 
Sa

un
de
rs 

Cll
r W

ais
eu
l Is

lam
 

Cll
r R

aji
b A

hm
ed
) 

        

 Cll
r D

r. E
mm

a J
on
es
 

   (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r A
hm

ed
 H
us
sa
in)
 

 

 Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

   (D
ep
uti
es
: –
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im
 

Cll
r M

am
un
 R
as
hid

 
Cll

r D
ula

l U
dd
in)
 

 

 Cll
r S

tep
ha
nie

 Ea
ton

 
      

Page 15



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

14
 

  
 

AP
PE

AL
S 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
(N

ine
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il) 
 

La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

 N
om

ina
tio

ns
 

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

 
Co

ns
erv

ati
ve

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

Re
sp

ec
t G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Lib

era
l 

De
mo

cra
t 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

 Cll
r S

ali
m 

Ull
ah
  (C

ha
ir) 

Cll
r R

aji
b A

hm
ed
 

Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

 
Cll

r B
ill T

urn
er 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
lla
h S

ali
qu
e 

Cll
r M

oti
n U

z-Z
am

an
 

    (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

Cll
r M

d. 
Sh

ah
id 
Ali
 

   

 Cll
r A

hm
ed
 H
us
sa
in 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r S

hir
ley

 H
ou
gh
ton

 
Cll

r P
ete

r G
old

s) 

 Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

   (D
ep
uti
es
 – 

Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

Cll
r D

ula
l U

dd
in 

Cll
r F

oz
ol 
Mi
ah
) 

 

 Cll
r A

ziz
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 Kh

an
 

   

   

Page 16



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

15
 

  
 

AU
DI

T C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il) 
 La

bo
ur

  
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

 
Co

ns
erv

ati
ve

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l 
De

mo
cra

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
 Cll

r F
az
lul
 H
aq
ue
  (C

ha
ir) 

Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as
 

Cll
r C

lai
r H

aw
kin

s 
Cll

r D
en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

 
Cll

r M
d. 

Ab
du
lla
h S

ali
qu
e 

Cll
r M

d. 
Sh

ah
id 
Ali
) 

        

 Cll
r D

av
id 
Sn

ow
do
n 

   (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r R
up
ert

 Ec
kh
ard

t) 

 Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

   (D
ep
uti
es
- 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im
) 

    

 Co
un
cill

or 
Ste

ph
an
ie 
Ea

ton
 

    

Page 17



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

16
 

 
 

GE
NE

RA
L P

UR
PO

SE
S 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
(S

ev
en

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 
La

bo
ur

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 (a
nd

 de
pu

tie
s) 

 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l 
De

mo
cra

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
  

 Cll
r M

d. 
Sh

ah
id 
Ali
  (C

ha
ir) 

Cll
r L

utf
a B

eg
um

 
Cll

r C
lai
r H

aw
kin

s 
Cll

r W
ais

eu
l Is

lam
 

Cll
r A

. A
. S

ard
ar 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r C

arl
i H

arp
er-

Pe
nm

an
 

Cll
r R

aji
b A

hm
ed
 

Cll
r S

ali
m 

Ull
ah
) 

      

 Cll
r P

hil
ip 
Br
isc

oe
 

   (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r P
ete

r G
old

s) 
 

 Cll
r M

. M
am

un
 R
as
hid

 
    (D
ep
uti
es
 – 

Cll
r A

bjo
l M

iah
 

Cll
r F

oz
ol 
Mi
ah
 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im
) 

  

 No
 M
em

be
r 

  

 

Page 18



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

17
 

 

 
HU

MA
N 

RE
SO

UR
CE

S 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

(S
ev

en
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il) 
 

La
bo

ur
 G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d  

de
pu

tie
s) 

Lib
era

l 
De

mo
cra

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 

 Cll
r 

Md
. 

Ab
du
lla
h 

Sa
liq
ue
 

(C
ha
ir) 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

Cll
r M

d. 
Sh

ah
id 
Ali
 

Cll
r S

ha
he
d A

li 
Cll

r J
os
hu
a P

ec
k 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r R

ac
ha
el 
Sa

un
de
rs 

Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as
 

Cll
r A

nn
 Ja

ck
so
n) 

   

 Cll
r P

hil
ip 
Br
isc

oe
 

   (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r D
av
id 
Sn

ow
do
n) 

    

 Cll
r D

ula
l U

dd
in 

  (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r F

oz
ol 
Mi
ah
 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
) 

  

 No
 M
em

be
r 

   

Page 19



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

18
 

  
 

PE
NS

IO
NS

 C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 

(N
ine

 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il) 

 
La

bo
ur

  
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

 
Co

ns
erv

ati
ve

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l 
De

mo
cra

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 (a

nd
 de

pu
tie

s) 
 Cll

r R
aji
b A

hm
ed
  (C

ha
ir) 

Cll
r H

ela
l A

bb
as
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
Cll

r W
ais

eu
l Is

lam
 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r S

hir
ia 
Kh

atu
n 

Cll
r A

lib
or 

Ch
ou
hd
ury

 
Cll

r S
ha
he
d A

li) 
   

 Cll
r D

av
id 
Sn

ow
do
n 

    (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r T
im
 Ar

ch
er)

 
  

 Cll
r F

oz
ol 
Mi
ah
 

   (D
ep
uti
es
 – 

Cll
r H

aru
n M

iah
 

Cll
r M

am
un
 R
as
hid

) 
 

 Cll
r T

im
 O
’Fl
ah
ert

y 
      

    

Page 20



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

19
 

 
 

ST
AN

DA
RD

S 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

(N
ot 

su
bje

ct 
to 

pr
op

or
tio

na
lity

 ru
les

.  F
ive

 M
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il (

wh
ich

 m
ay

 no
t in

clu
de

 th
e L

ea
de

r o
r m

or
e t

ha
n o

ne
 ot

he
r 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er)

,  t
wo

 fr
om

 th
e m

ajo
rit

y g
ro

up
 an

d o
ne

 fr
om

 ea
ch

 of
 th

e o
the

r p
oli

tic
al 

gr
ou

ps
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
plu

s n
ine

 
Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Me
mb

ers
) 

 
La

bo
ur

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
 

(an
d 

de
pu

tie
s) 

 
Co

ns
erv

ati
ve

 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

n 
(an

d 
de

pu
tie

s) 
Re

sp
ec

t 
Gr

ou
p 

No
mi

na
tio

n 
(an

d 
de

pu
tie

s) 
Lib

era
l 

De
mo

cra
t 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
n 

(an
d 

de
pu

tie
s) 

Ind
ep

en
de

nt 
Me

mb
ers

 
  

 Cll
r W

ais
eu
l Is

lam
 

Cll
r S

ali
m 

Ull
ah
 

  (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r C

lai
r H

aw
kin

s 
Cll

r S
ira
jul
 Is
lam

 
Cll

r A
lex

 H
es
lop

) 

 Cll
r D

r. E
mm

a J
on
es
 

  (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r P

ete
r G

old
s) 

  

 Cll
r M

d. 
Ab

du
l M

un
im
 

   (D
ep
uti
es
:- 

Cll
r M

d. 
Ma

mu
n R

as
hid

 
Cll

r A
bjo

l M
iah

) 
 

 Cll
r A

ziz
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 Kh

an
 

    

Co
nti
nu
ing

 M
em

be
rs:
 

Ms
. 

S. 
Ba

rry
 

(un
til 

26
.5.
10
) 

Mr
 P

. O
’Co

nn
or 

(C
ha

ir)
 

(un
til 
20
.5.
10
) 

Mr
 M

. H
. R

ah
ma

n 
(un

til 
20
.5.
10
) 

Mr
. I.

 Al
i (u

nti
l 2
0.5

.11
) 

Mr
. E

. P
em

be
rto

n 
(un

til 
20
.5.
11
) 

 Ne
w 

Me
mb

ers
 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 

for
 

ap
po
int
me

nt 
un
til 

Ma
y 

20
12
: 

Mr
. B

. L
ow

e 
Mr

. M
. R

ow
e 

Ms
. S

. B
ag
um

  
Mr

. R
. H

op
kin

s 

Page 21



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

20
 

 
 

PE
RM

AN
EN

T P
LA

CE
ME

NT
S 

PA
NE

L 
(To

 co
mp

ris
e t

wo
 So

cia
l W

or
ke

rs,
 on

e M
em

be
r o

f th
e C

ab
ine

t, t
hr

ee
 

Ind
ep

en
de

nt 
Pe

rso
ns

 an
d t

o i
nc

lud
e o

ne
 m

an
 an

d o
ne

 w
om

an
, u

p t
o a

 
ma

xim
um

 of
 te

n p
ers

on
s) 

 
La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

 
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Re

sp
ec

t G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l D
em

oc
rat

 G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

 Cll
r B

ill T
urn

er 
  

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

  

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

  
 

FO
ST

ER
IN

G 
PA

NE
L 

(To
 co

mp
ris

e t
wo

 So
cia

l W
or

ke
rs,

 on
e e

lec
ted

 M
em

be
r a

nd
 fo

ur
 In

de
pe

nd
en

t 
Pe

rso
ns

, u
p t

o a
 m

ax
im

um
 of

 te
n p

ers
on

s) 
 

La
bo

ur
  G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Re

sp
ec

t G
ro

up
 

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l D
em

oc
rat

  
Gr

ou
p N

om
ina

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 Cll

r A
nn
 Ja

ck
so
n 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

Page 22



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

21
 

 
CH

ILD
RE

N/
AD

UL
TS

 (A
CC

ES
S 

TO
 FI

LE
S)

 P
AN

EL
 

(To
 co

mp
ris

e t
hr

ee
 M

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il; 
on

ly 
on

e o
f w

ho
m 

ma
y a

lso
 be

 a 
Ca

bin
et 

me
mb

er)
 

 
La

bo
ur

  G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Re

sp
ec

t G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l D
em

oc
rat

  
Gr

ou
p N

om
ina

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 Cll

r A
bd
ul 
As

ad
 

Cll
r D

en
ise

 Jo
ne
s 

 

 Cll
r R

up
ert

 Ec
kh
ard

t 
   

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 
 No

t a
pp
lica

ble
 

   

 
ST

AN
DI

NG
 A

DV
IS

OR
Y 

CO
UN

CI
L O

N 
RE

LIG
IO

US
 E

DU
CA

TIO
N 

(S
AC

RE
) 

(To
 co

mp
ris

e m
em

be
rs 

ap
po

int
ed

 by
 th

e L
EA

) 
 

La
bo

ur
  G

ro
up

  
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 

Co
ns

erv
ati

ve
 

Gr
ou

p 
No

mi
na

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
Re

sp
ec

t G
ro

up
  

No
mi

na
tio

ns
  

(an
d d

ep
uti

es
) 

Lib
era

l D
em

oc
rat

  
Gr

ou
p N

om
ina

tio
ns

  
(an

d d
ep

uti
es

) 
 Cll

r A
. A

. S
ard

ar 
 

 Cll
r P

ete
r G

old
s 

 (D
ep
uty

:- 
Cll

r P
hil
ip 
Br
isc

oe
) 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 No
t a

pp
lica

ble
 

 

Page 23



CO
UN

CI
L, 

20
/05

/20
09
 

SE
CT

IO
N 
ON

E (
UN

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
) 

 

22
 

OT
HE

R 
PO

ST
S W

ITH
 SP

EC
IA

L R
ES

PO
NS

IB
ILI

TIE
S 

  1. 
Ol
ym

pic
s A

mb
as
sa
do
r –

 C
ou
nc
illo

r W
ais

eu
l Is

lam
 

       TO
 N

OT
E O

PP
OS

ITI
ON

 G
RO

UP
 A

PP
OI

NT
ME

NT
S 

  Co
ns
erv

ati
ve
 G
rou

p  
 

- 
Le
ad
er 

of 
the

 C
on
se
rva

tiv
e G

rou
p 

 
 

- 
Co

un
cill

or 
Pe

ter
 G
old

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
De

pu
ty 
Le
ad
er 

of 
the

 C
on
se
rva

tiv
e G

rou
p  

 
- 

Co
un
cill

or 
Tim

oth
y A

rch
er 

 Re
sp
ec
t G

rou
p 

 
 

- 
Le
ad
er 

of 
the

 R
es
pe
ct 
Gr
ou
p 

 
 

 
- 

Co
un
cill

or 
Ab

jol
 M
iah

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
De

pu
ty 
Le
ad
er 

of 
the

 R
es
pe
ct 
Gr
ou
p 

 
 

- 
Co

un
cill

or 
Du

lal
 U
dd
in 

 
 

Lib
era

l D
em

oc
rat

 G
rou

p 
 

- 
Le
ad
er 

of 
the

 Li
be
ral
 D
em

oc
rat

 G
rou

p 
 

 
- 

Co
un
cill

or 
Ste

ph
an
ie 
Ea

ton
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 24



 1 

  
 
 
  

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 15TH JULY 2009  
 

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. The Council’s constitution provides that a maximum of six deputations and 

petitions are received at any meeting.  These are taken in the order of receipt.   
This report sets out the deputations and petitions so far submitted by 
members of the public for presentation at Council on Wednesday 15th July 
2009.   

 
2. The deadline for receipt of deputations and petitions for this meeting is noon 

on Thursday 9th July.  Details of any further deputations or petitions received 
before the deadline will be tabled at the meeting.     

 
3. In each case the members of the deputation/petitioners may address the 

meeting for no more than three minutes.  Members may then question the 
deputation/petitioners for a further three minutes.  The relevant Lead Member 
or Chair of Committee may then respond to the deputation or petition for up to 
three minutes. 

 
4. Any outstanding issues will be referred to the relevant Corporate Director for 

attention who will respond to those outstanding issues in writing within 28 
days. 

 
5. Members should confine their contributions to questions and answers and not 

make statements or attempt to debate. 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



 2 

 
 
5.1 DEPUTATIONS 
 
 One deputation has been received at the time of printing as set out below:- 
 
 
5.1.1 Deputation from Mr John Budis, Tower Hamlets College and others 

against proposed cuts at Tower Hamlets College:   
 

“We would like to have a deputation to present our arguments against the 
proposed cuts at Tower Hamlets College. 

 
These cuts in provision will have a negative impact on the local community.  
The Council becomes responsible for much of ESOL provision soon.  We feel 
that there has been no opportunity for the college unions  (UCU and UNISON) 
to discuss the impact of the current shortfall in funding that is having a drastic 
effect on the lower levels of provision: E1 and E2. 

 
We are also concerned about the loss of jobs and the fact that our 
management will not consider proposals that can avert redundancies.  One 
example is their failure to liaise with the Council over provision of ESOL in the 
borough.  We have many years of expertise in delivering ESOL and could 
save the Council money by offering some of our experienced ESOL tutors to 
deliver on LLL provision for the three posts that you currently need. 

 
We also wish to support the Respect motion about cuts in Adult Education 
being put to the full Council meeting on 15th July.  This motion will support the 
EDM 1656: Educational Provision in Tower Hamlets.” 
 

 
 
 
5.2 PETITIONS 
 

Three petitions have been received as set out below:- 
 
5.2.1 Petition from Ms Joanna Kaschke and others regarding the Glasshouse 

Community Centre: 
 

“I am not clear why Tower Hamlets Council does not support positive 
community initiatives like the Glasshouse Community Centre. This community 
centre on Parkview Estate, does not attract nor host crime and provides a 
positive to the anti-social and criminal negatives in the area. There was a 
lengthy article in the East London Advertiser about the issue too.  
Talking of publications, the Council can spend well over 1 million pounds 
per year on East End Life but cannot find a comparatively paltry sum of 
£6,000 for a local community centre. Such centres are important to provide 

Page 26



 3 

meeting space for locals who cannot afford commercial rates to mix and there 
is still a considerable number of local residents who require that provision. 
People use it for birthday parties, children’s parties, weddings, and other 
parties. 
There is also a much used boxing club, tea and coffee mornings, I use it for 
Neighbourhood Watch meetings and of course the Tenants and Residents 
Association also meets there. Not to forget the mothers and toddlers and 
youth club have nowhere else to go on a regular basis. I thought the council 
cares a lot for under-fives but apparently Bethnal Green North is not high on 
the agenda for them. Apparently Central Government funding has already 
been allocated to be spent in the area and approved by the Parkview 
TRA and when the children's play area of the Glasshouse will be upgraded, 
the glasshouse Centre itself must be running smoothly and for that purpose it 
does need its grant.  
Especially in my function as chair of the Parkview Neighbourhood Watch I am 
concerned that crime fighting and preventing has not just to do with arresting 
criminals, it is as much about crime prevention and a well run and loved 
community center like the Glasshouse is an invaluable asset for that purpose. 
It attracts and retains law abiding citizens, children and pensioners who need 
a meeting space.  
Jackie Miller and her mother Lil Warner ran the Glasshouse for over 18 years, 
my own children attended summer school there. And just because Lil Warner 
died of a sudden heart attack that took her unexpectedly from our midst the 
Council decides to turn onto the volunteers leaving them with unpaid bills. 
Jackie Miller is personally responsible for those bills and she had a justified 
expectation to get her grant to pay for those gas bills that have accumulated 
during last winter, a winter that saw exceptionally low temperatures and the 
allocation of cold weather payments to benefit recipients and old people.  
The Glasshouse does a lot of good in our community and deserves support 
from the Council to keep as an invaluable asset for our community. It is not 
the action of a responsible council to allow the use of a community centre 
without ensuring that the cost of doing so can be met and the Council did 
exactly that, namely allow the use of the Glasshouse without checks on 
viability.  
I am therefore hoping that the Council will change its mind and now allocate 
the £6,000 – 10,000 asked for and would also consider paying for a 
permanent worker to run the Glasshouse centre to enable a more efficient 
allocation of this resource for community education as well as entertainment. 
The Glasshouse also requires renovation and has further potential as local 
Sure Start centre, education centre and community meeting venue and prayer 
facilities for Muslims.  

Page 27



 4 

I am still hoping the Council will now give the much needed money to help the 
volunteers pay back £3,500 on unpaid gas and electric bills as well as 
sufficient monies for the running of the centre. 
I thank you for your considering in the hope that you will grant this request.” 
 

5.2.2 Petition from Mrs Gloria Thienel and others regarding Stebondale 
Street: 

 
“We, the undersigned, want Stebondale Street to be fully repaired and 
resurfaced.  We are concerned about the poor state of the road and the 
dangerous dips and bumps which are causing damage to our cars.” 
 

 
 
5.2.3 Petition from the parents of Halley Primary School pupils opposing the 

re-opening of the Perfect Fried Chicken on the corner of Ben Jonson 
Road and Aston Street, E1: 

 
“We, the parents of Halley Primary School, would like to register our concerns 
with the Council about the re-opening of the Perfect Fried Chicken on the 
corner of Ben Jonson Road and Aston Street, Stepney, London, E1. 

 
Since the PFC closed on the 2nd of March 2009, we have notice a significant 
change in the area.  There is a huge decrease in the gangs of youths hanging 
around the shop area, fights, drinking and display of anti-social behaviour.  
We now feel much safer and comfortable walking past this particular area. 

 
We are not happy about the location of the shop which is right next to the 
school; the area around the shop was always filled with litter and the smell 
was very strong.  Since it closed, however, there has been an improvement.  
We also noticed that our children are less interested in fast food.  As parents 
of this community we would like to oppose the shop opening as a Fast Food 
shop as we would like to improve the health and well-being of our children 
particularly as Tower Hamlets is said to have the highest rate of obesity and 
other life threatening illnesses.” 

Page 28



  

 
  

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 15TH JULY 2009 
 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,   

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by members of the public, for 

response by the appropriate Lead Member at the Council Meeting on 15th July 
2009.   

 
2. The Council’s Constitution provides a maximum time limit of thirty minutes for 

this item. 
 
3. A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one brief 

supplementary question without notice to the Member who has replied to his 
or her original question.  A supplementary question must arise directly out of 
the original or the reply.  Supplementary questions and Members’ responses 
to written and supplementary questions are each limited to two minutes.  

 
4. Any question which cannot be dealt with during the thirty minutes allocated for 

public questions, either because of lack of time or because of non-attendance 
of the questioner or the Member to whom it was put, will be dealt with by way 
of a written answer. 

 
5. Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on any 

question, but any Member of the Council may move, without discussion, that 
the matter raised by a question be referred for consideration to the Cabinet or 
the appropriate Committee or Sub-Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



  

QUESTIONS 
 
Three questions have been submitted as set out below:- 
 
6.1 Question from Mr. Terry McGrenera to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis: 
 
“In the light of the statement made by the Prime Minister earlier in the year about a 
return to council housing and the measures announced in the Budget, does the Lead 
Member for Housing regret the policies that this Council has pursued over the past 
decade and the trouble, grief and human and financial cost that it has caused to 
people in Tower Hamlets?”  
 
 
 
6.2 Question from Mr. Barry Blandford to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis: 
 
“Jubilee Crescent is a Sheltered Housing Scheme located at 327 to 355A 
Manchester Road in the Blackwall and Cubitt Ward, Post Code E14 3HN.  It consists 
of 4 x 6 bedroom flats, 3 on the ground floor, 3 on the first floor and 1 x 3 flats on the 
first floor, with the ground floor as a 3 bedroom flat (for Manager) plus an office and 
Day/Club room. 
 
Recently a meeting was held with the residents and a general manager on the future 
and we were told that it was being taken out of Sheltered as there was no lift or 
wheel chair access.  The Residents that moved into the Crescent over the years took 
up residency as it was designated Sheltered. 
 
It seems that yet again the council is taking the stance that we older people do not 
matter.  We had no information, no consultation and the matter was dealt with at a 
Cabinet meeting behind closed doors.   
 
We also have received a letter from the planning department on a scheme to replace 
the windows from Crittal to PVC with new doors, afterwards we had a meeting with 
the general manager on this proposal, and since the application was turned down 
and a new one submitted which we were told has been agreed, once again we have 
not been consulted. 
 
We also have discovered through an advert in East End Life that the 3 bedroom flat 
has been advertised for a couple with a carer over 60 or brother and sister.  This has 
annoyed the residents as we were hoping it to be converted to a one bedroom flat a 
sleep-in room for a relative a complete office with own toilet and extension of 
clubroom plus another toilet to bring it up to health and safety regulation. 
 
We have been wondering whether or not any of the cabinet members have ever 
visited the Crescent and seen what a grand site one that was built for retirement 
home for the Dockers in 1935 in the year of the Jubilee of King George V and Queen 
Mary and refurbished by the LDDC in 1985 and opened by Mrs. Jo Benson OBE JP 
Housing Corporation Board Member. 

Page 30



  

 
I, on this occasion would on behalf of the residents request that we are visited by a 
member of the Cabinet, a planning officer and a ward councillor and to be listened to 
the queries of the older people?” 
 
 
6.3 Question from Ms. Joanna Kaschke to the Lead Member for Children’s 

Services, Councillor Abdul Asad: 
 
“Holiday Play Centre provision has become too expensive for benefit recipients so 
children from poor households miss out on professionally run play centre facilities 
during the summer.  To send a child every during the summer holidays would cost 
for 25 days £100 + £2 to bring a child there by bus = £50 + a packed lunch cost at £2 
per day = £50, + outings costs estimated at £20 total cost = £220. 
 
I think this can be seen as unaffordable for most parents on income support or job 
seekers allowance taking into consideration all the other costs one has to run a 
household and clothe a child. 
 
I would like to know why we can’t have cheap local play centres?” 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 15TH JULY 2009 
 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by Members of the Council for 

response by Members of the Executive at the Council meeting on Wednesday 
15th July 2009. 

 
2. Questions are limited to one per Member per meeting, plus one 

supplementary question unless the Member has indicated that only a written 
reply is required and in these circumstances a supplementary question is not 
permitted. 

 
3. Oral responses are time limited to one minute.  Supplementary questions and 

responses are also time limited to one minute each. 
 
4. There is a time limit of thirty minutes for consideration of Members’ questions 

with no extension of time allowed and any question not answered within this 
time will be dealt with by way of a written response.  The Mayor will decide the 
time allocated to each question. 

 
5. Members must confine their contributions to questions and answers and not 

make statements or attempt to debate. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



QUESTIONS 
 
24 questions have been received from Members of the Council as follows:- 

 
7.1 Question from Councillor Fazlul Haque to the Lead Member for 

Employment and Skills, Councillor Oliur Rahman  
 
 Can the Lead Member for Employment and Skills  tell  us what progress has  

been made to improve partnership working with other public sector 
organisations to help our residents find work in these difficult times? 

 
 
7.2 Question from Councillor Rupert Eckhardt  to the Lead Member for 

Housing and Development, Councillor Marc Francis  
 

Would the Lead Member for Housing and Development confirm how many 
cases have been brought by developers for return of Section 106 contributions 
that has failed to be spent by the Council in a timely manner have been brought 
forward and/or settled and what are the sums of money involved? 

 
 
7.3 Question from Councillor Alibor Choudhury  to the Lead Member for 

Cleaner, Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 

 Can the Lead Member for Cleaner, Safer, Greener tell us how many drugs  
     arrests have been made in the borough in the last three months  and what is 
     being done to ensure that the pressure on drug dealers is kept up as well as  
     telling us what is being done to combat anti-social street drinking in the 
     borough?  

 
 
7.4 Question from Councillor Abjol Miah to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 
 In the light of the statement by the Prime Minister that the spending  
           announced for additional social housing will be earmarked for local people,  

would you provide statistics concerning the allocation of social housing in 
Tower Hamlets to "non-local people", however they might be defined, in  

           particular how many people have been permanently housed off the Tower  
           Hamlets common waiting list over, say, the last four years, how many 
           qualified on the basis of length of time on the waiting list as opposed to  
           enhanced priority arising from medical and other needs, and how many of  
           those allocated housing had not been resident in the borough for more than,  
           say, one year, five years and ten years?    
 
 

 
 
 

Page 34



7.5 Question from Councillor Waiseul Islam to the Lead Member for Culture 
and Leisure, Councillor Rofique Ahmed  

 
 Can the Lead Member for Culture and Leisure tell us how many people  

attended the Baishaki Mela in May and whether he considers this year’s event 
to be an improvement on previous years?  

 
 
7.6 Question from Councillor Stephanie Eaton  to the Lead Member for 

Resources and Performance, Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
 

Could the Lead Member explain why the Council's expenditure on media and 
public relations has risen 29% from £980,000 in 2007/8 to £1,267,000 in 
2008/9 and does he feel this represents good value for money for  

          Council taxpayers? 
 
  
7.7 Question from Councillor Shafiqul Haque to the Leader of the Council, 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
 
 It was agreed that the Section 106 money from IDCF would be distributed 

within the borough.  Could the Leader update us on this?  Could the Leader 
also let us know how much Section 106 money is available to spend by the 
Council on relevant projects? 

 
 
7.8 Question from Councillor Tim Archer to the Lead  Member for 

Employment and Skills, Councillor Oliur Rahman 
 
 Will the Lead Member for Employment please provide an update on 

unemployment levels in the borough, specifically commenting on youth 
unemployment and graduate unemployment, and how the borough compares 
to others? 

 
   
7.9 Question from Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique to the Lead 

Member for Resources and Performance, Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
 

Can the Lead Member for Resources and Performance confirm that despite 
their protestations in the local press about Special Responsibility Allowances, 
some opposition leaders will be taking significant pay rises themselves this 
year? 
 
 
 
 
  

 
            

Page 35



7.10 Question from Councillor Dulal Uddin to the Leader of the Council, 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 

 
Is the Leader of the Council aware of the widespread worry and anger 
amongst many Tower Hamlets residents about the imminent construction of 
the Tipaimukh Dam by the Indian government on the border with Bangladesh, 
that this dam poses an acute environmental threat to large parts of the Sylhet 
region of Bangladesh, that many residents have ties of family, friends, 
ancestry and in some instances property, in the Sylhet region, and will he 
join with me in urging the Indian government to stop the construction of the 
dam until necessary reassurances about the environmental impact of the dam 
have been forthcoming and to urge the British government to make 
representations on behalf of the many concerned residents of Tower Hamlets 
to the Indian government over this matter? 

 
 
7.11 Question from Councillor Lutfa Begum to the Lead Member for 

Children’s Services, Councillor Abdul Asad 
 
 Can the Lead Member for Children’s Services tell us whether there are any 

plans to use facilities in local schools to improve the provision of youth 
facilities in the borough on evenings and weekends? 

 
   
7.12 Question from Councillor Tim O’Flaherty to the Lead Member for 

Children’s Services, Councillor Abdul Asad 
 

Could the Lead Member advise me how many students, teachers and other 
staff in the Borough's schools have been affected by swine flu? Can he advise 
of the measures taken to prevent and restrict the spread of swine 
flu in the Borough's school and can he advise what criteria are used to decide 
whether a school should close as a result of an outbreak of swine flu?  

 
 

7.13 Question from Councillor David Snowdon to the Lead Member for 
Resources and Performance, Councillor Ohid Ahmed 

 
 Would the Lead Member for Resources confirm that this Council follows best 

practice guidelines within its Audit Committee? 
 
 
7.14 Question from Councillor Fozol Miah to the Lead Member for Health and 

Wellbeing, Councillor Dr. Anwara Ali 
 

Could the Lead Member clarify what rights GP practices have to expel 
patients from their lists, what powers the PCT has to override GP practices in 
this regard, what rights patients have to appeal against and seek the 
reversal of expulsion from GP lists which they believe to be unfair and 
whether the Lead Member believes that the situation with regard to patients’ 
rights in this regard should be the subject of a joint review between the 

Page 36



           Council and the PCT? 
  
  
7.15 Question from Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan to the Lead Member for 

Children’s Services, Councillor Abdul Asad 
 
 Could the Lead Member describe the functions and activities of the Tower 

Hamlets Pupil Referral Unit, and could he explain the plans for the use of the 
PRU of the former local housing office at 73 Bishops Way, Bethnal Green 
North? 

 
 
7.16 Question from Councillor Dr. Emma Jones to the Leader of the Council, 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman  
 
 Will the Leader of the Council confirm how many electors of the Borough who 

had applied for postal votes for the recent European election contacted the 
Council regarding the non arrival of their ballot paper? 

 
 
7.17   Question from Councillor Mamun Rashid to the Lead Member for 

Children’s Services, Councillor Abdul Asad 
 

In the light of the recent Ofsted report into exclusions from primary school, 
would you provide statistics on exclusions from primary and secondary 
schools in LBTH, including how many and at what age plus distribution 
of exclusions across the primary schools in the borough, i.e. are there some 
schools that don't exclude and others that have a lot of exclusions, if there are 
guidelines issued to schools on exclusions by the borough and whether you 
will consider issuing guidelines in the light of the Ofsted report if not, or alter 
the ones that do exist, and also provide statistics on internal exclusions 

           which appears to be the preferred Ofsted option for school students at least  
under the age of seven. 

 
 
7.18 Question from Councillor Abdul Matin to the Lead Member for Children’s 

Services, Councillor Abdul Asad 
 

Could the Lead Member advise how faith organisations and parent groups are 
involved in decisions about the age at which children being to receive sex and  
 relationship education in the borough’s schools?  What is the earliest age that 
students will receive sex and relationship education in the borough? 
 

 
7.19 Question from Councillor Peter Golds to the Lead Member for Housing 

and Development, Councillor Marc Francis 
 
 Will the Lead Member for Housing confirm how many lifts within council 

owned homes are past their estimated life expectancy, in view of the 

Page 37



revelation that there is at least one lift that has exceeded life expectancy by 
twenty years? 

 
  
7.20 Question from Councillor Harun Miah to the Lead Member for Cleaner, 

Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 

Could you explain why lights are left on permanently in parts of the Town Hall 
and does he not agree with me that this is a waste of energy and thereby 
needlessly contributes to global warming and would he consider a          
strategy for ensuring that lights in the Town Hall are turned off when the areas 
they are lighting are not in use and could he also provide details of what 
further measures he is taking to ensure energy efficiency not  only in the 
Town Hall but across the borough? 

  
 
7.21 Question from Councillor Ahmed Hussain to the Lead Member for 

Regeneration, Localisation and Community Partnerships, Councillor 
Rania Khan 

 
           Will the Lead Member for Regeneration confirm when she is planning to 

outline the delivery of the cemetery that her party has promised in the 2006 
election manifesto? 

           
 
7.22 Question from Councillor Abdul Munim to the Lead Member for 

Children’s Services, Councillor Abdul Asad 
 
 Would the Lead Member clarify what rights governors, including parent 

governors, have to know about the salaries being paid to teaching staff at 
schools in Tower Hamlets of which they are governors? 

 
 
7.23 Question from Councillor Philip Briscoe to the Lead Member for Cleaner, 

Safer, Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah   
 
 The recent Place survey undertaken by the DCLG found that the fear of anti-

social behaviour amongst Tower Hamlets residents is the second highest of 
any local authority in the country.  What steps will the Lead Member be taking 
to reverse this unacceptable level of concern? 

 
 
7.24 Question from Councillor Shirley Houghton to the Lead Member for 

Cleaner, Safer Greener, Councillor Abdal Ullah  
 
 As the Council is currently undertaking a process of consulting and upgrading 

parks in the borough, will the Lead Member for Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
please provide a full list of all parks where investment is planned and for each 
park full details of: 

 

Page 38



           The total expenditure budget for each park; 
 
           The delivery timescale for each individual park; 
 
           The consultation timescale for each individual park: 
 
           How consultation for each park has been/will be carried out – to include 

method of consultation, number of residents contacted and selection criteria 
used to select which residents to consult; and  

 
           The results of each individual consultation that has already taken place, this 

response to include full details of participation levels of each individual 
consultation? 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

06 MAY 2009 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 06 May 
2009. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Chair)  (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Vice-Chair) (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed (Lead Member, Culture and Leisure) 
Councillor Anwarra Ali (Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Lead Member, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Marc Francis (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Clair Hawkins (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Chair Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group and Scrutiny 

Lead Member: A Health Community) 
Councillor Peter Golds (Leader Conservative Group) 
 (Leader of the Respect Group) 
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Alexander Heslop 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
 
1. Joint Drinking Control Zone with LB Hackney for Arnold Circus and 

Shoreditch (CAB 148/089)  
 

We considered a report (attached as Appendix A to this council report) which 
informed us that: - 
• Our endorsement was sought for a proposal that Council authorise the 

implementation of a further Drinking Control Zone (DCZ), following the 
statutory public consultation, as a joint initiative with the London 
Borough of Hackney in the area around Arnold Circus and St 
Leonard’s Church Shoreditch.  

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 41



• The area had a history of anti-social behaviour associated with street 
drinking and the proposed DCZ had strong support from the Weavers 
Safer Neighbourhood Team. 

• The establishment of a DCZ was a Council not an Executive (Cabinet) 
function, but our endorsement of this proposal was being sought, 
given our wider role in relation to community safety. 

 
A discussion took place which focussed on the following points:- 
• Comment that the problem of alcohol and drug taking in the churchyard 

at St Leonards was recognised. Also relayed that our Councillor 
O’Flaherty, a Councillor for Weavers Ward considered the introduction 
of a Drinking Control Zone (DCZ), as proposed in the report before us, 
would alleviate the anti-social behaviour in the area. 

• Concern expressed that it would be wrong to conflate alcohol misuse by 
street drunks with that street drinking as a result of the night time 
economy, with one requiring enforcement action and the other a more 
measured approach. 

• Consideration that although DCZ’s had proven successful in other areas 
of the Borough for a period, enforcement by the Metropolitan Police had 
waned. Consequently the longevity of the proposed DCZ required 
consideration, together with the securing of a commitment from the 
police to take enforcement action for the duration of the DCZ.  Our 
Corporate Director Communities, Localities and Culture undertook to 
take this matter up with our Borough Commander. 

• Noted that Table 2 within paragraph 4.11 of the report before us 
contained a typographical error in relation to the estimated cost of the 
leaflet campaign for consultation. 

• Comment that the DCZ in Bethnal Green near a children’s nursery had 
proven successful. 

 
We endorsed the proposal to undertake statutory consultation for a Drinking 
Control Zone in accordance with the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 
(and associated regulations), in Arnold Circus and the surrounding area, as 
indicated in the plan attached at Appendix A to the report (CAB 148/089) 
before us. 

 
We agreed that Full Council be recommended to authorise the Director of 
Communities Localities & Culture to: 
(a) Consider any representations received in relation to the consultation 

referred to above. 
(b) Approve the making of the proposed Drinking Control Zone for the area 

indicated on the plans attached as Appendix A to the report (CAB 
148/089) before us. 

(c) Consider the inclusion of any additional areas within the Drinking 
Control Zone, referred to above, identified during the consultation as 
appropriate for such inclusion.  

Page 42



 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
Authorise the Director of Communities Localities & Culture to: 
(a) Consider any representations received in relation to the consultation 

referred to in recommendation 2.1 of the report (CAB 148/089) 
(Attached at Appendix A to this Council report). 

(b) Approve the making of the proposed Drinking Control Zone for the area 
indicated on the plans attached as Appendix A to the report (CAB 
148/089). 

(c) Consider the inclusion of any additional areas within the Drinking 
Control Zone, referred to in recommendation 2.1 of the report (CAB 
148/089), identified during the consultation as appropriate for such 
inclusion.  

 
 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Chair of the Cabinet 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 
REPORT 

 
Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 06/05/09  Angus Taylor 
Minutes Cabinet  020 7364 4333  
Meeting 06/05/09 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
6 May 2009 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 

Report No: Agenda 
Item
: 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director: Steve Halsey, 

Communities Localities & 
Culture 

 
Originating officer(s):  Heather Mallinder, 

Operations manager, Community 
Safety Service 

 

Title:  
 
Joint Drinking Control Zone with LB Hackney for 

Arnold Circus and Shoreditch 
 
Wards Affected:  Weavers 
 

 
1 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The report seeks Cabinet’s endorsement for the proposal for Council to authorise 

the implementation of a further Drinking Control Zone (DCZ). Following the 
statutory public consultation, as a joint initiative with the London Borough of 
Hackney in the area around Arnold Circus and St Leonard’s Church Shoreditch. 
The area has a history of anti-social behaviour associated with street drinking and 
the proposed DCZ has strong support from Weavers Safer Neighbourhood Team. 

 
1.2 The establishment of a DCZ is a Council not an executive function, but the 

endorsement of this proposal by Cabinet is sought, given Cabinet’s wider role in 
relation to community safety.     

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Endorse the proposal to undertake statutory consultation for a Drinking Control 

Zone in accordance with the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 (and 
associated regulations), in Arnold Circus and the surrounding area as indicated in 
the plan attached at Appendix A to this report.  

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (as amended) 

List of  “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
Brief description of “background papers” 
 

 Name and telephone number of holder and 
address where open to inspection. 

Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 Heather Mallinder x 6107 
Tower Hamlets Partnership Crime and Drug 
Reduction Strategy  

Emily Fieran – Reed x 0248 

 

Page 45



 2 

 
2.2 Recommend to Full Council that the Director of Communities Localities & Culture 

be authorised to: 
 

(a) Consider any representations received to the consultation referred to in 2.1 
above. 

(b) Approve the making of the proposed Drinking Control Zone for the area 
indicated on the plans attached as Appendix A. 

(c) Consider the inclusion of any additional areas within the Drinking Control 
Zone, referred to above, identified during the consultation as appropriate for 
such inclusion.  

 
 

3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 As part of the Council’s strategy to deal with street drinking and the associated 

anti-social behaviour two Drinking Control Zones were introduced, one in 
Whitechapel and one in Bethnal Green (Museum Gardens and Bethnal Green 
Gardens) in August 2006.  

 
3.2 The current Grade 1 listed church of St Leonard’s in Shoreditch dates from about 

1740, although there has been a church on this site since Saxon times. The 
church being famous for the nursery rhyme Oranges and Lemons – “When I grow 
rich, say the bells of Shoreditch” , is also noted as being the resting place of many 
actors from Shakespeare’s time, when the area hosted England’s first purpose 
built playhouse. 

 
3.3 St Leonard’s continues to be a place of worship and is a significant focal point for 

the local community within this historically rich and culturally vibrant area. The 
surrounding church yard is now a public park and is in constant use as a place of 
recreation by both Hackney and Tower Hamlets residents and visitors to both 
boroughs.  

 
3.4 At the other end of Calvert Avenue there is Arnold Circus which encircles a Grade 

1 listed bandstand, which is the centrepiece of the nearby Boundary Estate. It 
comprises a central garden and bandstand, which is now preserved by English 
Heritage and subject to a substantial regeneration project by Parks and Open 
Spaces. 

 
3.5 Recently residents and local businesses have expressed their concerns regarding 

alcohol related anti-social behaviour in the area around St Leonard’s Church, 
Calvert Avenue and Arnold Circus. Particularly an increase in the number of 
incidents in relation to the churchyard and bandstand areas. 

 
3.6 There have been recent incidents identified by the Community Safety Services 

ASB disorder Patrols of groups of youths congregating in Calvert Avenue and the 
band stand in Arnold circus causing nuisance and disorder. They were clearly 

Page 46



 3 

under the influence of alcohol. Their behaviour included making an excess noise, 
pushing and shoving each other and spitting. The youth are congregating in 
groups of up to seven at a time. One arrest was made on 27 February 2009. 

 
3.7 Information received from LB Hackney concur with the findings of LB Tower 

Hamlets that street drinking is a significant contributor to ASB in the local area. 
With a large number of incidents recorded between October 2007 and September 
2008 being linked to excessive consumption of alcohol.  

 
3.8 In addition to the recorded 999 calls during this period there have been increasing 

complaints from residents and businesses in regard to the rising levels of alcohol 
related ASB. The data in table 1 below shows that in the relevant period, there 
were 457 incidents in the immediate area. The criteria for selection were any call 
relating to violence, noise, hate crime or anti-social behaviour. This activity peaks 
in the summer months between the hours of 9.00pm and 3.00am. 

 
Table 1                                
CADMIS (999) Call Type 1st October 2007 to 30th 

September 2008 
% of Total 

Violence against the person                204       44.6 
Rowdy / inconsiderate 
behaviour 

              141       30.8 
Criminal Damage                 43         9.5 
Robbery                 27         5.9 
Street Drinking                 17         3.7 
Other 
 

                25         5.5 
Totals                457        100 
 
3.9 Further research shows that within the proposed DCZ boundary area there was a 

heavy concentration of 180 crimes between 1st April 2008 and 31st August 2008. 
More than 50% of these consisted of allegations of Theft (27%), Drug Possession 
(19%) and Pick- pocketing (6%). In the same period there were 149 calls to the 
police directly relating to ASB, including begging/ vagrancy issues, street drinking, 
noise, prostitution, substance misuse and rowdy / inconsiderate behaviour. 

 
3.10 Whist the table shows street drinking complaints to comprise only 3.7% of the 

total offences relating directly to the consumption of alcohol within this area are 
known to be under reported. Many are alcohol related, especially the reports of 
ASB, street drunkenness, begging, noise nuisance and criminal damage. This is 
not always recorded on the police CRIS crime reporting system.    

 
3.11 The precise nature and numbers of street drinkers in the area tends to vary. To 

better understand this and to examine the work already undertaken with this 
group further research is being undertaken by the Spitalfields Crypt Trust.  The 
Trust is a charity based at the junction of Calvert Avenue and Shoreditch High 

Page 47



 4 

Street that regularly conducts outreach work with the street drinkers. The Trust 
offers education and training whilst helping service users to address their 
addictions to alcohol and substance misuse. 

 
3.12  In addition to this service the Tower Hamlets Drug and Alcohol Action Team 

(DAAT) will be providing an extra outreach worker to work along side the Trust 
and Community Safety Operations Team to encourage street drinkers to build 
links in the community and engage with support services to enable them to move 
away from the street lifestyle  

 
 
4 Proposed Drinking Control Zone 
 
4.1 Both the London Borough of Tower Hamlets and the London Borough of Hackney 

are keen to work in partnership to find solutions to these alcohol related 
problems, looking at ways of tackling them as part of a wider programme of work 
that includes joint police patrols in the area, and outreach and counselling 
programmes working with street drinkers. 

 
4.2 The Drinking Control Zone is defined under a Designated Public Place Order 

(DPPO) which grants Police Officers and Police Community Support Officers (and 
Generic Enforcement Officers under the Community Safety Accreditation 
Scheme) the power to seize and confiscate alcohol being consumed in a 
designated area by persons acting in an anti-social manner. Offenders who fail to 
comply may be prosecuted or issued a fixed penalty notice. 

 
4.3 Designated Public Place Orders are made by local authorities using powers 

under section 13 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 as amended by 
section 26 of the Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 and the Local Authorities 
(Alcohol Consumption in Designated Public Places) Regulations 2007. 

 
4.4 Any such designated public place is one where the local authority is satisfied that 

nuisance, annoyance or disorder is associated with the consumption of 
intoxicating liquor in the area.   

 
4.5 In order to make such a designation, a statutory consultation process must be 

undertaken, taking into account any research and recent complaints and have 
due regard to the representations of the police, Community Safety Services and 
the local Safer Neighbourhood Teams.  

 
4.5 The proposed area for the Drinking Control Zone includes the churchyard 

surrounding St Leonard’s Church, Boundary Street, Calvert Avenue, Austin 
Street, Virginia road, Hocker Street and Arnold Circus (including Boundary 
Gardens and bandstand.  

 
4.7 The effect of this proposal would be to control alcohol consumption in the 

designated public place and provide the Police and Tower Hamlets Enforcement 

Page 48



 5 

Officers with additional powers to deal with ant-social behaviour and unruly 
individuals who drink alcohol in the streets, park, gardens and bandstand.  

 
4.8 The process for implementing a Drinking Control Zone requires that local 

consultation be undertaken with both the public and affected businesses being 
given the opportunity to comment on the proposal. Newspaper advertisements 
will publicise the intended measures and will offer the opportunity for further 
comment. All households in the area have been sent an information leaflet. 

 
4.9 The regulations of the CJPA require the licensees of all premises selling alcohol 

within any proposed control zone to be consulted. A formal notice of consultation 
will be placed in East End life. 

 
4.10 If, following formal consultation, the Drinking Control Zone is adopted, there will 

be an obligation to announce the area affected and the commencement date. 
This will be managed by the delivery of an information leaflet to every home and 
business in and around the zone and by a formal notice in East End Life.     

 
4.11 Table 2 below details an estimated cost of the consultation and implementation of 

the proposed zone. 
 
Table 2  

Newspaper Advertising £7,500 
Signage for the Zone £1,500 
Leaflet Campaign (consultation) £1,000 
Leaflet Campaign (launch) £1,000 
Total £11,000 

 
4.12 All costs are non-recurrent and will be met from within the Community Safety 

Services existing budgets. The enforcement of the zone will be met within existing 
police and partnership budgets. 

 
 
5 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
5.1 No specific financial implications emanate from this report with the exception of 

costs associated with consultation and advertising, which are detailed in 
paragraph 4.11, and will be met from within approved Community Safety Services 
Budgets in 2009/10. 

 
 
6 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
6.1. The Council has power under the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 (“CJPA”) 

to make an order designating a part of the Borough as a “public place” and to 
control the drinking of alcohol in the designated public place. This is generally 

Page 49



 6 

referred to as a drinking control zone (“a DCZ”). A DCZ works by giving the police 
powers to request a person who is within the DCZ either not to consume alcohol 
within his or her possession or to surrender that alcohol to the officer. Criminal 
liability will only arise in the event of failure to comply. 

 
6.2. The making of an order designating a DCZ is a non-executive function that falls 

within the responsibility of Full Council under the Council’s Constitution. It is, 
however, open to Cabinet to provide an endorsement of the proposed order to 
Full Council if it chooses. 

 
6.3. The Council can only consider making a DCZ where it is satisfied that either 

nuisance or annoyance is being caused to members of the public or a section of 
the public or disorder has been associated with the consumption of alcohol in that 
place. The Council should also be satisfied that the making of the DCZ is both 
necessary and proportionate, having regard to its obligations under the Human 
Rights Act 1998. The DCZ should be necessary, achieve a fair balance and not 
go beyond what is strictly necessary to achieve the purpose involved. 

 
6.4. The Local Authorities (Alcohol Consumption in Designated Public Places) 

Regulations 2001 specify procedural steps that the Council must take before 
making an order and also for the order to take effect. These include requirements 
for consultation which have been complied with.  There is a requirement for 
publication of notice of the order which will have to be carried out. 

 
 
7 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
7.1 The provision of a Drinking Control zone in the Arnold Circus area involves 

actively engaging the communities through consultation and has been proposed 
as a result of the very positive feedback from the local communities for the 
initiative.  

 
 
8 SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
8.1 Complaints about street drinkers include references to littering and their use of 

doorways, alleyways and open spaces for urination and defecation. Controlling 
alcohol consumption will reduce the amount of litter and create a more welcoming 
environment. 

 
8.2 Any zone established under the CJPA must have ‘adequate’ signage. The 

majority of signs will be displayed on the streets and open spaces with the 
remainder deployed in the bandstand and churchyard areas. Every effort will be 
taken to ensure that the signage is effective while not overly obtrusive.  

 
 
 

Page 50



 7 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The key risks associated with this proposal are set out below. The mitigating 

action associated with each risk is designed to ensure successful outcomes.  
(a) Consultation does not support the proposal: a strong case has been made on 

the basis of evidence and stakeholder consultation. The point of formal 
consultation is to check against community views, but the initial work 
indicates that the proposal will be welcome. 

(b) The DCZ is not effectively implemented: close partnership working, building 
on the experience of the other DCZ’s in the borough will ensure effective 
implementation. The introduction of the Borough’s THEO’s will provide 
additional enforcement. All activity will be monitored through the partnership 
structure. 

(c) The DCZ is not effective in tackling the negative impact of street drinking: 
work on the other zones has helped to prove the effectiveness of this strategy 
and will be monitored. 

(a) The DCZ results in displacement: this will be carefully monitored and 
contingency plans, which could include proposing an extension of the zone, 
implemented as necessary,  

(e) The DCZ will also contribute to ensuring that the Council meets the targets 
set in the National Indicators: 
� NI 41 – Perceptions of drunk or rowdy behaviour as a problem 
� NI 27– Understanding the local concerns about anti-social behaviour and 

crime by the local community. 
� NI17 -   Perceptions of anti-social behaviour. 
� NI21 – Perceptions that the Police and Local Authority are dealing with 

crime and anti-social behaviour 
 
 
10 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
10.1 The partnership approach with LB Hackney will act as a deterrent to rowdy 

drunken behaviour and general anti-social behaviour as a result of consuming 
alcohol by increasing the enforcement powers available to deal with these issues 
in the area.   

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Map of the proposed Drinking Control Zone. 

Page 51



 8 

Appendix 1 – Map of the proposed Drinking Control Zone. 
 

Page 52



LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE CABINET 
 

10 JUNE 2009 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 10 June 
2009. 
 
 
The Members who attended our meeting were: -  
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Chair)  (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Vice-Chair)  (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed (Lead Member, Culture and Leisure) 
Councillor Anwara Ali (Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Marc Francis (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Rania Khan (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman (Lead Member, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
Other Members present: - 
 
Councillor Shahed Ali 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group and Scrutiny 

Lead Member: A Healthy Community) 
Councillor Peter Golds (Leader of the Conservative Group) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Chair Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan 
Councillor Abjol Miah (Leader of the Respect Group) 
Councillor Muhammad Abdullah Salique 
 
 
1. Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12: Year 1 Action Plan; and Outline Plan 

(CAB 004/090)  
 

Our Councillor Rofique U. Ahmed declared a personal interest in Agenda 
item 12.1 “Strategic Plan 2009/10 – 2011/12: Year 1 Action Plan; and Outline 
Plan”. The declaration of interest was made on the basis that the report 
contained recommendations relating to the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic 
Games and Councillor Ahmed was a Board Member - Olympic Delivery 
Authority - Planning Decision Team. 
 
Our Councillor Abdul Asad declared a personal interest in Agenda item 12.1 
“Strategic Plan 2009/10 – 2011/12: Year 1 Action Plan; and Outline Plan”. 
The declaration of interest was made on the basis that the report contained 

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 53



recommendations relating to the delivery of the Children and Young People’s 
Plan including Youth Service provision and Councillor Asad currently 
received remuneration from Bishop Challoner School in relation to its Youth 
Service provision. 

 
We considered a report (attached as Appendix A to this council report) which 
informed us that: - 
� It contained the Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan and 

Outline Plan. 
� This year’s Strategic Plan was structured as follows: 

o An Outline Plan with sections for each of the Community Plan 
themes and priorities, key progress measures as well as the 
strategic activities this Council would deliver in the coming year. 

o The Year 1 Action Plan which detailed the milestones, lead 
members and officers for each of the strategic activities; and 
included tables of recent performance and future targets relating 
to this Council’s Strategic Indicators. 

• The Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan was attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report (CAB 004/090) before us;and the Outline Plan 
attached at Appendix 2. 

 
Our Councillor O. Ahmed, Lead Member Resources and Performance, at the 
request of our Chair, in introducing the report, summarised the salient points 
contained therein commenting that: 
• This Authority had a key role to play in delivering the Community Plan 

2020 vision working with partners and the local community. It had 
consequently identified a number of key priorities for its Strategic Plan, 
which directly reflected this Borough’s Community Plan priorities, and 
these were grouped under each of the five Community Plan themes. 
These key priorities for action would provide the focus for service 
delivery in the period to March 2010. 

• The Strategic Plan also specified the key targets this Council expected 
to achieve against these priorities by March 2010 and set out the key 
initiatives which this Council would undertake in 2009/10 to deliver 
these targets. In total seventy three activities were prioritised. Each 
Directorate and each service would also develop more detailed action 
plans demonstrating how they would contribute at an operational level 
to delivery of the targets. 

• The Outline Plan set out key priorities, strategic activities and key 
progress measures for the coming year. The Year 1 Action Plan 
detailed milestones, Lead Members and Officers for each strategic 
activity; and tables of recent performance and future targets relating to 
the Council’s Strategic Indicators. 

• Monitoring of the Strategic Plan would be undertaken by our Corporate 
Management Team, Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny 

Page 54



Committee with performance against the strategic performance targets 
within the Plan reported  every two months in the Tower Hamlets Index 
report and updates on progress on the strategic activities at the mid 
year and end of year point. 

 
A discussion followed, during which the Strategic Plan 2009/10 to 2011/12 
Year 1 Action Plan and Outline Plan was broadly welcomed. The following 
points were also made:- 
• With reference to Appendix 1 ‘Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 2009/10 – 

2011/12 Year 1 Action Plan, One Tower Hamlets, Strategic Action 3 
‘Achieve a reduction in the Council’s reliance on Agency Staff’ and 
associated key initiative “Heads of HR to review and identify ways in 
which their directorate can reduce agency spend. Proposals by April 
2009” :clarification was sought as to the value for money of such 
expenditure in the context of assisting our local community to secure 
employment. 

• Our Councillor O. Ahmed, Lead Member Resources and Performance, 
responded by assuring us that he was committed to achieving an 
overall reduction of 50% in agency staff in 2009/10 alongside staff 
development and recruitment of local people, and assured us that Our 
Human Resources Department were working towards this target. We 
noted that such a target did not need to be limited to this Council as 
the commitment to a workforce to reflect the community was part of 
the shared partnership vision. 

• Noting that numbers of agency staff had reduced over the last year but 
not sufficiently, the assurance from our Lead Member was welcomed; 
however clarification was sought as to whether the overall 50% 
reduction referred to expenditure or staff numbers. 

• Our Corporate Director Resources, Mr Naylor, responded that our 
Human Resources Department were working with directorates to work 
out the details of the reduction target and this Authority was close to 
meeting this with some directorates such as Resources and 
Development and Renewal already achieving this. The target being 
worked towards was a 50% reduction in the numbers of agency staff 
by the end of 2009/10. It was unlikely that expenditure on agency staff 
would be similarly reduced in this period due timing differences, 
however the reduction in expenditure would catch up because of the 
reduced numbers of agency staff at the start of 2010/11. Our 
Corporate Director Resources, Mr Naylor, suggested that it would be 
helpful to include the target and milestones for a reduction in agency 
staff within the Strategic Plan once these had been agreed with 
appropriate lead members and chief officers. The strong performance 
monitoring framework for the Strategic Plan, recognised in the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment, was also noted in this 
context. 

Page 55



• Our Deputy Chief Executive, Mr Collins, suggested that a detailed 
discussion of this matter at our meeting was not necessary, and that 
following discussion with appropriate Lead Members and Chief 
Officers, proposed agency staff targets and milestones for inclusion in 
the Strategic Plan, could be reported back to us. 

• Comment that in the context of the electoral progress made by the far 
right in the recent European and Local Government Elections, the 
vision of a workforce to reflect the community strongly embraced by 
this Council, its partners and the local community was something to be 
proud of. Hope was expressed that work would continue, as indicated 
in the key priorities and strategic activities within the Strategic Plan 
[Year 1 Action Plan, One Tower Hamlets, Strategic Action 4 ‘Develop 
the Workforce Plan and Implement the Workforce to Reflect the 
Community Year 1 Action Plan’], to achieve the delivery of this vision. 

• Our Councillor Lutfur Rahman, Leader of the Council, was thanked for 
his Leadership and consequent progress in recent months in achieving 
a Workforce to Reflect the Community. It was noted that this 
Authority’s Senior Management Team was now more reflective of the 
Borough’s demographic composition and recruitment of BME staff at 
other levels had significantly improved over recent months. 

• Speaking with our consent our Councillor Eaton, Leader of the Liberal 
Democrat Group, endorsed the aspiration of a workforce to reflect the 
community and welcomed related workforce targets and also recent 
initiatives which would promote progress in this area, such as the 
‘women into councillors project’ and the election of a Young Mayor. 
However our Councillor Eaton also expressed the view that a Cabinet 
which better reflected the demographic composition of the Borough in 
terms of gender would be a positive step. 

• With reference to Appendix 1 ‘Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 2009/10 - 
2011/12 Year 1 Action Plan, Great Place to Live ,it was noted that 
good progress was being made in relation to the key priority of 
reducing overcrowding and associated housing related key targets and 
initiatives were on track to be achieved in 2009/10. 

• With reference to Appendix 1 ‘Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 2009/10 - 
2011/12 Year 1 Action Plan, page 3, noting the statements in relation 
to tackling worklessness that : 
o Our young people will learn from the best teachers and 

successfully gain qualifications that allow them to pursue their 
career goals. 

o Taking advantage of the 2012 Olympic Games and its legacy 
clarification/ assurance was sought and given in relation to plans to 
incorporate the use of skills and take up of opportunities of the 
Olympics in respect of 600 graduates. We noted that the work of a 
recent scrutiny review on graduate employment and unemployment 
might inform any related initiatives. 

Page 56



• With reference to Appendix 1 ‘Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 2009/10 – 
2011/12 Year 1 Action Plan, Great Place to Live, Strategic Action 21 
‘Develop and implement the Victoria Park Master Plan to improve the 
quality, safety and usability of the Park and restore the heritage 
landscape’, clarification was sought and given regarding progress. 

• With reference to Appendix 1 ‘Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan 2009/10 – 
2011/12 Year 1 Action Plan, Great Place to Live, Strategic Action 16 
‘Reshape major estate renewal projects with key partner’, requested 
that the Lead Member for the key initiative of ‘Cottall Street second 
stage design/business planning feasibility’ be revised to indicate our 
Lead Member Housing and Development. 

 
Our Chair then Moved the recommendations as set out in the report before 
us (taking account of the advice of our Deputy Chief Executive). 

 
We endorsed, subject to (a) below, this Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-
11/12: Year 1 Action Plan, attached at Appendix 1 to the report (CAB 
004/090) before us, and the Outline Plan, attached at Appendix 2; and 
agreed that Council be recommended to approve both the Year 1 Action Plan 
and the Outline Plan. 

 
(a) That, following discussion with appropriate Lead Members and 

Chief Officers, proposed agency staff targets and milestones for 
inclusion in the Strategic Plan, be reported back to Cabinet. 

 
We authorised our Chief Executive to make appropriate and necessary 
amendments to the Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan and the 
Outline Plan prior to publication.  

 
We therefore recommend Council to: - 
 
1. Approve both the Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action 

Plan, attached at Appendix 1 to the report (CAB 004/090) (Attached at 
Appendix A to this Council report), and the Outline Plan, attached at 
Appendix 2. 

 
2. Authorise the Chief Executive to make appropriate and necessary 

amendments to the Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan 
and the Outline Plan prior to publication.  

 
 

Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Chair of the Cabinet 

 

Page 57



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 

REPORT 
 

Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Cabinet Agenda – 10/06/09  Angus Taylor 
Record of decisions  020 7364 4333  
Cabinet Meeting 10/06/09 
Draft Cabinet minutes  
10/06/09. 
 

Page 58



APPENDIX A 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
10th June 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Jon Underwood, Acting Head of Strategy 
and Performance 
 

Title:  
 
Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan; 
and Outline Plan 
 
Wards Affected:  
 
All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides members with the Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 

Action Plan and Outline Plan 
 
1.2 This year’s Strategic Plan is structured as follows: 

� An Outline Plan with sections for each of the Community Plan themes and 
priorities, key progress measures as well as the strategic activities the 
Council will deliver in the coming year 

� The Year 1 Action Plan which details the milestones, lead members and 
officers for each of the strategic activities; and includes tables of recent 
performance and future targets relating to the Council’s Strategic Indicators  

 
1.3 The Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan is included as Appendix 1. 

The Outline Plan is included as Appendix 2. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Endorse the Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan and the 

Outline Plan; and recommend the approval of these plans to Full Council 
 
2.2 That the Chief Executive be authorised to make appropriate and necessary 

amendments to the Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan and the 
Outline Plan prior to publication 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Strategic Plan is the Council’s core planning document, setting out the 

Council's vision for Tower Hamlets and its contribution to delivering the 
Community Plan on an annual basis. The publication of the Community Plan 

Page 59



and refresh of the Local Area Agreement have also provided an opportunity to 
more fundamentally review the Council’s Strategic Plan ahead of its 2011/12 
proposed end date 

 
3.2 The need to review the Strategic Plan has provided an opportunity to make 

some improvements to the structure of the plan itself, in particular to provide a 
more useful focus on key strategic priorities which require corporate focus and 
monitoring. The aim has been to develop a more streamlined Strategic Plan, 
underpinned by comprehensive Directorate and Service Plans. 

 
3.3 To this end, Council Directorates have identified their key initiatives for the 

coming year to demonstrate how they will contribute to the delivery of 
Community Plan priorities. 

 
3.4 A full final draft of the Strategic Plan will be considered by Full Council in July 
 
4. TIMESCALE 
 
4.1 The Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan and Outline Plan has been 

reported to Scrutiny and will be reported to Full Council in accordance with the 
schedule detailed below: 

 
Action Timescale 
Full Plan to OSC 9th June 
Full Plan to Cabinet  10th June 
Full Plan to Full Council 15th July 

 
5.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 
 
5.1  The Monitoring and evaluation of the Strategic Plan will be undertaken by the 

Corporate Management Team (CMT), Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Progress against the Strategic performance targets within the Plan 
will be reported to CMT and Cabinet Members at two-monthly intervals in the 
Tower Hamlets Index report and progress updates on the strategic activities in 
the Plan will be undertaken at mid and end year.  
 

 
6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
6.1 The Strategic Plan is the council’s core planning document and this report sets 

out the actions planned for the period 2009/10 to 2011/12.  The Council’s specific 
targets and deadlines are itemised in Appendix 1 under each of the Council’s five 
Strategic Priorities. The plan sets out a framework for allocating and directing 
financial resources for the year ahead and for the medium term, to ensure that 
resources are aligned with those priorities 

Page 60



6.2 The Council considered and agreed its Budget and agreed the Council Tax for 
2009/10 at its meeting on 4 March 2009.  The work programme set out in the 
Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12 is reflected in that budget both for the Council as 
a whole and for each directorate.  This report has no other financial implications. 

6.3 In the event that during the implementation of individual projects and schemes 
throughout the year further financial implications arise outside the current budget 
provision, officers are obliged to seek the appropriate financial approval before 
further financial commitments are made. 

 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
7.1  In accordance with its obligation under section 4 of the Local Government Act 

2000, the Council has, in partnership, prepared the Community Plan, which sets 
out its strategy for promoting or improving the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of Tower Hamlets.  It is entirely consistent with the 
preparation of that overarching strategy, that the Council should adopt a plan for 
delivering on the targets contained in the Community Plan. 

7.2 There may be a variety of statutory powers that underpin the actions in the 
strategic plan, but by virtue of the direct links with the Community Plan, it is 
possible to justify them by reference to the well-being power in section 2 of the 
Local Government Act 2000 pursuant to which the Council may do anything 
which it considers likely to achieve promotion of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets or all or any 
people resident or present in Tower Hamlets. 

7.3  Further, section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires best value 
authorities, including the Council, to “make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  The development of the 
actions in the strategic plan, together with their delivery and subsequent 
monitoring will contribute to the way in which the best value duty can be fulfilled.  
Monitoring reports to members and actions arising from those reports will 
demonstrate that the Council has undertaken activity to satisfy the statutory duty.  

 
8. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1  The Council’s Strategic Plan is focused upon meeting the needs of the diverse 

communities living in Tower Hamlets and supporting delivery of One Tower 
Hamlets. In particular, plan priorities include the reduction of inequalities and the 
fostering of strong community cohesion and are supported by a variety of 
strategic activities. 

 
 
 

Page 61



9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
9.1 The Year 1 Action Plan also contains key initiatives which support the priority of 

improving the environment and tackling climate change 
 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Prioritising key activities, to ensure understanding of and focus on what is 

absolutely critical within the Strategic Plan was the major feature of the strategic 
planning awayday that took place on 31st January. To support this prioritisation 
process a target has been set which limits the number of key activities in the 
Strategic Plan.  This provides clarity to staff and local people about what matters 
to the Council, and also provides a manageable set of strategic activities for 
Cabinet and CMT to monitor throughout the year to ensure we deliver. 

 
10.2 In prioritising strategic activities it is important to consider the following criteria: 

• Impact – those initiatives and/or projects which are most business critical in 
terms of their potential impact on our resources and reputation; and 

• Likelihood – those initiatives which are aiming to deliver the most significant 
change or improvement to outcomes in year 1 of the Strategic Plan 2009/10-
11/12. 

 
11. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
  
11.1  One of the priorities of the Year 1 Action Plan is to work efficiently and effectively 

as One Council, a priority that is supported by a range of strategic activities 
contained within the plan 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of  “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of  “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

No background papers used  
 
 
12. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 1 Action Plan 
 
Appendix 2 – Outline Plan 

Page 62



1 

To
we

r H
am

let
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n 2
00

9/1
0-

20
11

/12
 

    
Ye

ar 
1 A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 20
09

/10
 

Page 63



2 

Co
nte

nts
: 

 Se
cti

on
 1  

Ou
r V

isi
on

 
Se

cti
on

 2  
To

we
r H

am
let

s –
 Th

e S
tor

y S
o F

ar 
 

Se
cti

on
 3  

Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
nd

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 R

ole
 

Se
cti

on
 4  

Ye
ar 

1 A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 20

09
/10

 
Se

cti
on

 5  
Me

as
ur

ing
 Pr

og
res

s a
nd

 Se
ttin

g T
arg

ets
 

Se
cti

on
 6 

 
Us

e o
f R

es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 D

ata
 Q

ua
lity

 

 
 

Page 64



3 

1. 
Ou

r V
isi

on
: T

he
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 20

20
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 vi

sio
n, 

de
ve

lop
ed

 in
 th

e C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 20
20

, 
an

d t
o b

e a
ch

iev
ed

 w
ith

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
an

d w
ith

 th
e a

cti
ve

 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

f a
ll t

ho
se

 w
ith

 a 
sta

ke
 in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h, 
is 

to 
im
pro

ve
 th
e q

ua
lity
 of
 lif
e f
or 
ev
ery

on
e w

ho
 liv
es
 an

d w
ork

s i
n 

the
 bo

rou
gh
. 

 Th
is 

is 
ou

r h
ea

dli
ne

 vi
sio

n f
or 

To
we

r H
am

let
s i

n 2
02

0. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 fu

rth
er 

de
ve

lop
ed

 ou
r V

isio
n a

rou
nd

 fo
ur 

the
me

s t
ha

t 
ca

ptu
re 

the
 ke

y i
ss

ue
s o

f im
po

rta
nc

e t
o l

oc
al 

pe
op

le 
an

d 
pa

rtn
ers

. U
nd

erp
inn

ing
 th

e V
isio

n i
s t

he
 de

sir
e t

o b
uil

d O
ne
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s –

 a 
bo

rou
gh

 w
he

re 
ev

ery
on

e f
ee

ls 
the

y h
av

e 
an

 eq
ua

l s
tak

e a
nd

 st
atu

s; 
wh

ere
 pe

op
le 

fee
l th

ey
 ha

ve
 th

e 
sa

me
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 as
 th

eir
 ne

igh
bo

urs
, w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 a 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 to

 co
ntr

ibu
te;

 an
d w

he
re 

fam
ilie

s a
re 

the
 

co
rne

rst
on

e o
f s

uc
ce

ss
. 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i

s a
 pl

ac
e w

ith
 im

me
ns

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
po

sit
ive

 ch
an

ge
, o

pp
ort

un
itie

s t
ha

t c
an

 be
 us

ed
 to

 br
ing

 ab
ou

t 
the

 m
an

y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

loc
al 

pe
op

le 
wa

nt 
an

d d
es

erv
e. 

A 
foc

us
 on

 su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 is

 es
se

nti
al 

so
 th

at 
ou

r a
cti

on
s a

re 
en

vir
on

me
nta

lly 
co

ns
ide

rat
e a

nd
 lo

ng
-la

sti
ng

 fo
r fu

tur
e 

ge
ne

rat
ion

s. 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 af

for
da

ble
 ho

us
ing

 pr
ov

isio
n m

us
t b

e 
inc

rea
se

d a
nd

 co
mm

un
itie

s b
ett

er 
co

nn
ec

ted
 th

rou
gh

 
im

pro
ve

d t
ran

sp
ort

 ne
tw

ork
s, 

an
d s

up
po

rte
d t

hro
ug

h m
ore

 

an
d b

ett
er 

co
mm

un
ity

 fa
cili

tie
s. 

Th
e s

ha
red

 vi
sio

n i
s o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 be
ing

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
. 

 Ov
er 

rec
en

t y
ea

rs,
 To

we
r H

am
let

s h
as

 be
en

 on
e o

f th
e 

big
ge

st 
ec

on
om

ic 
su

cc
es

s s
tor

ies
 in

 th
e c

ou
ntr

y, 
in 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

ec
on

om
ic 

clim
ate

 ho
we

ve
r it

 is
 im

pe
rat

ive
 th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d i

ts 
pa

rtn
ers

 en
su

re 
tha

t s
up

po
rt f

or 
loc

al 
en

ter
pri

se
 an

d 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

, w
ith

 bo
th 

lar
ge

 an
d s

ma
ll b

us
ine

ss
es

, 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 tra

ns
lat

ed
 in

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
nd

 
tha

t lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 ha

ve
 th

e s
kill

s a
nd

 tra
ini

ng
 ne

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 
ad

va
nta

ge
 of

 th
em

. T
ac

klin
g t

he
 pr

ob
lem

 of
 w

ork
les

sn
es

s, 
wh

ich
 is

 w
ide

sp
rea

d i
n m

an
y o

f o
ur 

co
mm

un
itie

s, 
is 

a k
ey

 
pri

ori
ty 

for
 To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
Ou

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

wil
l le

arn
 fro

m 
the

 be
st 

tea
ch

ers
 an

d s
uc

ce
ss

ful
ly 

ga
in 

qu
ali

fic
ati

on
s t

ha
t 

all
ow

 th
em

 to
 pu

rsu
e t

he
ir c

are
er 

go
als

. T
ak

ing
 ad

va
nta

ge
 of

 
the

 20
12

 O
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 an
d i

ts 
leg

ac
y, 

To
we

r H
am

let
s w

ill 
be

 re
co

gn
ise

d a
s a

 pl
ac

e w
ith

 hi
gh

ly 
sk

ille
d a

mb
itio

us
 

co
mm

un
itie

s, 
wh

ere
 en

tre
pre

ne
urs

hip
 an

d l
oc

al 
en

ter
pri

se
 is

 
su

cc
es

sfu
l. T

he
 sh

are
d v

isio
n i

s o
f A
 Pr

os
pe
ro
us
 

Co
mm

un
ity
. 

 By
 20

20
 cr

im
e a

nd
 an

tis
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
wil

l b
e g

rea
tly

 
red

uc
ed

 in
 ou

r n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s s
o t

ha
t a

ll r
es

ide
nts

 an
d 

vis
ito

rs,
 yo

un
g a

nd
 ol

d, 
fee

l s
afe

 an
d c

on
fid

en
t in

 th
eir

 ho
me

s 
an

d o
n t

he
 st

ree
ts 

of 
To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
 Ev

ery
on

e w
ill h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 qu
ali

ty 
su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t e

na
ble

 th
em

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 
the

ir p
ote

nti
al 

in 
life

. C
ho

ice
 w

ill b
e i

nte
gra

l to
 th

es
e s

erv
ice

s, 
so

 in
div

idu
als

 re
ce

ive
 ca

re 
in 

the
 w

ay
 th

ey
 w

an
t a

nd
 ne

ed
. 

Page 65



4 

Th
es

e s
up

po
rt s

erv
ice

s w
ill e

ns
ure

 ev
ery

on
e, 

an
d p

art
icu

lar
ly 

the
 vu

lne
rab

le,
 ar

e p
rot

ec
ted

 fro
m 

ris
k o

f h
arm

 an
d s

up
po

rte
d 

to 
live

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 em

po
we

red
 liv

es
. E

arl
y i

nte
rve

nti
on

 
an

d w
ho

le-
fam

ily 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ap

pro
ac

he
s t

o i
ss

ue
s o

f 
co

mm
un

ity
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
es

e i
ss

ue
s a

re 
tac

kle
d h

oli
sti

ca
lly.

 Th
e s

ha
red

 vi
sio

n i
s o

f A
 Sa

fe 
an
d 

Su
pp
or
tiv
e C

om
mu

nit
y. 

 Lo
ca

l re
sid

en
ts 

wil
l liv

e l
on

g a
nd

 fu
lfill

ed
 liv

es
, a

wa
re 

of 
ho

w 
the

ir l
ife

sty
le 

ch
oic

es
 af

fec
t th

eir
 ow

n a
nd

 th
eir

 fa
mi

ly’s
 he

alt
h 

an
d w

ell
be

ing
. A

ll w
ill b

e a
ble

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
he

alt
h 

an
d s

oc
ial

 ca
re 

in 
the

ir c
om

mu
nit

ies
. H

ea
lth

 ca
re 

wil
l fo

cu
s o

n 
he

alt
h p

rom
oti

on
 an

d p
rev

en
tio

n a
s f

ew
er 

res
ide

nts
 w

ill n
ee

d 
ac

ute
 lo

ng
-tim

e c
are

 fo
r a

vo
ida

ble
 he

alt
h c

on
ce

rns
. O

ur 
sh

are
d v

isio
n i

s o
f A
 H
ea
lth
y C

om
mu

nit
y. 

 Lo
ca

l A
rea

 A
gr

ee
me

nt 
 To

 tu
rn 

ou
r v

isio
n i

nto
 re

ali
ty,

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
ha

ve
 ag

ree
d a

 se
t o

f p
rio

rity
 ta

rge
ts 

wh
ich

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
wil

l 
wo

rk 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 ov

er 
the

 co
mi

ng
 ye

ars
. T

he
se

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
ne

go
tia

ted
 an

d a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 na

tio
na

l g
ov

ern
me

nt 
in 

ou
r L

oc
al 

Ar
ea

 Ag
ree

me
nt.

 Th
e a

cti
on

 pr
ior

itie
s s

et 
ou

t in
 th

e L
AA

 w
ere

 
arr

ive
d a

t th
rou

gh
 ex

ten
siv

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n t

hro
ug

h t
he

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, a

nd
 ar

e i
nte

nd
ed

 to
 de

live
r th

e a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 w

ith
in 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 vi

sio
n. 

Th
es

e p
rov

ide
 th

e f
ou

nd
ati

on
 fo

r 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 

pri
ori

tie
s s

et 
ou

t in
 th

is 
do

cu
me

nt.
  A

ll 
Lo

ca
l A

rea
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
tar

ge
ts 

are
 in

clu
de

d a
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Ind

ica
tor

s w
ith

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n. 

  

Page 66



5 

2. 
To

we
r H

am
let

s C
on

tex
t –

 th
e s

tor
y s

o f
ar 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n w
ill b

e d
eli

ve
red

 in
 th

e c
on

tex
t o

f 
a f

as
t-c

ha
ng

ing
 Bo

rou
gh

. T
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e h
as

 al
ter

ed
 va

stl
y 

ov
er 

rec
en

t y
ea

rs.
 Th

e p
op

ula
tio

n h
as

 gr
ow

n a
nd

 di
ve

rsi
fie

d. 
Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 is
 pr

ep
ari

ng
 to

 ho
st 

the
 20

12
 O

lym
pic

 an
d 

Pa
ral

ym
pic

 G
am

es
 - a

nd
 ne

w 
loc

al 
an

d n
ati

on
al 

pri
ori

tie
s 

ha
ve

 em
erg

ed
.   

 At 
the

 sa
me

 tim
e, 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

inv
es

tm
en

t in
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

se
rvi

ce
s i

s c
on

tin
uin

g t
o i

mp
ac

t o
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
life

. 
 In 

20
08

/09
 th

ere
 w

as
 a 

21
% 

red
uc

tio
n i

n a
cq

uis
itiv

e c
rim

e, 
ov

er 
2½

 tim
es

 th
e M

et 
av

era
ge

, d
ue

 to
 si

gn
ific

an
t C

ou
nc

il 
inv

es
tm

en
t a

nd
 st

ron
g p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wo
rki

ng
. A

lso
 th

ere
 ha

s 
be

en
 a 

25
% 

dro
p i

n y
ou

th 
vio

len
ce

 ac
hie

ve
d b

y h
arn

es
sin

g 
the

 ad
de

d v
alu

e o
f e

ffe
cti

ve
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

 to
 fo

cu
s o

n 
ea

rly
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

 an
d t

arg
eti

ng
 sh

are
d r

es
ou

rce
s. 

 
Th

ere
 ha

s a
lso

 be
en

 a 
ste

p c
ha

ng
e i

n r
ela

tio
n t

o r
ec

yc
lin

g 
wit

h a
 40

% 
inc

rea
se

 in
 re

cy
clin

g r
ate

s f
oll

ow
ing

 a 
re-

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of

 th
e r

ec
yc

lin
g c

on
tra

ct 
an

d t
arg

ete
d 

inv
es

tm
en

t to
 in

tro
du

ce
 a 

foo
d w

as
te 

se
rvi

ce
. 

 Im
pro

ve
d o

utc
om

es
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
inc

lud
e a

 13
% 

inc
rea

se
 in

 at
tai

nm
en

t o
f 5

 or
 m

ore
 A*

-C
 

GC
SE

s (
inc

lud
ing

 En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s) 
as

 w
ell

 as
 an

 18
% 

red
uc

tio
n i

n y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

no
t in

 em
plo

ym
en

t, e
du

ca
tio

n o
r 

tra
ini

ng
. In

 ad
dit

ion
 To

we
r H

am
let

s i
s a

lso
 a 

Be
ac

on
 Au

tho
rity

 
for

 R
ed

uc
ing

 R
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 an

d w
as

 re
ce

ntl
y a

wa
rde

d B
ea

co
n 

sta
tus

 fo
r P

rev
en

tin
g a

nd
 Ta

ck
lin

g a
nd

 C
hil

d P
ov

ert
y. 

  
 As

 a 
res

ult
 of

 su
ch

 ac
tiv

ity
, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 ha

s o
nc

e a
ga

in 
be

en
 as

se
ss

ed
 as

 ha
vin

g o
uts

tan
din

g s
erv

ice
s f

or 
ad

ult
 an

d 
ch

ild
ren

, b
oth

 of
 w

hic
h w

ere
 co

ns
ide

red
 to

 ha
ve

 ‘e
xc

ell
en

t’ 
ca

pa
cit

y f
or 

co
nti

nu
ing

 im
pro

ve
me

nt,
 an

d i
s t

he
 on

ly 
Co

un
cil 

to 
ha

ve
 ha

d b
oth

 se
rvi

ce
s t

op
-ra

ted
 fo

r th
e l

as
t th

ree
 ye

ars
.  

 A s
tro

ng
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e e

qu
ali

tie
s a

ge
nd

a i
s a

t th
e h

ea
rt o

f 
ou

r w
ork

 an
d i

s r
efl

ec
ted

 in
 th

e O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s t

he
me

 in
 

thi
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n. 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il is

 cu
rre

ntl
y m

ee
tin

g t
he

 
hig

he
st 

lev
el 

(fiv
e) 

of 
the

 Eq
ua

litie
s S

tan
da

rd 
an

d i
s t

he
 fir

st 
co

un
cil 

in 
the

 C
ou

ntr
y t

o r
ec

eiv
e t

he
 Eq

ua
lity

 M
ark

.   
 

 Th
rou

gh
ou

t a
ll o

f th
is 

ch
an

ge
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

ma
ins

 a 
pla

ce
 of

 co
ntr

as
t, w

he
re 

we
alt

h a
nd

 
aff

lue
nc

e s
it b

es
ide

 re
lat

ive
 po

ve
rty

 in
 m

an
y a

rea
s. 

Ex
pe

ns
ive

 
ne

w 
pri

va
te 

riv
ers

ide
 ho

us
ing

 de
ve

lop
me

nts
 si

t a
lon

g s
ide

 
so

cia
l h

ou
sin

g e
sta

tes
. T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 ha

s o
ne

 of
 th

e h
igh

es
t 

po
pu

lat
ion

 de
ns

itie
s i

n i
nn

er 
Lo

nd
on

 an
d a

 po
pu

lat
ion

 th
at 

is 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o r

ea
ch

 ne
arl

y 3
00

,00
0 b

y 2
02

0. 
 

 Th
e a

ve
rag

e s
ala

ry 
for

 th
os

e w
ork

ing
 in

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i

s 
ne

arl
y £

64
,00

0, 
ye

t 1
8%

 of
 ho

us
eh

old
s a

re 
livi

ng
 on

 le
ss

  th
an

 
£1

5,0
00

. H
ou

sin
g a

ffo
rda

bil
ity

 is
 lo

w 
by

 na
tio

na
l s

tan
da

rds
, 

wit
h a

n a
ve

rag
e h

ou
se

 pr
ice

 of
 £3

19
,82

6 –
 m

ore
 th

an
 do

ub
le 

Page 67



6 

the
 av

era
ge

 in
 En

gla
nd

 an
d W

ale
s –

 an
d o

ut 
of 

rea
ch

 fo
r m

os
t 

loc
al 

pe
op

le.
 

 Ot
he

r fa
cts

 an
d f

igu
res

 th
at 

ref
lec

t th
e a

rra
y o

f c
ha

lle
ng

es
 an

d 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 in
 th

e B
oro

ug
h i

nc
lud

e: 
 

• 
To

we
r H

am
let

s i
s o

ne
 of

 th
e m

os
t e

thn
ica

lly 
div

ers
e 

are
as

 in
 th

e c
ou

ntr
y. 

Ab
ou

t h
alf

 of
 th

e t
ota

l p
op

ula
tio

n 
are

 fro
m 

bla
ck

 an
d m

ino
rity

 et
hn

ic 
co

mm
un

itie
s, 

an
d 

aro
un

d 1
10

 di
ffe

ren
t la

ng
ua

ge
s a

re 
sp

ok
en

 by
 ou

r 
sc

ho
ol 

pu
pil

s. 
  

 
• 

Alt
ho

ug
h t

hin
gs

 ar
e i

mp
rov

ing
, a

ve
rag

e l
ife

 ex
pe

cta
nc

y 
at 

bir
th 

is 
75

 fo
r m

en
 an

d 8
0 f

or 
wo

me
n, 

ran
kin

g T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 39
2nd

 ou
t o

f 4
32

 lo
ca

l a
rea

s o
n m

ale
 lif

e 
ex

pe
cta

nc
y a

nd
 36

2nd
 ou

t o
f 4

32
 fo

r fe
ma

le 
life

 
ex

pe
cta

nc
y 

 
• 

Th
e p

rop
ort

ion
 of

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 liv

ing
 in

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

cu
rre

ntl
y s

tan
ds

 at
 35

%,
 w

hic
h i

s m
uc

h h
igh

er 
tha

n t
he

 
18

% 
av

era
ge

 fo
r th

e r
es

t o
f in

ne
r L

on
do

n, 
an

d o
ve

r 

70
% 

of 
ou

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

are
 fro

m 
mi

no
rity

 et
hn

ic 
ba

ck
gro

un
ds

.   
 

• 
As

 a 
de

ns
e u

rba
n a

rea
 w

ith
 a 

hig
h l

ev
el 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 lo
ca

l e
ne

rgy
 us

e a
nd

 C
O2

 em
iss

ion
s a

re 
hig

h. 
He

lpi
ng

 to
 ta

ck
le 

clim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 an

d i
mp

rov
e a

ir 
qu

ali
ty 

is 
the

ref
ore

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ch

all
en

ge
. L

ife
sty

le 
ch

an
ge

s a
nd

 di
ffic

ult
 ch

oic
es

 w
ill h

av
e t

o b
e m

ad
e i

n 
fut

ure
 ye

ars
.   

 Th
e n

ew
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 re

co
gn

ise
s t

ha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 is

 a 
‘co

mm
un

ity
 of

 co
mm

un
itie

s’ 
- s

o a
 on

e-s
ize

-fit
s-a

ll a
pp

roa
ch

 
to 

pro
ble

m 
so

lvin
g a

nd
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
ill n

ot 
wo

rk.
 Th

e 
ch

all
en

ge
 is

, a
nd

 w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 be
, to

 m
ak

e s
ure

 th
at 

the
 

ma
ny

 di
ffe

ren
t a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

 ne
ed

s t
ha

t e
xis

t in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
are

 id
en

tifi
ed

, u
nd

ers
too

d a
nd

 ad
dre

ss
ed

. 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n 2

00
9/1

0 s
ets

 ou
t th

e p
art

icu
lar

 
ac

tiv
itie

s t
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill p

rio
riti

se
 in

 th
e y

ea
r a

he
ad

 to
 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
e c

an
 re

sp
on

d t
o t

he
 ch

all
en

ge
s o

f th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 co

nte
xt 

an
d m

ak
e a

 ke
y c

on
trib

uti
on

 to
 ac

hie
vin

g o
ur 

sh
are

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
vis

ion
.  

Page 68



7 

3. 
Th

e S
tra

teg
ic 

Pla
n a

nd
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ro
le 

 
 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 a 
ke

y r
ole

 in
 de

live
rin

g t
he

 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 
20

20
 vi

sio
n. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n 2
00

9/1
0-1

1/1
2: 

Ye
ar 

1 A
cti

on
 Pl

an
, c

ov
eri

ng
 th

e p
eri

od
 Ap

ril 
20

09
- M

arc
h 2

01
0, 

se
ts 

ou
t k

ey
 ta

rge
ts 

for
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e k
ey

 in
itia

tiv
es

 
pla

nn
ed

 to
 de

live
r th

e i
mp

rov
ed

 ou
tco

me
s w

e a
sp

ire
 to

. M
an

y 
of 

the
se

 in
itia

tiv
es

 w
ill i

nv
olv

e w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d t

he
 

loc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

.  
 In 
all

 of
 ou

r w
ork

 w
e a

re 
dri

ve
n b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
or
e V

alu
es

:  
 • 

Ac
hie

vin
g r
es
ult
s  

W
e a

re 
pa

ss
ion

ate
 ab

ou
t a

ch
iev

ing
 th

e b
es

t fo
r o

ur 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

W
e w

an
t to

 be
 th

e b
es

t in
 th

e c
ou

ntr
y a

t w
ha

t 
we

 do
 an

d k
ee

p g
ett

ing
 be

tte
r a

nd
 be

tte
r, m

ov
ing

 be
yo

nd
 

ex
ce

lle
nc

e. 
W

e a
cti

ve
ly 

en
su

re 
we

 ac
hie

ve
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 

in 
ev

ery
thi

ng
 w

e d
o. 

 • 
Va
lui
ng
 di
ve
rsi
ty 

Eq
ua

litie
s a

nd
 di

ve
rsi

ty 
is 

at 
the

 he
art

 of
 w

ha
t w

e d
o a

nd
 ho

w 
we

 do
 it.

 It 
is 

bu
ilt 

int
o l

ea
de

rsh
ip,

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d 
inv

olv
em

en
t, s

erv
ice

s t
o o

ur 
cu

sto
me

rs 
an

d r
ec

rui
tm

en
t a

nd
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

sta
ff. 

W
e r

ec
og

nis
e t

ha
t h

av
ing

 a 
wo

rkf
orc

e 
tha

t re
fle

cts
 th

e c
om

mu
nit

y i
s e

ss
en

tia
l in

 or
de

r to
 de

live
r 

hig
h q

ua
lity

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

 • 
En
ga
gin

g w
ith
 ot
he
rs 
 

In 
ord

er 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 re

su
lts

, w
e n

ee
d t

o e
ng

ag
e p

os
itiv

ely
 w

ith
 

oth
ers

, th
e c

om
mu

nit
y, 

ou
r s

taf
f a

nd
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs.

 W
e n

ee
d 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t w

e c
om

mu
nic

ate
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 an

d c
rea

te 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r in

vo
lve

me
nt 

an
d e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
 • 

Le
arn

ing
 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 
W

e a
re 

a l
ea

rni
ng

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
. W

e t
ak

e r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r o

ur 
ow

n l
ea

rni
ng

 an
d s

ha
re 

ou
r le

arn
ing

 w
ith

 ot
he

rs.
 

 Ke
y P

rio
rit
ies

 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ke
y p

rio
riti

es
 fo

r it
s 

Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
, w

hic
h d

ire
ctl

y r
efl

ec
t th

e B
oro

ug
h’s

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pla

n p
rio

riti
es

. A
lth

ou
gh

 O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s u

nd
erp

ins
 al

l 
the

me
s, 

it i
s i

nc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
s a

 th
em

e i
n i

tse
lf. 

Ea
ch

 of
 th

e f
ive

 th
em

es
 is

 su
pp

ort
ed

 by
 ke

y p
rio

riti
es

 fo
r 

ac
tio

n w
hic

h w
ill p

rov
ide

 th
e f

oc
us

 fo
r o

ur 
se

rvi
ce

 de
live

ry 
for

 
the

 pe
rio

d t
o M

arc
h 2

01
0. 

  
  

Page 69



8 

 Th
em

es
 

Pr
ior
itie

s 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

• 
Re

du
ce

 in
eq

ua
litie

s a
nd

 fo
ste

r s
tro

ng
 co

mm
un

ity
 co

he
sio

n  
• 

W
ork

 ef
fic

ien
tly

 an
d e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

as
 O

ne
 C

ou
nc

il 

A G
rea

t  P
lac

e t
o L

ive
  

• 
Pr

ov
ide

 Af
for

da
ble

 H
ou

sin
g a

nd
 St

ron
g N

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
s 

• 
Str

en
gth

en
 an

d c
on

ne
ct 

co
mm

un
itie

s  
• 

Su
pp

ort
 vi

bra
nt 

tow
n c

en
tre

s a
nd

 a 
cle

an
er,

 sa
fer

 pu
bli

c r
ea

lm
  

• 
Im

pro
ve

 th
e e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 ta
ck

le 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge

 

A P
ros

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y 
• 

Su
pp

ort
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
lea

rni
ng

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r a
ll 

• 
Re

du
ce

 w
ork

les
sn

es
s 

• 
Fo

ste
r e

nte
rpr

ise
 

A S
afe

 an
d S

up
po

rtiv
e 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
• 

Em
po

we
r o

lde
r a

nd
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe

op
le 

an
d s

up
po

rt f
am

ilie
s  

• 
Ta

ck
le 

an
d p

rev
en

t c
rim

e 
• 

Fo
cu

s o
n e

arl
y i

nte
rve

nti
on

  

A H
ea

lth
y C

om
mu

nit
y  

• 
Re

du
ce

 di
ffe

ren
ce

s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he

alt
h a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 he
alt

hy
 lif

es
tyl

es
 

• 
Su

pp
ort

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i

mp
rov

e m
en

tal
 he

alt
h  

• 
Im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 an
d e

xp
eri

en
ce

 of
 lo

ca
l h

ea
lth

 se
rvi

ce
s  

  Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
lso

 sp
ec

ifie
s t

he
 ke

y t
arg

ets
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

ex
pe

cts
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 ag

ain
st 

the
se

 pr
ior

itie
s b

y M
arc

h 2
01

0 a
nd

 
se

ts 
ou

t th
e k

ey
 in

itia
tiv

es
 w

hic
h t

he
 C

ou
nc

il w
ill u

nd
ert

ak
e i

n 
20

09
/10

 to
 de

live
r th

es
e t

arg
ets

. T
he

se
 ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s r
efl

ec
t 

the
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

e o
r im

pro
ve

me
nt 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

hic
h w

ill b
e 

ou
r fo

cu
s f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

ah
ea

d. 
W

ith
in 

the
 C

ou
nc

il e
ac

h 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 an

d e
ac

h s
erv

ice
, w

ill a
lso

 de
ve

lop
 m

ore
 de

tai
led

 
ac

tio
n p

lan
s d

em
on

str
ati

ng
 ho

w 
the

y c
on

trib
ute

 at
 an

 
op

era
tio

na
l le

ve
l. 

Page 70



9 

4. 
Ye

ar 
1 A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 20
09

/10
  

 Th
e K

ey
 In

itia
tiv

es
 fo

r 2
00

9/1
0 t

o s
up

po
rt t

he
 de

live
ry 

of 
the

 lo
ng

er 
ter

m 
go

als
 of

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 ar

e s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 

ac
tio

n p
lan

. E
ac

h i
nit

iat
ive

 id
en

tifi
es

 so
me

 ke
y p

rog
res

s m
ile

sto
ne

s t
o e

na
ble

 pr
og

res
s t

o b
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

mo
nit

ore
d. 

 
  On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
 Pr
ior
ity
 1.
1: 

Re
du

ce
 in
eq
ua
liti
es
 an

d f
os
ter

 st
ron

g c
om

mu
nit
y c

oh
es
ion

 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

1.1
.1 

To
 re

du
ce

 in
eq

ua
litie

s 
1.1

.2 
Fo

ste
r s

tro
ng

 co
mm

un
ity

 co
he

sio
n 

1.1
.3 

Pr
ov

ide
 st

ron
g c

om
mu

nit
y l

ea
de

rsh
ip 

an
d i

nc
lus

ive
 se

rvi
ce

s 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 

Re
lau

nc
h W

om
en

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s I
nc

lus
ive

 ne
tw

ork
 as

 pa
rt o

f 
the

 ne
w 

To
we

r H
am

let
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Str
uc

tur
e b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 
20

09
 (F

ran
ce

s J
on

es
) 

W
ork

 w
ith

 St
on

ew
all

 to
 in

cre
as

e n
um

be
r o

f lo
ca

lly 
ba

se
d 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 in

 th
e W

ork
pla

ce
 In

de
x b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

9 (
HA

) 

1. 
Pr

od
uc

e n
ew

 Eq
ua

lity
 Sc

he
me

s i
n 

rel
ati

on
 to

 ag
e, 

rac
e, 

se
xu

al 
ori

en
tat

ion
 

an
d r

eli
gio

n/b
eli

ef 
to 

co
mp

lem
en

t e
xis

tin
g 

ge
nd

er 
an

d d
isa

bil
ity

 Eq
ua

lity
 Sc

he
me

s 

Cll
r J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
 Mi

ch
ae

l K
ea

tin
g, 

Sc
rut

iny
 an

d 
Eq

ua
litie

s, 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
Es

tab
lish

 C
ou

nc
il/P

CT
 jo

int
 Pa

n D
isa

bil
ity

 Pa
ne

l to
 im

pro
ve

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 di
sa

ble
d p

op
ula

tio
n b

y J
uly

 20
09

 (P
riti

 Ba
tav

ia)
 

Page 71



10
 

  
 

Im
pro

ve
 m

ec
ha

nis
ms

 fo
r e

ns
uri

ng
 th

at 
the

 ne
ed

s o
f s

ma
lle

r B
ME

 
co

mm
un

itie
s a

re 
inc

lud
ed

 in
 se

rvi
ce

 de
live

ry 
an

d p
lan

nin
g. 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 be
 su

bm
itte

d t
o C

orp
ora

te 
Eq

ua
litie

s 
Ste

eri
ng

 G
rou

p b
y O

cto
be

r 2
00

9 (
Ha

fsh
a A

li) 
Im

ple
me

nt 
Co

un
cill

or 
Ca

ll f
or 

Ac
tio

n f
rom

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 (A
faz

ul 
Ho

qu
e) 

 
Co

ns
ult

 on
 th

e n
ew

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

 M
od

el 
of 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e b
y 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

 (J
oh

n W
illia

ms
)  

Im
ple

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f C
ou

nc
il/C

ab
ine

t/C
om

mi
tte

e m
ee

tin
gs

 
in 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Ve
nu

es
 an

d p
ilo

t w
eb

ca
sti

ng
  p

roj
ec

t fr
om

 M
ay

 
20

09
 (J

oh
n W

illia
ms

)  
Dr

aft
 pr

op
os

als
 re

lat
ing

 to
 th

e ‘
Co

mm
un

itie
s i

n C
on

tro
l’ W

hit
e 

Pa
pe

r fo
r A

pri
l 2

00
9 (

Mi
ch

ae
l K

ea
tin

g) 

2. 
De

ve
lop

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 co

mm
un

ity
 

lea
de

rsh
ip 

rol
e t

o d
eli

ve
r th

e 
co

mm
un

itie
s i

n c
on

tro
l a

ge
nd

a, 
en

su
re 

a 
vib

ran
t lo

ca
l d

em
oc

rac
y a

nd
 st

ren
gth

en
 

civ
ic 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 

Cll
r  J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
 Mi

ch
ae

l K
ea

tin
g, 

Sc
rut

iny
 an

d 
Eq

ua
litie

s, 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
 

Fu
rth

er 
em

be
d O

ne
 To

we
r H

am
let

s b
y d

ev
elo

pin
g p

rop
os

als
 to

 
en

su
re 

tha
t c

oh
es

ion
 is

 ev
ide

nc
ed

 an
d e

mb
ed

de
d i

nto
 se

rvi
ce

 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d d

eli
ve

ry 
by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (F
ran

ce
s J

on
es

/Af
az

ul 
Ho

qu
e/A

ss
an

 Al
i)  

Pr
ior
ity
 1.
2: 
W
ork

 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve
ly 
as
 O
ne

 C
ou
nc
il 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

1.2
.1 

    
En

su
rin

g v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

1.2
.2 

    
Re

cru
itin

g, 
su

pp
ort

ing
 an

d d
ev

elo
pin

g a
n e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ork
for

ce
  

1.2
.3 

    
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ef

fec
tiv

e a
nd

 jo
ine

d u
p c

orp
ora

te 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

Co
un

cil 
pri

ori
tie

s  
 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
  

  
  

Page 72



11
 

He
ad

s o
f H

R 
to 

rev
iew

 an
d i

de
nti

fy 
wa

ys
 in

 w
hic

h 
the

ir d
ire

cto
rat

e c
an

 re
du

ce
 ag

en
cy

 sp
en

d. 
Pr

op
os

als
 

by
 Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Re
vie

w 
W

ork
for

ce
 Pl

an
nin

g i
nte

llig
en

ce
 an

d u
se

 to
 

inf
orm

 ac
tiv

itie
s t

o r
ed

uc
e f

utu
re 

ag
en

cy
 us

ag
e b

y 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Co
ns

ide
r W

ork
for

ce
 to

 re
fle

ct 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

 
im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 of
 W

ork
for

ce
 Pl

an
nin

g D
ata

 by
 M

ay
 20

09
 

3. 
Ac

hie
ve

 a 
red

uc
tio

n i
n t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 re

lia
nc

e o
n 

Ag
en

cy
 st

aff
 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
 

De
ve

lop
 lo

ca
l ta

len
t p

oo
l b

y J
un

e 2
00

9 
W

ork
for

ce
 An

aly
sis

 in
ter

vie
ws

 an
d o

ve
rvi

ew
 

co
mp

let
ed

 by
 Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

/C
orp

ora
te 

Ac
tio

n P
lan

 ag
ree

d b
y J

un
e 

20
09

 
Se

rvi
ce

 ar
ea

 re
vie

w 
ref

res
h, 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

 
Lo

ca
l g

rad
ua

te 
ca

ree
r p

rog
ram

me
 es

tab
lish

ed
 

Au
gu

st 
20

09
 

4. 
De

ve
lop

 th
e W

ork
for

ce
 Pl

an
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t th
e 

W
ork

for
ce

 to
 R

efl
ec

t th
e C

om
mu

nit
y Y

ea
r 1

 Ac
tio

n 
Pla

n 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d a

nd
 

Cll
r J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
 De

b C
lar

ke
, 

Re
so

urc
es

 
90

 Ap
pre

nti
ce

s w
ork

-ba
se

d l
ea

rni
ng

 sc
he

me
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
  

Str
ate

gic
 an

d R
es

ou
rce

 Pl
an

nin
g p

roc
es

s t
o i

de
nti

fy 
ad

dit
ion

al 
eff

icie
nc

y s
av

ing
s f

or 
20

11
/12

 by
 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

 
Co

nfi
rm

 th
e E

ffic
ien

cy
 Pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r 2
01

1/1
2 b

y 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

09
  

Un
de

rta
ke

 an
 in

itia
l re

vie
w 

of 
bu

dg
ets

 to
 id

en
tify

 
lar

ge
-sc

ale
 ef

fic
ien

cy
 in

itia
tiv

es
 fo

r 2
01

2/1
3 b

y J
uly

 
20

09
  

5. 
De

live
r th

e E
ffic

ien
cy

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
Cll

r O
hid

 Ah
me

d 
 Ch

ris
 N

ay
lor

 (A
lan

 
Fin

ch
) 

Ide
nti

fy 
ad

dit
ion

al 
eff

icie
nc

y p
roj

ec
ts 

for
 20

11
/12

-
12

/13
 by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9 

Page 73



12
 

 
 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

pla
nn

ed
 ef

fic
ien

cie
s f

or 
20

09
/10

 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 C

ab
ine

t o
n a

 qu
art

erl
y b

as
is,

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

  
As

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 C
ap

ita
l S

tra
teg

y W
ork

ing
 

Gr
ou

p f
ull

y e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 by

 M
ay

 20
09

 (A
nd

y A
lga

r) 
Fin

ali
se

 di
vis

ion
al 

str
uc

tur
e f

oll
ow

ing
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

, 
Au

gu
st 

20
09

 (A
nd

y A
lga

r) 
As

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

teg
y a

gre
ed

 by
 Se

rvi
ce

 
De

pa
rtm

en
ts 

an
d P

art
ne

rs 
an

d s
ign

ed
 of

f b
y 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (A
nd

y A
lga

r) 
On

go
ing

  p
rog

ram
me

 of
 D

isa
bil

ity
 D

isc
rim

ina
tio

n A
ct 

wo
rks

 to
 be

 fu
lly 

im
ple

me
nte

d b
y D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

(C
lai

re 
Sy

mo
nd

s, 
Re

so
urc

es
) 

Ad
op

tio
n b

y A
ss

et 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Bo
ard

 of
 th

ree
 ye

ar 
rol

lin
g d

isp
os

als
 pr

og
ram

me
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 
(A

nd
y A

lga
r) 

Ag
ree

me
nts

 in
 pl

ac
e t

o r
eg

ula
ris

e T
hir

d S
ec

tor
 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n o
f b

uil
din

gs
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

 (A
nd

y A
lga

r) 

6. 
 D

ev
elo

p a
n a

ss
et 

an
d c

ap
ita

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

str
ate

gy
 to

 en
ab

le 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 as
se

ts 
to 

be
 

uti
lise

d i
n t

he
 m

os
t e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ay
 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
 (A

nd
y 

Alg
ar,

 Al
an

 Fi
nc

h) 
  

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

lan
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fo

r A
ss

et 
Str

ate
gy

 by
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 (T
ok

s O
sib

og
un

, D
&R

) 
7. 

De
live

r th
e L

oc
al 

Pr
ior

itie
s P

rog
ram

me
 

Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
  

Re
fre

sh
 th

e C
ap

ita
l a

nd
 Lo

ca
l P

rio
riti

es
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

rep
ort

 an
d p

res
en

t to
 C

ab
ine

t o
n a

 qu
art

erl
y b

as
is,

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
  

De
ve

lop
 an

 O
utl

ine
 Bu

sin
es

s C
as

e f
or 

a C
orp

ora
te 

Ch
an

ne
l S

tra
teg

y f
or 

su
bm

iss
ion

 to
, a

nd
 re

vie
w 

by
, 

the
 Tr

an
sfo

rm
ati

on
 Bo

ard
 in

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 
(C

lai
re 

Sy
mo

nd
s) 

 

8. 
Co

nc
lud

e a
nd

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 C

ha
nn

el 
Str

ate
gy

 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t c
us

tom
er 

en
qu

irie
s c

an
 be

 re
so

lve
d 

at 
the

ir f
irs

t p
oin

t o
f c

on
tac

t th
rou

gh
 th

e c
ha

nn
el 

of 
the

ir c
ho

ice
 

Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
 (C

lai
re 

Sy
mo

nd
s) 

  

Page 74



13
 

Ag
ree

 an
d i

mp
lem

en
t a

cti
on

 pl
an

 ar
isin

g f
rom

 M
arc

h 
Cu

sto
me

r S
erv

ice
 Ex

ce
lle

nc
e 2

00
9 a

ss
es

sm
en

t b
y 

Ju
ne

 20
09

 
 

 

De
ve

lop
 a 

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
the

 ro
ll o

ut 
of 

the
 N

ati
on

al 
Cu

sto
me

r S
erv

ice
 ex

ce
lle

nc
e A

wa
rd 

ac
ros

s t
he

 
wh

ole
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
9 w

ith
 tw

o 
fro

ntl
ine

 se
rvi

ce
s t

o a
ch

iev
e a

cc
red

ita
tio

n b
y 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 
Re

pla
ce

 co
un

cil 
PC

 de
sk

top
 w

ith
 a 

thi
n c

lie
nt 

vir
tua

l 
de

sk
top

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e –

 pr
oo

f o
f c

on
ce

pt 
pil

ot 
co

mp
let

ed
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
09

 
Co

ns
oli

da
te 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

 IC
T i

nto
 C

orp
ora

te 
IC

T –
 

sta
ff t

ran
sfe

r c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

Ou
tlin

e B
us

ine
ss

 C
as

e f
or 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Str
ate

gy
 to

 be
 su

bm
itte

d t
o, 

an
d r

ev
iew

ed
 by

, 
Tra

ns
for

ma
tio

n B
oa

rd 
by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9 

9. 
 C

on
clu

de
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
 so

 th
at 

the
 fu

ll p
ote

nti
al 

of 
the

 co
un

cil’
s I

T i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

is 
lev

era
ge

d t
o 

de
live

r s
erv

ice
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 an
d f

ina
nc

ial
 

eff
icie

nc
ies

 

Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
 (J

im
 

Ro
be

rts
) 

Un
de

rta
ke

 U
nif

ied
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s P

roj
ec

t p
ilo

t fo
r 

IC
T a

nd
 ke

y u
se

rs 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 
Fin

an
ce

 Ac
ad

em
y w

ill b
e e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 

Co
rpo

rat
e F

ina
nc

e r
es

tru
ctu

re 
co

mp
let

e b
y M

ay
 20

0 
10

. Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 st

ag
e 1

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 of

 th
e 

rev
iew

 of
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

so
 

tha
t fi

na
nc

ial
 m

an
ag

em
en

t in
for

ma
tio

n i
s i

mp
rov

ed
 

an
d w

e e
xc

ee
d o

ur 
tar

ge
ts 

for
 th

e t
im

ely
 pa

ym
en

t 
of 

su
pp

lie
rs 

Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
 (A

lan
 

Fin
ch

/R
ich

ard
 

Pa
rso

ns
/C

lai
re 

Sy
mo

nd
s) 

Re
qu

isit
ion

 to
 Pa

y (
R2

P)
 fin

al 
bu

sin
es

s c
as

e 
su

bm
itte

d t
o, 

an
d r

ev
iew

ed
 by

, T
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on

 Bo
ard

 
in 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (A
lan

 Fi
nc

h/R
ich

ard
 Pa

rso
ns

) 
HR

IP 
to 

Tra
ns

for
ma

tio
n B

oa
rd 

for
 re

vie
w 

by
 M

ay
 

20
09

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 th
en

 dr
aw

n u
p w

ith
 m

ile
sto

ne
s. 

 
HR

IP 
to 

CM
T J

un
e 2

00
9 

11
.  C

om
ple

te 
the

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rce
s I

mp
rov

em
en

t 
Pr

oje
ct 

an
d i

mp
lem

en
t it

s r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s s

o 
tha

t th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on

 is
 m

ore
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 su

pp
ort

ed
 

at 
a l

ow
er 

co
st 

Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
 (D

eb
 

Cla
rke

) 
HR

IP 
to 

Ca
bin

et 
if n

ec
es

sa
ry 

Ju
ly 

20
09

 

Page 75



14
 

 

Co
mp

let
e L

oc
ali

ty 
an

d U
se

 of
 R

es
ou

rce
s S

elf
 

As
se

ss
me

nts
 by

 M
ay

 20
09

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 PR

G 
to 

sc
rut

ini
se

 6-
mo

nth
ly 

LA
A 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

12
. C

on
tin

ue
 to

 ro
bu

stl
y m

an
ag

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 

ac
ros

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il, 

es
pe

cia
lly 

wit
h r

eg
ard

 to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

rea
 Ag

ree
me

nt,
 an

d l
ea

d p
rep

ara
tio

ns
 fo

r 
the

 C
om

pre
he

ns
ive

 Ar
ea

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
Lu

tfu
r A

li 
(Lo

uis
e R

us
se

ll) 

Re
ne

w 
LA

A 2
nd

 ro
un

d d
eli

ve
ry 

pla
ns

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 

Page 76



15
 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

  
 Pr
ior
ity
 2.
1: 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo
ds
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ke

y a
gre

ed
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

is 
ye

ar 
is 
red

uc
ing

 ov
er-
cro

wd
ing

 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.1
.1 

Inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 ov

era
ll s

up
ply

 of
 ho

us
ing

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 in
clu

din
g a

 ra
ng

e o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
, fa

mi
ly 

ho
us

ing
  

2.1
.2 

Pr
ov

ide
 de

ce
nt 

ho
me

s i
n w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d s
tre

ets
 an

d n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s 
2.1

.3 
Pla

nn
ing

 ne
w 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 w
ith

 su
pp

ort
ive

 se
rvi

ce
s l

ike
 pr

im
ary

 sc
ho

ols
, h

ea
lth

ca
re 

fac
iliti

es
 an

d l
oc

al 
pa

rks
 

2.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
ho

us
ing

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 re

lat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
s p

rov
ide

d t
o t

en
an

ts 
an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
Es

tab
lish

 R
TB

 Bu
y B

ac
k D

eli
ve

ry 
Me

ch
an

ism
  b

y A
pri

l 2
00

9 
(Jo

hn
 C

ok
er)

 
Ag

ree
 Lo

ca
l H

om
es

 In
itia

tiv
e S

ch
em

e D
eta

ils 
by

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 
(A

liso
n T

ho
ma

s) 
Co

mp
let

e C
on

su
lta

tio
n o

n H
ou

sin
g S

tra
teg

y b
y M

ay
 20

09
 

(Jo
hn

 C
ok

er)
 

Ca
bin

et 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
to 

Ho
us

ing
 St

rat
eg

y A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 by

  M
ay

 
20

09
 

Ag
ree

 O
ve

rcr
ow

din
g S

tra
teg

y a
nd

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 

(Jo
hn

 C
ok

er)
 

LH
I R

ep
ort

 to
 C

ab
ine

t o
n 1

st 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 (A

liso
n T

ho
ma

s) 
Ag

ree
 R

ev
ise

d A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 Po

licy
 an

d L
ett

ing
s P

lan
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (J

ac
kie

 O
du

no
ye

) 

13
. D

eli
ve

r a
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 ac
qu

isit
ion

 an
d 

ne
w 

bu
ild

 to
 re

du
ce

 ov
erc

row
din

g  
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis
  

 Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
 

D&
R 

Co
mp

let
e F

irs
t tr

an
ch

e R
TB

  B
uy

 ba
ck

s b
y D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

(Jo
hn

 C
ok

er)
 

Page 77



16
 

 
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

firs
t p

ha
se

 of
 Lo

ca
l H

om
es

 In
itia

tiv
e b

y D
ec

em
be

r 
20

09
 (A

liso
n T

ho
ma

s) 
Co

mp
let

e t
he

 To
we

r H
am

let
s I

nv
es

tm
en

t P
ros

pe
ctu

s o
f p

rio
rity

 
sc

he
me

s f
or 

HC
A f

un
din

g b
y A

pri
l 2

00
9 (

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e) 
 

Ho
ld 

fou
r m

ee
tin

gs
 pe

r y
ea

r w
ith

 ea
ch

 de
ve

lop
ing

 R
SL

 to
 ag

ree
 

the
 nu

mb
er,

 lo
ca

tio
n a

nd
 tim

ing
 of

 th
e s

ch
em

es
 in

 th
eir

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 po
rtfo

lio
 an

d t
o a

ss
es

s t
he

 ne
ed

 fo
r H

CA
 gr

an
t s

up
po

rt; 
co

ns
ide

r o
utp

ut 
da

ta 
on

 cu
rre

nt 
sc

he
me

s a
nd

 as
se

ss
 qu

an
tity

 
an

d q
ua

lity
 of

 ne
w 

un
its

 pr
od

uc
ed

 as
 pa

rt o
f a

gre
ed

 
pro

gra
mm

e i
n J

un
e, 

Se
pte

mb
er 

an
d D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ali
so

n 
Th

om
as

) 
Im

ple
me

nt 
an

 R
SL

 Pr
efe

rre
d P

art
ne

r S
ch

em
e b

y D
ec

em
be

r 
20

09
 (J

ac
kie

 O
du

no
ye

) 
Mo

nit
or 

the
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 of
 R

SL
’s 

in 
co

nju
nc

tio
n w

ith
 TS

A a
nd

 
LB

TH
’s 

pre
fer

red
 pa

rtn
er 

sc
he

me
, D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e) 

14
. S

tre
ng

the
n R

SL
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

 to
 

i) S
ec

ure
 pr

iva
te 

an
d p

ub
lic 

inv
es

tm
en

t to
 

de
live

r a
 su

pp
ly 

of 
ne

w 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 
an

d i
i) i

mp
rov

e s
tan

da
rd 

an
d q

ua
lity

 of
 

ho
us

ing
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

 
D&

R 

Re
po

rt “
Ch

oic
e” 

pro
gra

mm
e R

SL
’s 

“O
ffe

r P
rom

ise
” p

rog
res

s 
rep

ort
 to

 LA
B, 

tw
ice

 ye
arl

y, 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09

 an
d M

arc
h 2

01
0 

(Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e) 
Ag

ree
 TH

H 
Ho

me
s S

erv
ice

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n t
o a

ch
iev

e 2
 St

ars
 

by
 M

ay
 20

09
 (J

oh
n C

ok
er)

 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 C
ab

ine
t R

ep
ort

 M
ay

 20
09

 (J
oh

n C
ok

er)
 

TH
H 

to 
un

de
rta

ke
 In

dic
ati

ve
 In

sp
ec

tio
n b

y A
ud

it C
om

mi
ss

ion
 

Ju
ne

 20
09

 (J
oh

n C
ok

er)
 

TH
H 

to 
co

nc
lud

e n
ew

 st
oc

k c
on

dit
ion

 su
rve

y b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 

(Jo
hn

 C
ok

er)
 

15
. A

ch
iev

e i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

in 
the

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

ho
us

ing
 m

an
ag

em
en

t th
rou

gh
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 H

om
es

 an
d u

nlo
ck

 re
so

urc
es

 to
 

de
live

r th
e D

ec
en

t H
om

es
  

 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

 
D&

R 

Es
tab

lish
 a 

De
ce

nt 
Ho

me
s P

rog
ram

me
 fo

r T
HH

 by
 M

arc
h2

01
0 

 
 

 

Page 78



17
 

 

Ro
bin

 H
oo

d G
ard

en
s, 

su
bje

ct 
to 

Go
v. 

Re
vie

w.
 C

om
ple

te 
Ne

ed
s 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
by

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 (N
ial

 M
cG

ow
an

) 
Bla

ck
wa

ll R
ea

ch
 O

utl
ine

 Ap
pli

ca
tio

n S
ub

mi
tte

d b
y N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

 
 (N

ial
 M

cG
ow

an
) 

Co
tta

ll S
tre

et 
se

co
nd

 st
ag

e d
es

ign
/bu

sin
es

s p
lan

nin
g f

ea
sib

ility
 

rev
iew

, J
uly

 20
09

 (A
liso

n T
ho

ma
s) 

16
. R

es
ha

pe
 m

ajo
r e

sta
te 

ren
ew

al 
pro

jec
ts 

wit
h k

ey
 pa

rtn
ers

 
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
an

d C
llr 

Ra
nia

 
Kh

an
 

 Ow
en

 W
ha

lle
y, 

 
D&

R 
>O

ce
an

 Es
tat

e B
AF

O 
(B

es
t a

nd
 Fi

na
l O

ffe
r) b

y d
ev

elo
pe

rs 
su

bm
itte

d N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9 (
Nia

l M
cG

ow
an

) 
>S

ec
ure

 Va
ca

nt 
Po

ss
es

sio
n o

bta
ine

d b
y O

ct 
20

09
  

> S
tar

t re
fur

bis
hm

en
t w

ork
 on

 a 
sin

gle
 bl

oc
k a

s p
art

 of
 pi

lot
 

pro
jec

t (s
ub

jec
t to

 le
ga

l a
nd

 fin
an

cia
l is

su
es

 be
ing

 re
so

lve
d) 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Pu

bli
ca

tio
n o

f L
MF

 pr
efe

rre
d o

pti
on

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 an

d d
eta

ile
d 

To
we

r H
am

let
s r

es
po

ns
e s

ub
mi

tte
d b

y A
ug

us
t 2

00
9  

(N
ick

 
Sm

ale
s) 

Su
bm

iss
ion

 of
 Le

ga
cy

 pl
an

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 by
 LD

A S
ep

t 2
00

9 
(N

ick
 Sm

ale
s) 

17
. E

ng
ag

e i
n t

he
 O

lym
pic

 Le
ga

cy
 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

 pr
oc

es
s t

o s
ec

ure
 m

ax
im

um
 

be
ne

fits
 fo

r T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
  

Cll
r  L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

,  
D&

R 
En

su
re 

LM
F p

rop
os

als
 ar

e e
mb

ed
de

d w
ith

in 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
as

 pe
r c

ore
 st

rat
eg

y t
im

eta
ble

 Ju
ly,

 O
cto

be
r, 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 (N
ick

 Sm
ale

s) 
Ca

bin
et 

Sig
n o

ff b
y J

uly
 20

09
 (J

en
nif

er 
Ric

ha
rds

on
) 

Co
un

cil 
Sig

n o
ff, 

Au
tum

n 2
00

9 (
Je

nn
ife

r R
ich

ard
so

n) 
Ind

ep
en

de
nt 

Ex
am

ina
tio

n, 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 (J

en
nif

er 
Ric

ha
rds

on
) 

18
. F

ina
lise

 th
e L

oc
al 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Co

re 
Str

ate
gy

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 to
 dr

ive
 th

e s
us

tai
na

ble
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

 
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

  
 Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y, 
 

D&
R 

Ad
op

tio
n b

y M
arc

h 2
01

0 (
Je

nn
ife

r R
ich

ard
so

n) 

Page 79



18
 

Pr
ior
ity
 2.
2: 
St
ren

gth
en
 an

d c
on

ne
ct 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.2
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g p

ub
lic 

tra
ns

po
rt n

etw
ork

s a
nd

 en
ab

lin
g m

ore
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

wa
lk 

an
d c

yc
le 

sa
fel

y  
2.2

.2 
Br

ing
ing

 to
ge

the
r c

om
mu

nit
ies

 to
 fo

ste
r m

utu
al 

un
de

rst
an

din
g, 

a c
oll

ec
tiv

e s
en

se
 of

 w
ell

be
ing

 an
d a

vo
id 

pe
op

le 
be

ing
 

iso
lat

ed
 

2.2
.3 

  E
ns

uri
ng

 co
mm

un
itie

s h
av

e g
oo

d a
cc

es
s t

o a
 fu

ll r
an

ge
 of

 fa
cili

tie
s -

 in
clu

din
g h

ea
lth

 se
rvi

ce
s, 

sc
ho

ols
 an

d l
eis

ure
 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
En

su
re 

inc
lus

ion
 of

 su
sta

ina
ble

 tra
ns

po
rt p

oli
cie

s w
ith

in 
the

 
LD

F C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y b

y J
uly

 20
09

 (R
ich

ard
 Fi

nc
h) 

 
Cy

clin
g P

lan
 Pu

bli
sh

ed
, O

cto
be

r 2
00

9 (
Ric

ha
rd 

Fin
ch

) 
19

. Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 Su

sta
ina

ble
 Tr

an
sp

ort
 

Str
ate

gy
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e c
on

ne
cti

on
s 

be
tw

ee
n c

om
mu

nit
ies

 
  

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

  
 Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y, 
D&

R 
Co

ord
ina

te 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

he
 M

ay
or 

of 
Lo

nd
on

’s 
Tra

ns
po

rt 
Str

ate
gy

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ric
ha

rd 
Fin

ch
) 

De
live

ry 
Ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 an
d S

LA
’s 

ag
ree

d w
ith

 pa
rtn

er 
de

live
ry 

ag
en

cie
s b

y A
pri

l 2
00

9 (
Nic

k S
ma

les
, D

&R
) 

Pe
rso

na
l B

es
t P

rog
ram

me
 an

d r
ec

rui
tm

en
t o

f v
olu

nte
ers

 
by

 de
live

ry 
pa

rtn
ers

 to
 be

gin
 Ap

ril 
20

09
 (N

ick
 Sm

ale
s, 

D&
R)

 
Pa

rad
ise

 G
ard

en
s M

ajo
r C

om
mu

nit
y E

ve
nt,

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 
(C

LC
) 

Fie
ld 

Da
y /

 U
nd

era
ge

 Ev
en

t, A
ug

us
t 2

00
9 (

CL
C)

 

 20
. U

se
 th

e O
lym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 
Ga

me
s t

o e
ng

ag
e c

om
mu

nit
ies

 in
 cu

ltu
ral

, 
sp

ort
ing

 an
d c

ele
bra

tor
y e

ve
nts

  
  

Cll
r L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, C
LC

 

De
ve

lop
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 “L
et’
s M

ak
e i
t H
ap
pe
n” 

bra
nd

 
to 

rai
se

 aw
are

ne
ss

 of
 th

e i
nc

rea
sin

g o
pp

ort
un

itie
s t

o 
pa

rtic
ipa

te 
an

d e
sta

bli
sh

 a 
be

nc
hm

ark
 by

 in
clu

din
g 

qu
es

tio
n i

n r
es

ide
nts

 su
rve

y, 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (N

ick
 

Sm
ale

s) 

Page 80



19
 

 
 

Re
vie

w 
An

nu
al 

Re
sid

en
ts 

Su
rve

y R
es

ult
s R

ep
ort

, M
arc

h  
20

10
 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 ab

ov
e, 

Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am
 in

 pl
ac

e, 
Ju

ne
 20

09
 

Se
cu

re 
De

cis
ion

 of
 St

ag
e 2

 H
eri

tag
e L

ott
ery

 Fu
nd

ing
 

De
cis

ion
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

0 
21

. D
ev

elo
p a

nd
 im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Vi
cto

ria
 

Pa
rk 

Ma
ste

r P
lan

 to
 im

pro
ve

 th
e q

ua
lity

, 
sa

fet
y a

nd
 us

ab
ility

 of
 th

e P
ark

 an
d 

res
tor

e t
he

 he
rita

ge
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Pu
bli

c 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Ma
ste

r P
lan

 ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 fu

nd
ing

 in
 pl

ac
e b

y M
arc

h 2
01

0 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
wit

h L
OC

OG
 on

 pa
rk 

ac
tiv

itie
s a

nd
 fa

cili
tie

s i
n 

Ga
me

s t
im

e, 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (J

am
ie 

Bla
ke

) 
22

. D
ev

elo
p t

he
 O

lym
pic

 G
am

es
 Li

ve
 Si

te 
pro

po
sit

ion
 fo

r V
ict

ori
a P

ark
 so

 th
at 

loc
al 

res
ide

nts
 ha

ve
 a 

fre
e t

o a
cc

es
s G

am
es

 
tim

e v
en

ue
 

Cll
r L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

Bu
sin

es
s P

lan
 fo

r G
am

es
 tim

e o
pe

rat
ion

, D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 
(Ja

mi
e B

lak
e) 

 23
. Im

pro
ve

 th
e m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
reg

ula
tor

y f
ram

ew
ork

 go
ve

rni
ng

 ev
en

ts 
in 

pa
rks

 
    

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

   Ma
jor

 Ev
en

ts 
Po

licy
 to

 C
ab

ine
t, S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
9 

    De
ma

nd
 an

aly
sis

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 

Fir
st 

Dr
aft

 C
om

ple
ted

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

24
. D

ev
elo

p a
 Pl

ay
ing

 Pi
tch

 St
rat

eg
y 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

Ap
pro

ve
d, 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 

Page 81



20
 

Me
la,

 M
ay

 20
09

 
Bo

ard
 ap

po
int

ed
, J

un
e 2

00
9 

25
. D

eli
ve

r a
  B

ais
ha

kh
i M

ela
 in

 
Ba

ng
lat

ow
n B

ric
k L

an
e a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 a 
co

mm
un

ity
 m

an
ag

em
en

t in
fra

str
uc

tur
e t

o 
tak

e i
t fo

rw
ard

 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

Bo
ard

 In
du

cti
on

 Pr
oc

es
s c

om
ple

ted
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

  
Pu

bli
c c

on
su

lta
tio

n, 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Ap
po

int
me

nt 
of 

De
sig

n C
on

su
lta

nts
 by

 M
ay

 20
09

 
‘Ke

y f
ea

tur
e’ 

Pla
nn

ing
 Ap

pli
ca

tio
n S

ub
mi

tte
d b

y A
ug

us
t 

20
09

 

26
. D

eli
ve

r a
 ra

ng
e o

f c
ult

ura
l 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e B

ish
op

s S
qu

are
 

Cu
ltu

ral
 Tr

ail
 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

W
ork

s o
n s

ite
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Pil
ot 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tor

y B
ud

ge
tin

g P
roc

es
s c

om
ple

ted
 

by
 Ju

ne
 20

09
  

De
ve

lop
 an

d b
eg

in 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f a

 pr
og

ram
me

 of
 w

ork
 

to 
su

pp
ort

 th
e f

urt
he

r lo
ca

lisa
tio

n o
f k

ey
 fro

nt 
lin

e s
erv

ice
s 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

wo
rk 

pla
n t

o i
mb

ed
 th

e c
om

mu
nit

ies
 in

 co
ntr

ol 
ac

t –
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 ar

ou
nd

: 
du

ty 
to 

pro
mo

te 
de

mo
cra

cy
, m

ak
ing

 de
mo

cra
cy

 vi
sib

le,
 

civ
ic 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
, a

nd
 in

vo
lvin

g p
eo

ple
 in

 de
cis

ion
 

ma
kin

g, 
Ju

ne
 20

09
 

27
. U

tilis
e t

he
 Lo

ca
l S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

to 
pro

vid
e m

ore
 ef

fic
ien

t a
nd

 lo
ca

lise
d 

se
rvi

ce
s 

  

 Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

 
 Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
, L

SP
, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

   
De

ve
lop

 a 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 st
ren

gth
en

ing
 th

e w
ork

 of
 LA

Ps
 in

 
loc

al 
sc

rut
iny

 by
 Au

gu
st 

20
09

 
28

. D
eli

ve
r a

 pr
og

ram
me

 of
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 
to 

the
 lo

ca
l h

ist
ory

 an
d a

rch
ive

 se
rvi

ce
 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 
Ap

po
int

me
nt 

of 
He

rita
ge

 M
an

ag
er 

(tw
o y

ea
r c

on
tra

ct)
 by

 
Ma

y 2
00

9 

Page 82



21
 

 

Be
gin

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f  B
an

cro
ft L

ibr
ary

 ca
pit

al 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 pr
og

ram
me

, A
ug

us
t 2

00
9 

     

He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

Pr
og

ram
me

d I
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

co
mp

let
ed

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Pr
ior
ity
 2.
3: 
Su

pp
ort

 vi
bra

nt 
tow

n c
en
tre

s a
nd
 a 
cle

an
er,

 sa
fer

 pu
bli
c r
ea
lm
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ke

y a
gre

ed
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

is 
ye

ar 
is 

to 
im
pr
ov
e c

lea
nli
ne
ss
 an

d q
ua
lity

 of
 th
e p

ub
lic
 re
alm

 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.3
.1 

   P
rov

idi
ng

 fir
st-

cla
ss

 an
d w

ell
 m

an
ag

ed
 ce

ntr
es

 w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

co
me

 to
ge

the
r fo

r b
us

ine
ss

, s
ho

pp
ing

, le
isu

re 
an

d r
ec

rea
tio

n 
2.3

.2 
   S

up
po

rtin
g a

nd
 im

pro
vin

g o
pe

n s
pa

ce
s 

2.3
.3 

   I
mp

rov
ing

 st
ree

t li
gh

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g g
raf

fiti
 an

d l
itte

r 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
Of

fic
ial

 Jo
urn

al 
of 

the
 EU

 fo
r W

as
te 

Dis
po

sa
l 

Co
ntr

ac
t p

roc
ure

me
nt,

 M
ay

 20
09

 
Pil

ot 
Cle

an
sin

g c
oo

rdi
na

tio
n p

roj
ec

t w
ith

 TH
H 

sta
rts

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 
Dr

aft
 St

rat
eg

y C
on

su
lta

tio
n D

oc
um

en
t c

om
ple

ted
 

by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9  

 

29
. D

ev
elo

p a
nd

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 W

as
te 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d 
the

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 Im

pro
ve

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 

to 
de

live
r a

 m
ea

su
rab

ly 
cle

an
er,

 sa
fer

 an
d m

ore
 

su
sta

ina
ble

 en
vir

on
me

nt 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Pu
bli

c 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Dr
aft

 Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 St

rat
eg

y a
pp

rov
ed

 by
 C

PD
G,

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 

30
. D

eli
ve

r th
e B

oro
ug

h-w
ide

 To
wn

 C
en

tre
 St

rat
eg

y  
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y D
&R

 

Le
t c

on
tra

ct 
an

d c
om

me
nc

e w
ork

 on
 R

om
an

 
Ro

ad
 To

wn
 C

en
tre

 ad
vic

e, 
tra

ini
ng

 an
d s

up
po

rt 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
Ju

ne
 20

09
 (J

am
ie 

Ou
na

n /
 An

ne
-

Ma
rie

 Be
rni

) 

Page 83



22
 

 

Le
t c

on
tra

ct 
an

d c
om

me
nc

e a
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 

str
ate

gy
 an

d m
ark

eti
ng

 ca
mp

aig
n f

or 
Ro

ma
n 

Ro
ad

 To
wn

 C
en

tre
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 (
Ja

mi
e 

Ou
na

n /
 An

ne
-M

ari
e B

ern
i) 

 
 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 Sp

ati
al 

Str
ate

gy
 ap

pro
ve

d b
y J

uly
 

20
09

 
31

. In
clu

sio
n o

f th
e H

igh
 St

ree
t 2

01
2 V

isio
n S

tud
y 

pro
po

sa
ls 

as
 a 

ke
y s

tra
teg

ic 
pro

gra
mm

e w
ith

in 
LD

F  
 

Cll
r L

uft
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

 
Sta

tus
 of

 H
igh

 St
ree

t 2
01

2 e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 w

ith
 

Pr
efe

rre
d O

pti
on

 si
gn

ed
 of

f a
t C

ab
ine

t J
uly

 20
09

 
(N

ick
 Sm

ale
s) 

En
gli

sh
 H

eri
tag

e f
un

din
g a

wa
rde

d, 
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
of 

pro
fes

sio
na

l te
am

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 

Ju
ne

 20
09

 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

of 
co

ntr
ac

tor
 co

mp
let

e b
y 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

. 

32
. D

es
ign

, d
ev

elo
p a

nd
 co

mm
en

ce
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
of 

the
 H

igh
 St

ree
t 2

01
2 H

ist
ori

c B
uil

din
g 

Co
ns

erv
ati

on
 Sc

he
me

 in
clu

din
g s

ec
uri

ng
 En

gli
sh

 
He

rita
ge

 fu
nd

ing
. 

Cll
r L

uft
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

 
Ph

ys
ica

l w
ork

s c
om

me
nc

e, 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

Ro
ad

 Sa
fet

y A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 co

mp
let

ed
 by

 M
ay

 20
09

 
33

. D
eli

ve
r th

e L
oc

al 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n P
lan

 to
 

im
pro

ve
 ro

ad
 sa

fet
y  

 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Pu
bli

c 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Ro
ad

 Sa
fet

y P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Gr

ou
p i

nc
lud

ing
 Po

lice
, 

TfL
 an

d C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty 
for

me
d, 

Ju
ne

 20
09

 
 

Pr
ior
ity
 2.
4: 
Im

pro
ve
 th
e e

nv
iro
nm

en
t a
nd
 ta
ck
le 
cli
ma

te 
ch
an
ge

 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.2
.3 

Re
du

cin
g e

ne
rgy

 us
e a

nd
 us

ing
 m

ore
 re

ne
wa

ble
 en

erg
y s

ou
rce

s 
2.2

.4 
Fo

cu
sin

g o
n r

eu
sin

g w
he

rev
er 

po
ss

ibl
e a

nd
 re

cy
clin

g m
ore

 
2.

2.
5 

Ad
ap

tin
g o

ur 
bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

to 
co

pe
 w

ith
 th

e c
ha

ng
ing

 cl
im

ate
 an

d w
ea

the
r p

att
ern

s 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 

Page 84



23
 

Of
fic
er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Ca

rbo
n M

an
ag

em
en

t P
lan

 (C
MP

) w
hic

h 
co

nta
ins

 th
e c

ou
nc

il’s
 ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc

tio
n 

tar
ge

ts 
to 

20
20

, a
do

pte
d b

y C
ab

ine
t, A

pri
l 

20
09

 (J
ac

kie
 O

du
no

ye
) 

Ide
nti

fy 
fun

din
g a

nd
 pr

oje
cts

 th
at 

wil
l 

ac
hie

ve
 th

e r
ed

uc
tio

n o
f 2

5%
 ca

rbo
n 

em
iss

ion
s b

y 2
01

2, 
Ju

ne
 20

09
 (J

ac
kie

 
Od

un
oy

e) 

34
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 C
arb

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
lan

 to
 re

du
ce

 
ca

rbo
n e

mi
ss

ion
s g

en
era

ted
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il 
 

Cll
r. O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e 
 

Su
bm

it f
un

din
g p

rop
os

al 
to 

Lo
nd

on
 

Cli
ma

te 
Ch

an
ge

 Ag
en

cy
 to

 fu
nd

 ca
rbo

n 
red

uc
tio

n p
roj

ec
ts 

(LC
CA

) S
ep

tem
be

r 
20

09
 (J

ac
kie

 O
du

no
ye

) 
20

09
 R

ec
yc

lin
g M

ark
eti

ng
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

co
mp

let
ed

 by
 Ap

ril 
20

09
   

Th
ree

 R
SL

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 re
cy

clin
g a

cti
on

 
pla

ns
 in

 pl
ac

e b
y J

un
e 2

00
9 

1st
 St

ag
e F

un
din

g S
ub

mi
ss

ion
 to

 Lo
nd

on
 

W
as

te 
Re

cy
clin

g B
oa

rd 
co

mp
let

ed
 by

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 

35
. Im

pro
ve

 re
cy

clin
g r

ate
s t

hro
ug

h t
arg

ete
d 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 an
d b

ett
er 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 So

cia
l L

an
dlo

rds
 

an
d o

the
r p

art
ne

rs 
 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Pu
bli

c 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

TH
H 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f fo
od

 w
as

te 
co

lle
cti

on
s t

o 7
00

0 h
om

es
 co

mp
let

ed
 by

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09

   
Sta

rt d
isc

us
sio

ns
 w

ith
 th

e E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

Ag
en

cy
 on

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

 lo
ca

l 
ac

tio
n p

lan
 by

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 
36

. In
 co

lla
bo

rat
ion

 w
ith

 th
e E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y t

o 
co

mp
let

e t
he

 pr
im

ary
 st

ag
es

 of
 pr

og
ram

me
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

to 
de

live
r th

e p
rio

rity
 ac

tio
ns

 ar
isin

g f
rom

 th
e E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
Ag

en
cy

's 
Th

am
es

 C
atc

hm
en

t F
loo

d M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lan
. 

 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Br

ya
n J

on
es

 
 

Page 85



24
 

 

Ag
ree

 pr
ior

ity
 ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

 th
e E

A f
or 

Ye
ars

 
2 (

20
09

/10
) a

nd
 3 

(20
10

/11
) b

y A
ug

us
t 

20
09

 
 

 

Co
mp

let
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
' M

ult
i A

ge
nc

y 
Flo

od
 Pl

an
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 

Page 86



25
 

A 
Pr

os
pe

ro
us

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
 Pr
ior
ity
 3.
1: 
Su

pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ke
y a

gre
ed

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r th
is 

ye
ar 

is 
to 
rai
se
 G
CS

E r
es
ult
s t
o b

e t
he
 be

st 
in 
the

 co
un
try

 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

3.1
.1 

Inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 un
de

r 5
s w

ho
se

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

vid
es

 th
e b

es
t p

os
sib

le 
fou

nd
ati

on
 fo

r lo
ng

 te
rm

 su
cc

es
s 

3.1
.2 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
sc

ho
ols

, s
o t

ha
t y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
ac

qu
ire

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 sk

ills
 th

ey
 ne

ed
 to

 fu
lfil 

the
ir f

ull
 po

ten
tia

l 
3.1

.3 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 co

nti
nu

ou
s l

ea
rni

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

, s
o e

ve
ryo

ne
 ca

n l
ea

rn 
ba

sic
 an

d n
ew

 sk
ills

 at
 an

y a
ge

 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
Au

dit
s o

f A
ss

es
sm

en
t fo

r L
ea

rni
ng

 (A
fL)

 pr
ac

tic
e 

in 
sc

ho
ols

 su
pp

ort
ed

 an
d a

cti
on

 pl
an

s d
ev

elo
pe

d 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 (
Eil

ee
n W

els
h) 

As
se

ss
me

nt 
co

ns
ult

an
t a

pp
oin

ted
 an

d i
n p

lac
e, 

su
pp

ort
ing

 sc
ho

ols
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 (
Eil

ee
n 

W
els

h) 
 

Da
ta 

gro
up

 to
 id

en
tify

 an
d a

na
lys

e b
y g

rou
p 

low
es

t 2
0%

 by
 Au

gu
st 

20
09

 (E
arl

y Y
ea

rs 
Fo

un
da

tio
n S

tag
e; 

Gi
ll W

rob
el)

  
Da

ta 
gro

up
’s 

an
aly

sis
 to

 in
for

m 
sc

ho
ol 

SIP
 

sta
nd

ard
s v

isit
s w

ith
 id

en
tifi

ed
 ac

tio
ns

 by
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 (E
arl

y Y
ea

rs 
Fo

un
da

tio
n S

tag
e; 

Gi
ll W

rob
el)

 

37
. Im

pro
ve

 G
CS

E r
es

ult
s t

o b
e t

he
 be

st 
in 

the
 co

un
try

 by
 

im
ple

me
nti

ng
 th

e p
rio

riti
es

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e C
hil

dre
n a

nd
 

Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
’s 

Pla
n, 

wit
h a

n e
mp

ha
sis

 on
 ev

ide
nc

e-
ba

se
d i

nte
rve

nti
on

 an
d p

ers
on

ali
se

d l
ea

rni
ng

 to
 su

pp
ort

 al
l 

pu
pil

s t
o m

ax
im

ise
 th

eir
 po

ten
tia

l 
Mo

nit
ore

d t
hro

ug
h C

YP
P E

njo
y a

nd
 Ac

hie
ve

 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ca

rm
el 

Lit
tle

ton
, 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

As
se

ss
ing

 Pu
pil

s’ 
Pr

og
res

s (
AP

P)
 to

 be
 

em
be

dd
ed

 ac
ros

s s
ec

on
da

ry 
sc

ho
ol 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
an

d y
ea

r g
rou

ps
 at

 Ke
y S

tag
e 3

 by
 

Page 87



26
 

 
 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 (E
ile

en
 W

els
h) 

Op
en

ing
 of

 fir
st 

BS
F s

ch
oo

l, S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

9 
(A

nn
 Su

tcl
iffe

)  
Cll

r  A
bd

ul 
As

ad
 

 An
n S

utc
liff

e, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
 

Co
mm

en
ce

me
nt 

on
 si

te 
of 

ne
xt 

ph
as

e s
ch

oo
ls 

(Ia
n M

ika
rdo

, M
orp

eth
, S

ir J
oh

n C
as

s) 
by

 M
arc

h 
20

10
 (A

nn
 Su

tcl
iffe

)  
38

. R
eb

uil
d o

r re
fur

bis
h a

ll o
f o

ur 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

, 
thr

ou
gh

 Bu
ild

ing
 Sc

ho
ols

 fo
r th

e F
utu

re,
 an

d u
pg

rad
e o

ur 
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
es

tat
e t

hro
ug

h P
rim

ary
 St

rat
eg

y f
or 

Ch
an

ge
 

Mo
nit

ore
d t

hro
ug

h B
SF

, P
rim

ary
 St

rat
eg

y f
or 

Ch
an

ge
 an

d 
CY

PP
 EC

S 
Cll

r  A
bd

ul 
As

ad
 

 Iso
be

l C
att

erm
ole

, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 

>F
ea

sib
ility

 st
ud

ies
 fo

r P
rim

ary
 St

rat
eg

y f
or 

Ch
an

ge
 sc

he
me

s t
o b

e c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
  

>S
tar

t o
n s

ite
 of

 fir
st 

ph
as

e P
SfC

 (6
 sc

ho
ols

) b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 (P
at 

W
ats

on
) 

Int
rod

uc
e a

 ye
ar 

7 a
ud

it o
f tr

an
sit

ion
 

pro
gra

mm
es

 an
d s

up
po

rt t
hro

ug
h L

AP
 ba

se
d 

Pa
ren

t S
up

po
rt C

oo
rdi

na
tor

s b
y J

un
e 2

00
9 (

Jill
 

Mc
Gi

nle
y) 

 
Es

tab
lish

 fo
cu

s g
rou

p f
or 

pa
ren

ts 
of 

ch
ild

ren
 in

 
ye

ar 
7 t

o d
ev

elo
p a

n a
cti

on
 pl

an
 ba

se
d o

n t
he

 
Sc

rut
iny

 R
ev

iew
 an

d F
ind

 Yo
ur 

Ta
len

t F
am

ily 
Str

an
d c

on
su

lta
tio

n b
y D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 (

Jill
 

Mc
Gi

nle
y) 

  

39
. E

xp
an

d p
are

nta
l e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 le
arn

ing
 

pro
gra

mm
es

 in
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 so
 th

at 
pa

ren
ts 

an
d 

ca
rer

s g
et 

inv
olv

ed
 in

 su
pp

ort
ing

 th
eir

 ch
ild

ren
’s 

lea
rni

ng
, 

an
d l

ea
rn 

wit
h t

he
m 

Mo
nit

ore
d t

hro
ug

h C
YP

P E
njo

y a
nd

 Ac
hie

ve
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 He

len
 Je

nn
er,

 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
 

De
live

r a
t le

as
t o

ne
 fa

mi
ly 

wo
rks

ho
p o

r e
ve

nt 
lin

ke
d t

o e
ve

ry 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0 

(Ji
ll M

cG
inl

ey
)  

Re
vis

ed
 W

ork
ing

 N
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s F
un

d d
eli

ve
ry 

pla
n t

o b
e n

eg
oti

ate
d a

nd
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 
by

 en
d o

f M
ay

 20
09

 (F
ion

a P
ate

rso
n) 

40
. C

om
mi

ss
ion

 an
 ad

dit
ion

al 
86

0 e
ntr

y l
ev

el 
En

gli
sh

 as
 a 

Se
co

nd
 La

ng
ua

ge
 pl

ac
es

 
Mo

nit
ore

d t
hro

ug
h L

AA
 ES

OL
 D

eli
ve

ry 
Pla

n  
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n, 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Pr
oje

ct 
Co

ord
ina

tor
 an

d t
ea

ch
ing

 st
aff

 to
 be

 
ide

nti
fie

d b
y J

un
e 2

00
9 (

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n) 

 

Page 88



27
 

  
 

Fir
st 

int
ak

e o
f le

arn
ers

 re
cru

ite
d a

nd
 as

se
ss

ed
 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (F

ion
a P

ate
rso

n) 
 

Ide
as

 St
ore

s R
efr

es
h S

tra
teg

y r
ep

ort
 to

 C
ab

ine
t, 

Ju
ly 

20
09

 
Ide

a S
tor

e S
tra

teg
y A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

sta
rte

d J
uly

 20
09

 
41

. D
eli

ve
r th

e r
efr

es
he

d I
de

a S
tor

e S
tra

teg
y t

o e
ns

ure
 

gre
ate

r li
bra

ry 
us

ag
e, 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in

 lit
era

cy
 an

d 
nu

me
rac

y 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e 
Ah

me
d 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Cu

ltu
ral

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 
Cu

ltu
re 

Pr
ior

ity
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
roj

ec
ts 

sc
op

ed
 an

d u
nd

erw
ay

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Co
mm

iss
ion

, p
ub

lici
se

 an
d d

eli
ve

r u
p t

o 2
5 

po
sit

ive
 ac

tiv
itie

s f
or 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 (P

AY
P)

 
pro

jec
ts 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

, p
ub

lici
se

 an
d d

eli
ve

r u
p t

o 5
 

tar
ge

ted
/ s

pe
cif

ic 
PA

YP
 in

itia
tiv

es
 by

 Ja
nu

ary
 

20
10

  

42
. E

xte
nd

 th
e r

an
ge

 of
 po

sit
ive

 ac
tiv

itie
s a

nd
 re

co
rde

d 
an

d a
cc

red
ite

d o
utc

om
es

 av
ail

ab
le 

ou
tsi

de
 of

 sc
ho

ol 
ho

urs
, e

ns
uri

ng
 al

l c
hil

dre
n a

nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 ha
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 

Mo
nit

ore
d t

hro
ug

h C
YP

P M
ak

e a
 Po

sit
ive

 C
on

trib
uti

on
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n, 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Ag
ree

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r 2
01

0-1
1 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0  

Pr
ior
ity
 3.
2: 

Re
du

ce
 w
ork

les
sn
es
s 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ke

y a
gre

ed
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

is 
ye

ar 
is 

to 
red

uc
e l
ev
els

 of
 yo

uth
 un

em
plo

ym
en
t 

Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

3.2
.1 

He
lpi

ng
 fa

mi
lie

s e
sc

ap
e p

ov
ert

y, 
by

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
up

po
rt a

nd
 ad

vic
e o

n d
eb

t m
an

ag
em

en
t  

3.2
.2 

Ide
nti

fyi
ng

 an
d r

em
ov

ing
 ba

rrie
rs 

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t fo

r ta
rge

t g
rou

ps
  

3.
2.

3 
He

lpi
ng

 pe
op

le 
to 

ge
t e

mp
loy

me
nt 

by
 en

su
rin

g t
he

re 
is 

su
pp

ort
 an

d t
rai

nin
g b

efo
re 

an
d a

fte
r th

ey
 ge

t a
 jo

b 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 

Page 89



28
 

La
un

ch
 of

 Em
plo

ym
en

t S
tra

teg
y b

y M
ay

 20
09

 (S
ue

 
Hin

ds
) 

SL
A’s

 in
 pl

ac
e w

ith
 ke

y d
eli

ve
ry 

ag
en

ts 
by

 Au
gu

st 
20

09
 

(N
ick

 Sm
ale

s) 
De

ve
lop

 a 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 re
lat

ed
 re

cru
itm

en
t a

nd
 tra

ini
ng

 
fac

ility
 on

 W
oo

d W
ha

rf s
ite

 (s
ub

jec
t to

 w
ork

 
co

mm
en

cin
g o

n s
ite

) o
pe

rat
ion

al 
by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 (

Su
e 

Hin
ds

) 
Ne

go
tia

te 
a m

ini
mu

m 
of 

5 a
pp

ren
tic

es
hip

s p
er 

ye
ar 

an
d 

1 i
nte

rns
hip

 pe
r y

ea
r o

n W
oo

d W
ha

rf d
ev

elo
pm

en
t, 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 

43
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 w
ith

in 
the

 Em
plo

ym
en

t 
Str

ate
gy

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

sid
en

ts 
ac

ce
ss

 ne
w 

an
d e

xis
tin

g j
ob

s a
nd

 th
ere

by
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

nu
mb

ers
 of

 pe
op

le 
on

 ou
t o

f w
ork

 be
ne

fits
 

 

Cll
r O

liu
r 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

 

Inc
rea

se
 th

e n
um

be
r o

f p
ub

lic 
se

cto
r a

pp
ren

tic
es

hip
s 

by
 50

, M
arc

h 2
01

0 (
Ma

rk 
Gr

im
ley

) 
Str

ate
gy

 to
 be

 ag
ree

d b
y C

ab
ine

t in
 M

ay
 20

09
 (L

ay
la 

Ric
ha

rds
) 

La
un

ch
 of

 st
rat

eg
y w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

, J
un

e 2
00

9 (
La

yla
 

Ric
ha

rds
)  

44
. D

ev
elo

p a
nd

 de
live

r o
ur 

Ch
ild

 Po
ve

rty
 St

rat
eg

y 
an

d A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 

Ch
ild

 Po
ve

rty
 St

rat
eg

y 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ca

rm
el 

Lit
tle

ton
,  

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

De
live

ry 
of 

str
ate

gy
 fro

m 
Ma

y 2
00

9, 
to 

be
 m

on
ito

red
 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e C
hil

dre
n a

nd
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

’s 
Str

ate
gic

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 G

rou
p  

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t a

dv
ice

 fu
nc

tio
n e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 in
 H

om
ele

ss
 

Se
rvi

ce
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
09

 (C
oli

n C
orm

ac
k) 

45
. In

cre
as

e e
mp

loy
me

nt 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r v

uln
era

ble
 

pe
op

le,
 in

 pa
rtic

ula
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 di
sa

bil
itie

s a
nd

 
me

nta
l h

ea
lth

 pr
ob

lem
s a

nd
 th

os
e e

xp
eri

en
cin

g 
ho

me
les

sn
es

s 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

an
d C

llr 
Ma

rc 
Fra

nc
is 

 De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

 
Fu

ll o
utr

ea
ch

 se
rvi

ce
 fo

r fa
mi

lie
s i

n t
em

po
rar

y 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 op

era
tio

na
l b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

9 (
Za

kia
 

An
wa

r) 

Page 90



29
 

 

Ne
w 

co
ntr

ac
ts 

for
 su

pp
ort

ed
 em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 jo

b 
bro

ke
rag

e s
erv

ice
s f

or 
pe

op
le 

wit
h d

isa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 

me
nta

l h
ea

lth
 pr

ob
lem

s i
n p

lac
e b

y O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

(C
he

ryl
 Sp

en
ce

r)  
La

un
ch

 tra
ns

po
rt v

ale
tin

g s
oc

ial
 en

ter
pri

se
 by

 O
cto

be
r 

20
09

 (C
he

ryl
 Sp

en
ce

r) 

 
 

Ou
tre

ac
h s

up
po

rt p
rog

ram
me

 de
live

red
 to

 12
0 

ho
us

eh
old

s/f
am

ilie
s b

y M
arc

h 2
01

0 (
Za

kia
 An

wa
r) 

Ag
ree

 em
plo

ye
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t s
tra

teg
y t

hro
ug

h t
he

 H
ub

 
Bo

ard
 by

 en
d J

un
e 2

00
9 (

Tin
a S

od
e) 

 
Pu

t in
 pl

ac
e c

are
er 

pro
gre

ss
ion

 ro
ute

s f
or 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

lin
kin

g w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
ed

uc
ati

on
 an

d w
ork

-ba
se

d l
ea

rni
ng

 pr
ov

ide
rs,

 by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (to
 be

 us
ed

 as
 a 

mo
de

l fo
r 4

 fu
rth

er 
se

cto
rs 

to 
be

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
) 

La
un

ch
 th

e T
ee

na
ge

 Pa
ren

ts 
Pr

oje
ct 

at 
the

 Br
om

ley
 by

 
Bo

w 
Ce

ntr
e  

by
 Ju

ne
 20

09
 (K

ev
in 

Mu
nd

ay
) 

Pr
od

uc
e K

S4
 at

 ris
k t

rac
kin

g r
ep

ort
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 
(K

ev
in 

Mu
nd

ay
)  

46
. R

ed
uc

e l
ev

els
 of

 yo
uth

 un
em

plo
ym

en
t b

y 
ag

ree
ing

 a 
14

-19
 se

cto
r p

ath
wa

y t
o e

mp
loy

me
nt 

wit
h 

loc
al 

em
plo

ye
rs,

 lin
ke

d t
o a

ll 1
4 D

ipl
om

a l
ine

s o
f 

lea
rni

ng
, a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 ta
rge

ted
 le

arn
ing

 pr
og

ram
me

s 
for

 ea
ch

 si
gn

ific
an

t g
rou

p o
f 1

4-1
8 l

ea
rne

rs 
at 

ris
k o

f 
be

co
mi

ng
 N

EE
T 

Mo
nit

ore
d t

hro
ug

h C
YP

P A
EW

 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
  Ca

rm
el 

Lit
tle

ton
,  

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

La
un

ch
 a 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f w
ork

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

lea
vin

g c
are

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ke
vin

 M
un

da
y) 

Pr
ior
ity
 3.
3: 

Fo
ste

r e
nte

rpr
ise

 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

3.3
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 in
ce

nti
ve

s t
ha

t e
nc

ou
rag

e b
oth

 bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 so

cia
l e

ntr
ep

ren
eu

rsh
ip 

3.3
.2 

Ma
xim

isin
g t

he
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r lo

ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es

 to
 be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

ke
y g

row
th 

se
cto

rs,
 an

d t
he

 O
lym

pic
 / P

ara
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 
3.3

.3 
Pr

om
oti

ng
 lo

ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es

 an
d e

nc
ou

rag
ing

 gr
ow

th 
an

d t
ou

ris
m,

 w
ith

 pa
rtic

ula
r e

mp
ha

sis
 on

 th
e O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

s  

Page 91



30
 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
Co

mm
en

ce
 ca

pit
al 

W
ork

s t
o d

eli
ve

r a
 su

sta
ina

ble
 pr

op
ert

y 
for

 co
mm

un
ity

 tra
ns

fer
, in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e f
ind

ing
s o

f th
e Q

uir
k 

Re
vie

w,
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 (A

nd
y A

lga
r, D

&R
) 

Co
mp

let
e r

efr
es

h o
f th

e T
hir

d S
ec

tor
 St

rat
eg

y b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 

20
09

  
Ag

ree
 pr

op
os

als
 re

lat
ing

 to
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r in

fra
str

uc
tur

e a
nd

 
mo

re 
co

-or
din

ate
d u

se
 of

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 re
so

urc
es

 by
 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

 

47
. R

efr
es

h t
he

 Th
ird

 Se
cto

r S
tra

teg
y a

nd
 

Co
mp

ac
t to

 en
su

re 
tha

t w
e f

ull
y s

up
po

rt t
he

se
 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 

  

Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

 
 Lu

tfu
r A

li 

Ag
ree

 et
hic

al 
go

ve
rna

nc
e f

ram
ew

ork
 fo

r w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e T

hir
d 

Se
cto

r b
y J

an
ua

ry 
20

10
  

En
ter

pri
se

 St
rat

eg
y a

gre
ed

 by
 C

ou
nc

il, 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 (S

ue
 

Hin
ds

) 
Ag

ree
 th

e s
co

pe
 of

 ne
w 

du
ty 

to 
de

live
r a

n e
co

no
mi

c 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

for
 th

e a
rea

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ju
an

ita
 

Ha
yn

es
) 

48
. D

ev
elo

p a
n E

nte
rpr

ise
 St

rat
eg

y w
hic

h s
ets

 
ou

t o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o f
os

ter
ing

 bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 

en
tre

pre
ne

urs
hip

. 

Cll
r  O

liu
r R

ah
ma

n 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

D&
R 

 
 

£7
.5m

 w
ort

h o
f c

on
tra

cts
 se

cu
red

 by
 To

we
r H

am
let

s b
as

ed
 

SM
Es

 th
rou

gh
 Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 Bu
sin

es
s P

lac
e b

y M
arc

h 2
01

0 
(S

ue
 H

ind
s) 

Pr
om

oti
on

 an
d l

au
nc

h o
f th

e n
ew

 Q
uir

ky
 Sh

op
pin

g G
uid

e 
(20

12
 in

for
ma

tio
n i

nc
lud

ed
) M

ay
 20

09
 (P

at 
Ho

lm
es

) 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n a
nd

 Ex
ec

uti
on

 of
 Bu

sin
es

s T
ou

ris
m 

Ma
rke

tin
g a

nd
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
 in

 ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 ag
ree

d 
pro

gra
mm

e  
of 

ex
hib

its
 at

 tra
de

 sh
ow

s; 
IM

EX
 09

 M
ay

 20
09

; 
EIB

TM
 09

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 (
Pa

t H
olm

es
) 

49
. M

ark
et 

To
we

r H
am

let
s a

s t
he

 ke
y v

isit
or 

de
sti

na
tio

n f
or 

the
 O

lym
pic

 G
am

es
 an

d 
su

pp
ort

 ve
nu

es
 an

d o
the

r s
up

pli
ers

 to
 

ca
pit

ali
se

 on
 th

is 
 

Cll
r L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

To
we

r H
am

let
s s

ma
ll v

en
ue

s c
on

so
rtiu

m 
for

 w
eb

 
ba

se
d p

rom
oti

on
 th

rou
gh

 Lo
nd

on
 Ea

st 
sid

e, 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 (P

at 

Page 92



31
 

   A
 Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti

ve
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

  
 

Ho
lm

es
) 

Pr
ior
ity
 4.
1: 
Em

po
we

r o
lde

r a
nd
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt f

am
ilie

s 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

4.1
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 re
sp

on
siv

e a
nd

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
ad

ult
s w

hic
h p

rom
ote

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, c
ho

ice
, s

ec
uri

ty 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y 
4.1

.2 
  P

rot
ec

tin
g c

hil
dre

n f
rom

 ha
rm

 an
d n

eg
lec

t 
4.1

.3 
  P

rev
en

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

, a
nd

 he
lpi

ng
 m

ore
 pe

op
le 

int
o s

ett
led

 ho
me

s a
nd

 em
plo

ym
en

t 
4.1

.4 
  Im

pro
vin

g s
up

po
rt f

or 
ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
wit

h d
isa

bil
itie

s a
nd

 th
eir

 fa
mi

lie
s 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
Fu

lly 
es

tab
lish

 ne
w 

To
we

r H
am

let
s o

utr
ea

ch
 

se
rvi

ce
 fo

r ro
ug

h s
lee

pe
rs 

by
 Ju

ly 
20

09
 (D

av
id 

Gi
ng

ell
) 

Pr
ov

ide
 tra

ini
ng

 on
 us

e o
f th

e C
om

mo
n 

As
se

ss
em

en
t F

ram
ew

ork
 (C

AF
) to

 H
om

ele
ss

 
Se

rvi
ce

 st
aff

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (C

oli
n C

orm
ac

k) 
 

Ag
ree

 a 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 st
rat

eg
y f

or 
su

pp
ort

ed
 

ho
us

ing
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

(C
arr

ie 
Kil

pa
tric

k) 

50
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 H
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 St
rat

eg
y t

o f
urt

he
r 

red
uc

e t
he

 in
cid

en
ce

 of
 ho

me
les

sn
es

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 
an

d i
mp

rov
e s

up
po

rt t
o i

nd
ivid

ua
ls 

an
d f

am
ilie

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ing

 ho
me

les
sn

es
s 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Jo

hn
 R

oo
g 

Fu
lly 

int
rod

uc
e u

se
 of

 C
AF

 in
 H

om
ele

ss
 Se

rvi
ce

 
for

 ch
ild

ren
, y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
an

d f
am

ilie
s b

y M
arc

h 
20

10
 (C

oli
n C

orm
ac

k) 

Page 93



32
 

Es
tab

lish
 C

are
rs 

Str
ate

gy
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n G
rou

p 
by

 M
ay

 20
09

 (P
en

ny
 C

oll
ier

)  
Re

ac
h a

gre
em

en
t w

ith
 PC

T o
n p

rog
ram

me
 fo

r 
int

rod
uc

tio
n o

f c
are

rs 
reg

ist
ers

 in
 pr

im
ary

 ca
re 

by
 

Ju
ne

 20
09

 (P
en

ny
 C

oll
ier

) 
51

. Im
pro

ve
 su

pp
ort

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 fo
r c

are
rs 

ac
ros

s 
the

 w
ho

le 
of 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r 
Co

mp
let

e r
ev

iew
 of

 cu
rre

nt 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r c

are
rs 

res
pit

e a
nd

 br
ea

ks
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (P

en
ny

 C
oll

ier
) 

Re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 on

 pr
ice

 po
int

 to
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

Bo
ard

 fo
llo

win
g d

es
kto

p R
es

ou
rce

 Al
loc

ati
on

 
Sy

ste
m 

(R
AS

) e
xe

rci
se

 by
 M

ay
 20

09
 (S

ara
h F

ord
) 

All
 tri

al 
gro

up
s i

n p
lac

e b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
9 (

Sa
rah

 
Fo

rd)
 

As
se

ss
 an

d a
ud

it t
he

 w
ork

for
ce

 sk
ills

 m
ix 

req
uir

ed
 

to 
de

live
r tr

an
sfo

rm
ati

on
 ag

en
da

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

 (B
ria

n C
oll

ym
ore

) 
Co

ns
ult

 on
 ne

w 
wo

rke
r ro

les
 an

d c
om

pe
ten

cie
s 

fra
me

wo
rk 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0 (

Br
ian

 C
oll

ym
ore

) 

52
. D

eli
ve

r th
e T

ran
sfo

rm
ing

 So
cia

l C
are

 pr
og

ram
me

 
pu

ttin
g p

eo
ple

 w
ho

 us
e s

erv
ice

s i
n c

on
tro

l o
f th

eir
 ow

n 
ca

re 
 

 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r 

Ou
tco

me
 of

 tri
all

ing
 of

 R
AS

 an
d s

elf
-as

se
ss

me
nt 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 C
ab

ine
t M

arc
h 2

01
0 (

Sa
ra 

Fo
rd)

  
Se

rvi
ce

 in
teg

rat
ion

 pr
op

os
als

 pr
es

en
ted

 fo
r 

ag
ree

me
nt 

by
 LA

 an
d P

CT
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 (J
oh

n 
Ro

og
) 

Sta
ke

ho
lde

r c
on

su
lta

tio
n o

n p
rop

os
als

 co
mp

let
ed

 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 (J

oh
n R

oo
g) 

Sta
ff c

on
su

lta
tio

n c
om

ple
ted

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

(Jo
hn

 R
oo

g) 

53
. D

eli
ve

r fu
lly 

int
eg

rat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
 pr

ov
isio

n a
cro

ss
 

he
alt

h a
nd

 so
cia

l c
are

 
Cll

r A
nw

ara
 Al

i  
 Jo

hn
 R

oo
g 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f in
teg

rat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
 M

arc
h 2

01
0 

(Jo
hn

 R
oo

g) 

Page 94



33
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 fra

me
wo

rks
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h o
f 

lea
d c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 ar

ea
s a

nd
 ag

ree
me

nt 
of 

ali
gn

ed
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 cy
cle

s b
y M

ay
 20

09
 (H

ele
n 

Ta
ylo

r) 
Pa

pe
r s

ee
kin

g a
pp

rov
al 

to 
es

tab
lish

 fo
rm

al 
lea

d 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ab

ine
t 

an
d P

CT
 bo

ard
 by

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 (H
ele

n T
ay

lor
) 

54
. D

eli
ve

r fu
lly 

int
eg

rat
ed

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ac

ros
s h

ea
lth

 
an

d s
oc

ial
 ca

re 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r 
>S

ec
tio

n 7
5 a

gre
em

en
ts 

in 
pla

ce
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (H
ele

n T
ay

lor
) 

Im
ple

me
nt 

sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
 ad

ult
s q

ua
lity

 as
su

ran
ce

 
pro

ce
du

re 
Ma

y 2
00

9 (
To

ny
 G

ree
nw

oo
d) 

Fir
st 

rev
iew

 of
 D

ep
riv

ati
on

 of
 Li

be
rty

 Sa
feg

ua
rds

 
Ju

ne
 20

09
 (Ia

n W
illia

ms
on

) 
55

. F
urt

he
r s

tre
ng

the
n a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
ac

ros
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d t
he

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 pr

ote
ct 

vu
lne

rab
le 

ad
ult

s f
rom

 
ab

us
e, 

ha
rm

 an
d n

eg
lec

t  
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

 
Pu

bli
sh

 re
vis

ed
 sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 ad
ult

s p
roc

ed
ure

s 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 (T

on
y G

ree
nw

oo
d) 

Co
mp

let
e e

-sa
fet

y s
tra

teg
y, 

sig
ne

d o
ff b

y L
SC

B  
by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (M
on

aw
ara

 Ba
kh

t) 
Im

ple
me

nt 
Co

nta
ct 

Po
int

, a
 m

ult
i-a

ge
nc

y d
ata

ba
se

 
sig

np
os

tin
g a

ge
nc

ies
 w

ho
 w

ork
 w

ith
 a 

giv
en

 ch
ild

, 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 (
Ke

rry
 W

oo
d) 

 

56
. D

eli
ve

r p
rio

rity
 ac

tio
ns

 in
 th

e C
YP

P t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

ch
ild

ren
 an

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

are
 pr

ote
cte

d f
rom

 ha
rm

 an
d 

fee
l s

afe
 an

d c
on

fid
en

t in
 th

eir
 ar

ea
 

CY
PP

 St
ay

 Sa
fe 

  

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ka

mi
ni 

Ra
mb

ell
as

, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
 

Pu
bli

sh
 gu

ide
lin

es
 fo

r s
ch

oo
ls 

on
 id

en
tify

ing
 an

d 
su

pp
ort

ing
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
at 

ris
k o

f 
ha

rm
ing

 th
em

se
lve

s b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Im
pro

ve
 SA

P o
f 3

44
 ho

me
s o

f v
uln

era
ble

 te
na

nts
 

to 
a m

ini
mu

m 
SA

P o
f 7

0 b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 (

Ali
so

n 
Th

om
as

) 
57

. D
eli

ve
r a

 ra
ng

e o
f ta

rge
ted

 pr
og

ram
me

s o
f 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
to 

pri
va

te 
se

cto
r h

ou
sin

g s
toc

k t
ha

t 
su

pp
ort

 vu
lne

rab
le 

ho
us

eh
old

s t
o l

ive
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
, 

sa
fel

y, 
se

cu
rel

y a
nd

 fre
e f

rom
 fu

el 
po

ve
rty

 
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e 

Pu
bli

cis
e t

he
 av

ail
ab

ility
 of

 fin
an

cia
l a

ss
ist

an
ce

, 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 (A

liso
n T

ho
ma

s) 

Page 95



34
 

  
 

Ide
nti

fy 
vu

lne
rab

le 
pri

va
te 

se
cto

r re
sid

en
ts 

in 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

, O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ali
so

n T
ho

ma
s) 

De
ve

lop
 a 

mu
lti-

ag
en

cy
 tra

ns
itio

n c
are

 pa
thw

ay
 fo

r 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 re
qu

irin
g a

du
lt s

erv
ice

s b
y A

pri
l 

20
09

 (K
ha

lid
a K

ha
n) 

Su
bm

it a
pp

lica
tio

n t
o D

CS
F f

or 
pil

oti
ng

 in
div

idu
al 

bu
dg

ets
 fo

r d
isa

ble
d c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 th
eir

 fa
mi

lie
s b

y 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

Pu
bli

sh
 el

igi
bil

ity
 cr

ite
ria

 fo
r s

ho
rt b

rea
ks

 se
rvi

ce
s 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

58
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 ac
tio

ns
 in

 ou
r C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le’

s P
lan

 to
 im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 ca
re 

for
 ch

ild
ren

 
wit

h d
isa

bil
itie

s t
hro

ug
h a

 co
ord

ina
ted

, m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y 

ap
pro

ac
h  

CY
PP

 Be
 H

ea
lth

y 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ka

mi
ni 

Ra
mb

ell
as

 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 fu
rth

er 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o b

e p
rov

ide
d 

thr
ou

gh
 di

rec
t p

ay
me

nts
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

0 

Pr
ior
ity
 4.
2: 

Ta
ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ke
y a

gre
ed

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r th
is 

ye
ar 

is 
tac

kli
ng
 an

ti-s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur
 an

d c
rim

e 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

4.2
.1 

Re
du

cin
g c

rim
e a

nd
 pr

om
oti

ng
 su

cc
es

se
s e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

to 
red

uc
e f

ea
r o

f c
rim

e 
4.2

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 th

rou
gh

 ho
list

ic 
int

erv
en

tio
n w

ith
 al

l w
ho

 be
co

me
 in

vo
lve

d w
ith

 th
e c

rim
ina

l ju
sti

ce
 sy

ste
m 

4.2
.3 

Ma
kin

g c
rim

e p
rev

en
tio

n a
 ke

y e
lem

en
t o

f a
ll s

erv
ice

 pl
an

nin
g -

 an
d i

mp
rov

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 tru

st 
an

d e
ng

ag
em

en
t in

 
str

ate
gic

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 se

rvi
ce

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
59

. F
urt

he
r d

ev
elo

p m
ore

 co
mm

un
ity

-or
ien

ted
 an

d 
loc

ali
se

d s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 in

teg
rat

e n
ew

 m
od

els
 of

 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

to 
im

pro
ve

 pu
bli

c c
on

fid
en

ce
 in

 th
e 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 An

dy
 Ba

mb
er,

 
De

live
r a

ll n
ew

 m
ob

ile
 SN

T t
ea

ms
 by

 M
ay

 
20

09
 

Page 96



35
 

De
live

r o
ne

 ne
w 

tea
m 

of 
TH

EO
’s 

by
 M

ay
 

20
09

 
Co

un
cil 

an
d P

oli
ce

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 an

ti-s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d c
rim

e  
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
Re

vie
w 

sc
he

me
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
10

 
Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Yo
uth

 C
rim

e A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 by

 
de

live
rin

g t
he

 se
ve

n t
he

me
d p

rog
ram

me
s -

 
pro

jec
t p

lan
 in

 pl
ac

e b
y A

pri
l 2

00
9 (

Stu
art

 
Jo

hn
so

n/P
ete

r B
ull

en
, C

S)
 

Se
rvi

ce
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 co
mp

let
e a

nd
 SL

As
 in

 
pla

ce
 Ju

ne
 20

09
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Re
 of

fen
din

g S
tra

teg
y J

an
ua

ry 
20

10
 

60
. D

ev
elo

p o
ur 

Re
du

cin
g R

e-o
ffe

nd
ing

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
CY

PP
 M

PC
   

 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 An

dy
 Ba

mb
er,

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

 
Co

mp
let

e r
ev

iew
 of

 de
live

ry 
pla

n t
o i

nfo
rm

 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

20
10

/11
 by

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
   

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

an
d f

am
ilie

s p
rog

ram
me

 
op

era
tio

na
l b

y J
un

e 0
9 

Re
fer

ral
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r a

ll p
roj

ec
ts 

in 
pla

ce
 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
  

De
live

r C
om

mu
nit

y R
ep

ara
tio

n S
ch

em
es

 
du

rin
g y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le’
s l

eis
ure

 tim
e i

.e.
 Fr

ida
y 

an
d S

atu
rda

y e
ve

nin
gs

 fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 
(S

tua
rt J

oh
ns

on
) 

61
. Im

pro
ve

 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f p

os
itiv

e d
ive

rsi
on

ary
 

ac
tiv

itie
s, 

res
tor

ati
ve

 ju
sti

ce
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
, a

dv
ice

 
an

d g
uid

an
ce

 to
 re

du
ce

 yo
uth

 of
fen

din
g  

CY
PP

 M
PC

 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

 
Co

mp
let

e r
ev

iew
 of

 de
live

ry 
pla

n t
o i

nfo
rm

 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

20
10

/11
 by

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
   

62
. D

ev
elo

p a
 dr

ug
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

 an
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 

Dr
aft

 St
rat

eg
y c

om
ple

ted
 by

 Ju
ne

 20
09

  

Page 97



36
 

 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d f
ina

l d
raf

t c
om

ple
ted

 by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 
 

An
dy

 Ba
mb

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
Ca

bin
et 

Ap
pro

va
l, D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

Pr
ior
ity
 4.
3: 

Fo
cu
s o

n e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti
on
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

4.3
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g p

are
nta

l e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 
4.3

.2 
Us

ing
 jo

ine
d-u

p a
pp

roa
ch

es
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n h
ea

lth
, d

rug
s, 

alc
oh

ol,
 ed

uc
ati

on
, s

kill
s, 

em
plo

ym
en

t, 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
, m

en
tal

 he
alt

h, 
de

bt 
an

d b
en

efi
ts 

ac
ros

s a
ll a

ge
 gr

ou
ps

 
4.

3.
3 

Ta
ck

lin
g t

he
 ca

us
es

 of
 cr

im
e b

y w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 ‘a

t-ri
sk

’ g
rou

ps
, to

 ni
p p

rob
lem

s i
n t

he
 bu

d 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
Co

mp
let

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f re
ab

lem
en

t 
se

rvi
ce

 w
ith

 ho
sp

ita
l d

isc
ha

rge
 se

rvi
ce

 to
 

sta
rt a

t R
oy

al 
Lo

nd
on

 H
os

pit
al 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 
(Jo

hn
 R

oo
g) 

Ini
tia

l e
va

lua
tio

n o
f s

erv
ice

 co
mp

let
ed

 by
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 (J

oh
n R

oo
g) 

63
. Im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 pr
ev

en
tat

ive
 se

rvi
ce

s f
or 

vu
lne

rab
le 

ad
ult

s, 
red

uc
ing

 us
e o

f in
sti

tut
ion

al 
ca

re 
an

d r
eli

an
ce

 on
 ca

re 
ma

na
ge

d 
se

rvi
ce

s  
 

Jo
hn

 R
oo

g 
Co

nti
nu

e t
o d

ev
elo

p h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 
pre

ve
nti

on
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 ex
pe

rtis
e w

ith
 

70
0 h

ou
se

ho
lds

 pr
ev

en
ted

 fro
m 

be
co

mi
ng

 
ho

me
les

s b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 (

Co
lin

 C
orm

ac
k) 

   
   

  

Page 98



37
 

  

Co
mp

let
e t

rai
nin

g o
n M

ell
ow

 Pa
ren

tin
g 

Pr
og

ram
me

 by
 Ap

ril 
20

09
  

Co
mp

let
e f

irs
t  M

ell
ow

 Pa
ren

tin
g G

rou
p a

t 
Ov

erl
an

d C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
 (N

ikk
i B

rad
ley

) 
64

. D
eli

ve
r th

e p
rio

rity
 ac

tio
ns

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 ou

r C
YP

P t
o s

up
po

rt 
pa

ren
ts 

an
d f

am
ilie

s t
o p

rov
ide

 a 
sa

fe 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

wh
ere

 ch
ild

ren
 

an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
thr

ive
 an

d a
ch

iev
e t

he
ir f

ull
 po

ten
tia

l, w
ith

 a 
co

nti
nu

ed
 fo

cu
s o

n e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti

on
 by

 pu
ttin

g f
am

ilie
s a

t ri
sk

 at
 

the
 ce

ntr
e o

f s
erv

ice
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 de
live

ry 
CY

PP
 St

ay
 Sa

fe 
  

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 He

len
 Je

nn
er 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

 

De
ve

lop
 fa

mi
ly 

su
pp

ort
 an

d p
are

nti
ng

 
pro

gra
mm

es
 fo

r p
ris

on
ers

 an
d e

x-
pri

so
ne

rs 
an

d t
he

ir f
am

ilie
s, 

res
ide

nt 
in 

To
we

r H
am

let
s p

rio
r to

 an
d f

oll
ow

ing
 th

eir
 

rel
ea

se
  

>R
oll

 ou
t p

ilo
t in

itia
tiv

e o
f s

up
po

rt f
or 

off
en

de
r’s

 fa
mi

lie
s i

nto
 PA

CT
 vi

sit
ing

 
ce

ntr
es

 in
 th

ree
 Lo

nd
on

 pr
iso

ns
 by

 Ju
ly 

20
09

 
>In

tro
du

ce
 St

ren
gth

en
ing

 Fa
mi

lie
s 

Str
en

gth
en

ing
 C

om
mu

nit
ies

 pr
og

ram
me

 
int

o o
ne

 Lo
nd

on
 pr

iso
n b

y D
ec

em
be

r 
20

09
 (N

ikk
i B

rad
ley

) 
Ch

ild
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t G
ran

t p
ilo

t to
 be

 
op

era
tin

g i
n 5

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s b

y 
Au

gu
st 

20
09

 (G
ill W

rob
el)

  
Ch

ild
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t G
ran

t p
ilo

t to
 be

 
op

era
tin

g i
n 1

0 C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s b

y 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 (G

ill W
rob

el)
  

65
. D

ev
elo

p C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s t

o i
nc

rea
se

 th
e e

ng
ag

em
en

t o
f 

fam
ilie

s w
ith

 ch
ild

ren
 un

de
r th

e a
ge

 of
 th

ree
 so

 th
at 

mo
re 

fam
ilie

s 
are

 in
vo

lve
d i

n a
cti

vit
ies

 th
at 

su
pp

ort
 th

eir
 ch

ild
’s 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
 

CY
PP

 En
joy

 an
d A

ch
iev

e 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 He

len
 Je

nn
er 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Ch
ild

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t G

ran
t p

ilo
t to

 be
 

op
era

tin
g i

n 1
5 C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
tre

s b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 (G
ill W

rob
el)

  

Page 99



38
 

 A
 H

ea
lth

y C
om

mu
nit

y 
 Pr
ior
ity
 5.
1: 

Re
du

ce
 di
ffe
ren

ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
alt
h a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 he
alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

5.1
.1 

Re
du

ce
 th

e u
se

 of
 to

ba
cc

o 
5.1

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
ate

s o
f d

iab
ete

s, 
hig

h b
loo

d p
res

su
re 

an
d c

ho
les

ter
ol 

5.1
.3 

Slo
w 

do
wn

 th
e i

nc
rea

se
 in

 ob
es

ity
 

5.
1.

4 
Im

pro
vin

g s
ex

ua
l h

ea
lth

 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
De

ve
lop

 an
d d

eli
ve

r a
 he

alt
h f

air
 to

 in
cre

as
e 

un
de

rst
an

din
g o

f th
e l

oc
al 

he
alt

h e
co

no
my

, 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09

 (A
faz

ul 
Ho

qu
e) 

66
. S

tre
ng

the
n t

he
 co

mm
un

ity
 le

ad
ers

hip
 ro

le 
of 

he
alt

h s
cru

tin
y t

o t
ac

kle
 lo

ca
l h

ea
lth

 in
eq

ua
litie

s  
 

Mi
ch

al 
Ke

ati
ng

, S
cru

tin
y 

an
d E

qu
ali

tie
s, 

Ch
ief

 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
 

Ev
alu

ati
on

 of
 ye

ar 
4 o

f H
ea

lth
 Sc

rut
iny

 Pa
ne

l W
ork

 
pro

gra
mm

e t
o i

de
nti

fy 
ho

w 
he

alt
h i

ne
qu

ali
tie

s h
av

e 
be

en
 ad

dre
ss

ed
 in

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
, M

arc
h 

20
10

 (A
faz

ul 
Ho

qu
e) 

 Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
e S

tra
teg

y t
o C

ab
ine

t J
uly

 20
09

 
 

67
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
e S

tra
teg

y t
o 

inc
rea

se
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

e u
se

 an
d p

rom
ote

 he
alt

hy
 

life
sty

le 
ac

tiv
itie

s 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, C
ult

ura
l 

Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f L
eis

ure
 C

en
tre

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 by
 

Ju
lu 

20
09

 
Int

rod
uc

e n
ew

 G
et 

Ac
tiv

e p
rog

ram
me

 at
 

W
hit

ec
ha

pe
l L

eis
ure

 C
en

tre
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

68
. D

eli
ve

r a
 ta

rge
ted

 pr
og

ram
me

 to
 in

cre
as

e t
he

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
pe

op
le 

tak
ing

 re
gu

lar
 ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, C
ult

ura
l 

Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

32
6 p

eo
ple

 ta
kin

g r
eg

ula
r e

xe
rci

se
 th

rou
gh

 “G
et 

Ac
tiv

e” 
Pr

og
ram

me
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

0 

Page 100



39
 

Int
rod

uc
tio

n o
f a

n e
nh

an
ce

d p
rog

ram
me

 of
 

sw
im

mi
ng

 se
ss

ion
s f

or 
wo

me
n a

nd
 gi

rls
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 
 

Lo
ca

litie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 

De
live

ry 
of 

fre
e s

wim
mi

ng
 fo

r u
nd

er 
16

’s 
an

d O
ve

r 
60

’s 
by

 Ap
ril 

20
09

 
Pr

og
ram

me
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 C

LC
 by

 M
ay

 20
09

 (N
ick

 
Sm

ale
s) 

Ho
ld 

the
 Yo

un
g a

t H
ea
rt O

lym
pic

s e
ve

nt 
inv

olv
ing

 
ov

er 
10

0 l
oc

al 
res

ide
nts

 ov
er 

the
 ag

e o
f 5

0, 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 (N

ick
 Sm

ale
s) 

69
. A

gre
e O

lym
pic

 sp
ort

s e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
loc

al 
res

ide
nts

 
Cll

r L
utf

ur 
Ra

hm
an

 

Ho
ld 

Sc
ho

ols
 O

lym
pic

 Sp
ort

s d
ay

 to
 in

vo
lve

 ov
er 

40
0 y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
in 

6 s
po

rts
, O

cto
be

r 2
00

9 (
Nic

k 
Sm

ale
s) 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
too

l a
nd

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

wit
h s

ch
oo

ls 
an

d s
oc

ial
 w

ork
ers

 by
 Ap

ril 
20

09
 

Ide
nti

fy 
yo

un
g w

om
en

 ne
ed

ing
 ta

rge
ted

 su
pp

ort
 by

 
Ju

ly 
20

09
 

70
. Im

ple
me

nt 
an

 in
no

va
tiv

e n
ew

 pr
oje

ct,
 

AS
PIR

E, 
wh

ich
 ta

rge
ts 

the
 m

os
t v

uln
era

ble
 

yo
un

g w
om

en
, a

t ri
sk

 of
 be

co
mi

ng
 pr

eg
na

nt,
 w

ith
 

ind
ivid

ua
l s

up
po

rt  
CY

PP
 Be

 H
ea

lth
y 

  

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s  

 
De

live
r a

nd
 ev

alu
ate

 su
pp

ort
 pa

ck
ag

es
 to

 fir
st 

gro
up

 of
 yo

un
g w

om
en

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Int
rod

uc
e e

arl
y i

nte
rve

nti
on

 to
 pr

ev
en

t a
nd

 m
an

ag
e 

ob
es

ity
 in

 fa
mi

lie
s a

t ri
sk

, ta
rge

tin
g w

om
en

 w
ho

 ar
e 

ide
nti

fie
d a

s b
ein

g o
be

se
 in

 pr
eg

na
nc

y, 
Ju

ne
 20

09
  

71
. S

up
po

rt c
hil

dre
n a

nd
 fa

mi
lie

s w
ith

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
we

igh
t m

an
ag

em
en

t n
ee

ds
 to

 m
an

ag
e t

he
ir 

we
igh

t 
CY

PP
 Be

 H
ea

lth
y 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

   
  

Be
gin

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

clin
ica

l p
sy

ch
olo

gy
 in

pu
t in

to 
co

mm
un

ity
 ch

ild
 ob

es
ity

 se
rvi

ce
 to

 id
en

tify
 an

d 

Page 101



40
 

   

su
pp

ort
 fa

mi
lie

s a
t h

igh
es

t ri
sk

 of
 ob

es
ity

, 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
  

 
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

an
d d

iss
em

ina
te 

ca
re/

ref
err

al 
pa

thw
ay

 
for

 ch
ild

ho
od

 ob
es

ity
 by

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 

Pr
ior
ity
 5.
2: 
Su

pp
ort

 m
en
tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i
mp

rov
e m

en
tal
 he

alt
h  

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

5.2
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

-qu
ali

ty 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e s

erv
ice

s  
5.2

.2 
Co

mb
ati

ng
 di

sc
rim

ina
tio

n a
ga

ins
t in

div
idu

als
 an

d g
rou

ps
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s 

5.2
.3 

En
su

rin
g i

nte
gra

ted
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 tre
atm

en
t w

ith
 pa

tie
nts

 w
ith

 m
ult

ipl
e h

ea
lth

 ne
ed

s 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d 

Di
rec

tor
ate

  
Mi
les

ton
es
, D
ea
dli
ne
s a

nd
 Le

ad
 O
ffic

er 
10

 pe
op

le 
wit

h m
en

tal
 he

alt
h n

ee
ds

 m
ov

ed
 fro

m 
res

ide
nti

al 
ca

re 
int

o m
ore

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 ho
us

ing
 op

tio
ns

 by
 M

ay
 20

09
 

(S
tep

ha
ine

 D
iffe

y; 
Ca

rrie
 Ki

lpa
tric

k) 
Ag

ree
 pr

op
os

als
 w

ith
 Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 an
d t

he
 C

ity
 M

en
tal

 
He

alt
h T

rus
t fo

r re
str

uc
tur

ing
 of

 co
mm

un
ity

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h 

se
rvi

ce
s b

y J
un

e 2
00

9 (
Ste

ph
an

ie 
Dif

fey
)  

72
. D

ev
elo

p s
afe

 an
d s

ea
ml

es
s m

en
tal

 
he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
ha

t e
mp

ow
er 

us
ers

 an
d 

pro
mo

te 
rec

ov
ery

 an
d c

itiz
en

sh
ip 

  
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

 
Im

ple
me

nt 
pro

po
sa

ls 
by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 (

Ste
ph

an
ie 

Dif
fey

)  
   

   
Co

mp
let

eJ
oin

t S
tra

teg
ic 

Ne
ed

s A
na

lys
is 

ref
res

h b
y 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 (H
ele

n T
ay

lor
) 

Page 102



41
 

  

In 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 PC

T a
nd

 M
en

tal
 H

ea
lth

 Tr
us

t, d
ev

elo
p a

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s a
cti

on
 pl

an
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 N

ati
on

al 
De

me
nti

a S
tra

teg
y b

y O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 (

De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

) 
 73

. In
cre

as
e e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 m
en

tal
 

he
alt

h s
erv

ice
s b

y u
nd

er 
rep

res
en

ted
 

gro
up

s 
 

 Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r 
W

ork
 w

ith
 th

e t
hir

d s
ec

tor
 fo

rum
 to

 id
en

tify
 op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

en
ga

gin
g w

ith
 di

ffic
ult

 to
 re

ac
h y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
by

 M
ay

 20
09

  
(A

nth
on

y W
alt

ers
) 

Page 103



42
 

5. 
Me

as
ur

ing
 Pr

og
res

s a
nd

 Se
ttin

g T
arg

ets
 

 In 
ord

er 
to 

me
as

ure
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 pr
og

res
s t

ow
ard

s a
ch

iev
ing

 
the

 pr
ior

ity
 ou

tco
me

s i
n t

he
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n, 
we

 ha
ve

 
es

tab
lish

ed
 a 

se
t o

f k
ey

 in
dic

ato
rs 

an
d t

arg
ets

. T
he

se
 

en
co

mp
as

s o
ur 

LA
A t

arg
ets

 pl
us

 ad
dit

ion
al 

Co
un

cil-
sp

ec
ific

 
tar

ge
ts 

in 
pri

ori
ty 

are
as

. 
 On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
 On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 al
so

 m
ea

ns
 br

ing
ing

 di
ffe

ren
t p

art
s o

f th
e 

co
mm

un
ity

 to
ge

the
r, e

nc
ou

rag
ing

 po
sit

ive
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 an
d 

tac
klin

g d
ivis

ion
s b

etw
ee

n c
om

mu
nit

ies
 – 

as
 w

ell
 as

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 

str
on

g l
ea

de
rsh

ip,
 in

vo
lvin

g p
eo

ple
 an

d g
ivin

g t
he

m 
the

 to
ols

 
an

d s
up

po
rt t

o i
mp

rov
e t

he
ir l

ive
s. 

W
hil

st 
the

 O
ne

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 ap
pro

ac
h r

un
s t

hro
ug

h a
ll t

he
 ac

tiv
itie

s w
ith

in 
thi

s 
Pla

n, 
the

re 
are

 pa
rtic

ula
r a

cti
vit

ies
 w

hic
h w

e w
ill u

nd
ert

ak
e t

o 
bu

ild
 an

d d
ev

elo
p O

ne
 To

we
r H

am
let

s a
cro

ss
 al

l o
ur 

wo
rk.

 
W

ith
in 

the
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n, 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 al
so

 re
fle

cts
 

ou
r c

om
mi

tm
en

t to
 w

ork
ing

 ef
fic

ien
tly

 an
d e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

as
 O

ne
 

Co
un

cil.
  

 W
e w

ill u
se

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 sp

ec
ific

 m
ea

su
res

 to
 m

ea
su

re 
ou

r 
pro

gre
ss

 to
wa

rds
 ac

hie
vin

g O
ne

 C
ou

nc
il –

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
the

 
oth

er 
me

as
ure

s w
ith

in 
oth

er 
se

cti
on

s o
f th

e p
lan

s w
ill 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 go
al 

of 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

. 
  

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
S1
01
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 U

nd
isp

ute
d I

nv
oic

es
 Pa

id 
on

 Ti
me

 
87

.87
 

 
98

 
98

 
98

 
S1
02
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p 5
% 

of 
ea

rne
rs 

of 
Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
sta

ff t
ha

t a
re 

wo
me

n  
52

.71
 

50
.47

 
50

 
50

 
50

 
S1
03
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p 5
% 

of 
Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
sta

ff t
ha

t 
are

 fro
m 

an
 et

hn
ic 

mi
no

rity
 

17
.43

 
17

.1 
25

 
27

 
30

 
S1
04
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p p
aid

 5%
 of

 st
aff

 w
ho

 ha
ve

 a 
dis

ab
ility

 (e
xc

lud
ing

 th
os

e i
n m

ain
tai

ne
d s

ch
oo

ls)
 

3.5
1 

2.1
 

4.7
 

5.4
 

5.5
 

S1
05
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

wo
rki

ng
 da

ys
/sh

ifts
 lo

st 
to 

sic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e p

er 
em

plo
ye

e 
8.6

9 
8.9

5 
7 

6.5
 

 
S1
06
 

Re
sp

on
se

 tim
e t

o M
em

be
rs’

 en
qu

irie
s -

 %
 

co
mp

let
ed

 w
ith

in 
10

 w
ork

ing
 da

ys
 

70
.06

 
77

 
85

 
85

 
85

 
S1
07
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 co

mp
lai

nts
 co

mp
let

ed
 in

 tim
e –

 
Co

un
cil 

as
 a 

wh
ole

 – 
Sta

ge
 1 

74
 

82
 

85
 

86
 

87
 

Page 104



43
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
S1
08
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
ag

ree
ing

 th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
“pr

ov
ide

s v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y f
or 

the
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 I p
ay

” 
41

 
43

 
50

 
51

 
 

S1
09
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 an

sw
ere

d  
N/

A 
92

.9 
95

 
96

 
97

 
S1
10
 

Av
era

ge
 w

ait
ing

 tim
e f

or 
ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 to

 be
 

an
sw

ere
d 

N/
A 

33
 

30
 

27
.50

 
25

 
S1
11
 

Fir
st 

co
nta

ct 
res

olu
tio

n o
f c

all
s t

o H
otl

ine
s 

N/
A 

90
 

90
 

92
.5 

95
 

   A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 
 A G

rea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 re
fle

cts
 th

e C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 as
pir

ati
on

 
tha

t T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 a 
pla

ce
 w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
en

joy
 

livi
ng

 an
d t

ak
e a

cti
ve

 pr
ide

 in
 be

lon
gin

g. 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ill 
su

pp
ort

 th
is 

by
 se

ek
ing

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 go
od

 qu
ali

ty 
aff

ord
ab

le 

ho
us

ing
, w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d p
ub

lic 
sp

ac
es

 an
d b

ett
er 

tra
ns

po
rt 

lin
ks

. A
 co

mm
itm

en
t to

 en
vir

on
me

nta
l s

us
tai

na
bil

ity
 is

 al
so

 at
 

the
 he

art
 of

 th
is 

the
me

.   
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r 

pro
gre

ss
 to

wa
rds

 ac
hie

vin
g A

 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

  
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
2.1

 Pr
ov
ide

 af
for
da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro
ng
 ne

igh
bo
ur
ho
od
s 

S2
01

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ho

us
eh

old
s w

ho
 co

ns
ide

r th
em

se
lve

s 
as

 ho
me

les
s, 

wh
o a

pp
roa

ch
ed

 th
e L

oc
al 

Au
tho

rity
’s 

ho
us

ing
 ad

vic
e s

erv
ice

, a
nd

 fo
r w

ho
m 

ho
us

ing
 ad

vic
e c

as
ew

ork
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

 re
so

lve
d 

the
ir s

itu
ati

on
 

7 
 

 
 

 

S2
03

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 re

du
cti

on
 of

 te
na

nte
d n

on
-de

ce
nt 

ho
me

s i
n h

om
es

 tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 R

SL
s t

hro
ug

h 
Ho

us
ing

 C
ho

ice
 

1 
4.8

 
5 

 
 

Page 105



44
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
S2

07
 

NI
15

4: 
Ne

t a
dd

itio
na

l h
om

es
 pr

ov
ide

d 
 

1,7
71

 
2,9

99
 

2,9
99

 
1,8

70
 

S2
08

 
NI

15
5: 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
me

s d
eli

ve
red

 
(gr

os
s) 

 
94

9 
1,6

88
 

1,6
88

 
1,0

33
 

S2
09

 
NI

15
8: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 no

n-d
ec

en
t c

ou
nc

il h
om

es
 

61
.8 

 
49

 
47

 
45

 
S2

23
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

so
cia

l re
nte

d h
ou

sin
g c

om
ple

tio
ns

 fo
r 

fam
ily 

ho
us

ing
 

 
14

4 
46

7 
46

7 
60

7 
2.2

 St
ren

gth
en
 an

d c
on
ne
ct 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
S2

02
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

ph
ys

ica
l v

isit
s t

o p
ub

lic 
lib

rar
y 

pre
mi

se
s p

er 
1,0

00
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

9,7
10

.7 
9,2

84
.76

 
9,2

02
.36

 
9,1

44
.34

 
9,0

89
.05

 

S2
04

 
NI

00
1: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o b

eli
ev

e p
eo

ple
 

fro
m 

dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg

rou
nd

s g
et 

on
 w

ell
 to

ge
the

r in
 

the
ir l

oc
al 

are
a  

 
62

.4 
N/

A 
 

N/
A 

S2
17

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 pe
op

le 
as

ke
d w

ho
 th

ink
 th

at 
pa

rks
, 

pla
yg

rou
nd

s a
nd

 op
en

 sp
ac

es
 ar

e g
oo

d, 
ve

ry 
go

od
 or

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

54
 

53
 

58
 

60
 

62
 

S2
19

 
NI

00
4: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o f

ee
l th

ey
 ca

n 
inf

lue
nc

e d
ec

isio
ns

 in
 th

eir
 lo

ca
lity

 
 

35
.7 

N/
A 

38
 

N/
A 

S2
20

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

as
ke

d w
ho

 th
ink

 th
at 

lei
su

re 
an

d s
po

rts
 fa

cili
tie

s a
re 

go
od

, v
ery

 go
od

 or
 

ex
ce

lle
nt 

46
 

45
 

46
 

47
 

48
 

S2
21

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

wh
o a

gre
e t

ha
t th

e 
Co

un
cil 

is 
do

ing
 a 

go
od

 jo
b: 

bo
rou

gh
 av

era
ge

 
68

 
 

78
 

 
 

S2
22

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

wh
o a

gre
e t

ha
t th

e 
Co

un
cil 

is 
do

ing
 a 

go
od

 jo
b: 

Ga
p b

etw
ee

n t
he

 
ov

era
ll b

oro
ug

h a
ve

rag
e a

nd
 th

e L
AP

 ar
ea

 w
ith

 
the

 lo
we

st 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
7 

 
10

 
10

 
 

2.3
 Su

pp
or
t v
ibr
an
t to

wn
 ce

ntr
es
 an

d a
 cl
ea
ne
r, s

afe
r p
ub
lic
 re
alm

 

Page 106



45
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
S2

05
 

NI
00

5: 
Ov

era
ll /

 ge
ne

ral
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 th

e l
oc

al 
are

a 
 

69
.2 

N/
A 

 
N/

A 
S2

06
 

NI
04

7: 
Pe

op
le 

kill
ed

 or
 se

rio
us

ly 
inj

ure
d i

n r
oa

d 
tra

ffic
 ac

cid
en

ts 
 

 
3.1

 
11

.9 
 

S2
12

 
NI

19
5: 

Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es

s –
 Li

tte
r  

13
 

11
 

10
 

8 
8 

S2
13

 
NI

19
5: 

Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es

s –
 de

trit
us

 
15

 
12

 
12

 
10

 
10

 
S2

14
 

NI
19

5: 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
an

d e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 
cle

an
lin

es
s -

 gr
aff

iti 
14

 
16

 
7 

6 
6 

S2
15

 
NI

19
5: 

Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es

s –
 fly

-po
sti

ng
 

6 
5 

2 
2 

2 
S2

16
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o t

hin
k t

ha
t s

tre
et 

cle
an

ing
 is

 go
od

, v
ery

 go
od

 or
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
(A

RS
)  

51
 

59
 

61
 

63
 

65
 

S2
18

 
Im

pro
ve

d p
erc

ep
tio

ns
 of

 AS
B: 

red
uc

ed
 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 th

e p
op

ula
tio

n w
ho

 vi
ew

 ru
bb

ish
 

an
d l

itte
r ly

ing
 ar

ou
nd

 as
 ‘a

 ve
ry 

se
rio

us
 pr

ob
lem

’  
18

 
16

 
15

 
14

 
13

 
2.4

 Im
pr
ov
e t
he
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
an
d t
ac
kle

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
  

S2
10

 
NI

18
6: 

Pe
r c

ap
ita

 re
du

cti
on

 in
 C

02
 em

iss
ion

s i
n 

the
 LA

 ar
ea

 
-15

.5 
 

6 
10

 
 

S2
11

 
NI

19
2: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 H

ou
se

ho
ld 

wa
ste

 se
nt 

for
 

reu
se

, re
cy

clin
g o

r c
om

po
sti

ng
 

12
.89

 
19

.51
 

26
 

32
 

32
 

  

Page 107



46
 

A 
Pr

os
pe

ro
us

 C
om

mu
nit

y  
 W

e w
an

t to
 bu

ild
 on

 a 
str

on
g l

oc
al 

ec
on

om
y a

nd
 bu

sin
es

s 
gro

wt
h, 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t w

e c
rea

te 
pro

sp
ero

us
 co

mm
un

itie
s 

ac
ros

s t
he

 bo
rou

gh
 an

d f
or 

all
 ou

r re
sid

en
ts.

 A 
ke

y p
rio

rity
 is

 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
lea

rni
ng

 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 th
rou

gh
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty 

ed
uc

ati
on

 av
ail

ab
le 

for
 

res
ide

nts
 of

 al
l a

ge
s. 

W
e w

ill a
lso

 he
lp 

pe
op

le 
to 

co
nfr

on
t th

e 
ma

ny
 di

ffe
ren

t c
au

se
s o

f jo
ble

ss
ne

ss
 an

d i
mp

rov
e s

kill
s a

nd
 

the
 em

plo
ym

en
t ra

te 
in 

the
 bo

rou
gh

. In
 ad

dit
ion

 w
e w

ill 
en

co
ura

ge
 an

d f
os

ter
ing

 ne
w 

en
ter

pri
se

. 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r 

pro
gre

ss
 to

wa
rds

 ac
hie

vin
g a

 Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y. 
  

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
3.1

 Su
pp
or
t e
xc
ell
en
t le

arn
ing

 op
po
rtu
nit
ies

 fo
r a
ll 

 
ES

OL
 en

try
 le

ve
l 1

 co
mp

let
ion

s 
33

5 
40

0 
 

 
 

S3
01

 
Im

pro
vin

g A
 Le

ve
l a

tta
inm

en
t –

 A 
Le

ve
l a

ve
rag

e 
po

int
s s

co
re 

pe
r s

tud
en

t in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s  
62

1.5
 

63
9.5

 
72

2 
 

 
S3

03
 

NI
07

9: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
a l

ev
el 

2 q
ua

lific
ati

on
 by

 
ag

e 1
9 

62
.3 

N/
A 

69
.5 

71
.8 

 
S3

04
 

NI
08

0: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
a l

ev
el 

3 q
ua

lific
ati

on
 by

 
ag

e 1
9 

37
.1 

N/
A 

43
 

46
 

 
S3

05
 

NI
10

6: 
Yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 fro
m 

low
 in

co
me

 
ba

ck
gro

un
ds

 pr
og

res
sin

g t
o h

igh
er 

ed
uc

ati
on

 
 

4.6
 

2 
0 

 
S3

06
 

NI
11

0: 
Yo

un
g p

eo
ple

’s 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i

n p
os

itiv
e 

ac
tiv

itie
s 

 
70

.3 
75

 
81

.5 
85

 

S3
15

 
NI

07
2: 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

at 
lea

st 
78

 po
int

s a
cro

ss
 

the
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 Fo

un
da

tio
n S

tag
e w

ith
 at

 le
as

t 6
 

in 
ea

ch
 of

 th
e s

ca
les

 in
 Pe

rso
na

l S
oc

ial
 an

d 
Em

oti
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
, 

La
ng

ua
ge

 an
d L

ite
rac

y 
38

.9 
40

 
45

.3 
46

 
 

S3
16

 
NI

07
6: 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sc

ho
ols

 w
he

re 
few

er 
tha

n 5
5%

 of
 pu

pil
s a

ch
iev

e l
ev

el 
4 o

r a
bo

ve
 

 
3 

1 
1 

 

Page 108



47
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
in 

bo
th 

En
gli

sh
 an

d m
ath

s a
t K

S2
  

S3
17

 
NI

07
7: 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sc

ho
ols

 w
he

re 
few

er 
tha

n 5
0%

 of
 pu

pil
s a

ch
iev

e l
ev

el 
5 o

r a
bo

ve
 

in 
bo

th 
En

gli
sh

 an
d m

ath
s a

t K
S3

 
 

3 
0 

0 
 

S3
18

 
NI

07
8: 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sc

ho
ols

 w
he

re 
few

er 
tha

n 3
0%

 of
 pu

pil
s a

ch
iev

e 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
-C

 
gra

de
s a

t G
CS

E a
nd

 eq
uiv

ale
nt 

inc
lud

ing
 G

CS
Es

 
in 

En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s  
 

3 
0 

0 
 

S3
19

 
NI

08
7: 

Se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ol 
pe

rsi
ste

nt 
ab

se
nc

e r
ate

 
5.5

 
6.4

 
5.1

 
4.9

 
 

S3
20

 
NI

10
1: 

Lo
ok

ed
 af

ter
 ch

ild
ren

 ac
hie

vin
g 5

 A*
-C

 
GC

SE
s (

or 
eq

uiv
ale

nt)
 at

 Ke
y S

tag
e 4

 (in
clu

din
g 

En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s) 
 

6.6
7 

23
 

N/
A 

 
3.2

 R
ed
uc
e w

or
kle

ss
ne
ss
 

S3
07

 
NI

 11
6: 

Pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 in
 po

ve
rty

 
46

.4 
N/

A 
43

.5 
41

.9 
 

S3
08

 
NI

 11
7: 

16
-18

 ye
ar 

old
s w

ho
 ar

e n
ot 

in 
ed

uc
ati

on
, 

em
plo

ym
en

t o
f tr

ain
ing

 (N
EE

T) 
8.2

 
6.7

 
6.2

5 
6 

5 
S3

09
 

NI
 14

6: 
Ad

ult
s w

ith
 le

arn
ing

 di
sa

bil
itie

s i
n 

em
plo

ym
en

t 
N/

A 
3.1

 
 

 
 

S3
10

 
NI

 15
0: 

Ad
ult

s r
ec

eiv
ing

 se
co

nd
ary

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h 

se
rvi

ce
s i

n e
mp

loy
me

nt 
 

 
 

 
 

S3
11

 
NI

 15
1: 

Ov
era

ll e
mp

loy
me

nt 
rat

e (
wo

rki
ng

 ag
e) 

58
.4 

60
.8 

54
.9 

55
.7 

60
.75

 
S3

12
 

NI
 15

2: 
W

ork
ing

 ag
e p

eo
ple

 on
 ou

t o
f w

ork
 

be
ne

fits
 

17
.4 

17
.1 

17
.7 

16
.8 

16
.86

 
S3

13
 

NI
 15

3: 
W

ork
ing

 ag
e p

eo
ple

 cl
aim

ing
 ou

t o
f w

ork
 

be
ne

fits
 in

 th
e w

ors
t p

erf
orm

ing
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

ds
 

27
.1 

25
.4 

28
 

26
.8 

24
.93

 
3.3

 Fo
ste

r E
nte

rp
ris
e 

S3
02

 
NI

 7:
 En

vir
on

me
nt 

for
 a 

thr
ivin

g t
hir

d s
ec

tor
 

 
21

.1 
N/

A 
27

.1 
N/

A 

Page 109



48
 

   A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti

ve
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

 Th
e S

afe
 an

d S
up

po
rtiv

e C
om

mu
nit

ies
 th

em
e r

ep
res

en
ts 

a 
vis

ion
 fo

r T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 as
 a 

pla
ce

 w
he

re 
ev

ery
on

e c
an

 
ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 fu
ll p

ote
nti

al.
 Th

is 
me

an
s a

 pl
ac

e w
he

re 
cri

me
 is

 
rar

e a
nd

 ta
ck

led
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
, a

nd
 w

he
re 

co
mm

un
itie

s l
ive

 in
 

pe
ac

e t
og

eth
er.

 It 
als

o m
ea

ns
 so

me
wh

ere
 w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e 

ha
s e

qu
al 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 ch
oic

es
, c

ha
nc

es
 an

d p
ow

er.
 Lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

se
rvi

ce
s n

ee
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

tho
se

 w
ho

 ar
e m

os
t a

t ri
sk

 an
d 

su
pp

ort
 th

em
 so

 th
at 

the
y c

an
 fu

lfil 
the

ir p
ote

nti
al.

 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r 

pro
gre

ss
 to

wa
rds

 ac
hie

vin
g a

 Sa
fe 

an
d S

up
po

rtiv
e 

Co
mm

un
ity

. 
  

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
4.1

 Em
po
we

r o
lde

r a
nd
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 
fam

ilie
s 

S4
12

 
NI

 13
5: 

Ca
rer

s r
ec

eiv
ing

 ne
ed

s a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

r 
rev

iew
 an

d a
 sp

ec
ific

 ca
rer

’s 
se

rvi
ce

, o
r a

dv
ice

 
an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

26
.3 

27
.8 

25
.9 

30
.9 

 
4.2

 Ta
ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 
S4

01
 

NI
 11

3: 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 cr
im

e 
wit

hin
 th

eir
 to

p t
hre

e c
on

ce
rns

 (A
RS

)   
55

 
47

 
46

 
44

 
42

 
S4

02
 

NI
 15

: N
um

be
r o

f m
os

t s
eri

ou
s v

iol
en

t c
rim

es
 pe

r 
1,0

00
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

N/
A 

 
 

 
 

S4
03

 
NI

 16
: n

um
be

r o
f s

eri
ou

s a
cq

uis
itiv

e c
rim

es
 pe

r 
1,0

00
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

33
.44

 
 

 
 

 
S4

04
 

NI
 18

: R
ate

 of
 pr

ov
en

 re
-of

fen
din

g b
y a

du
lts

 
un

de
r p

rob
ati

on
 su

pe
rvi

sio
n 

 
 

 
 

 
S4

05
 

NI
 19

: R
ate

 of
 pr

ov
en

 re
-of

fen
din

g b
y y

ou
ng

 
off

en
de

rs 
ag

ed
 10

-17
 

 
 

11
3 

10
8 

 
S4

06
 

NI
 21

: D
ea

lin
g w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

on
ce

rns
 ab

ou
t a

nti
-

 
23

.3 
N/

A 
33

.3 
N/

A 

Page 110



49
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
r a

nd
 cr

im
e i

ss
ue

s b
y t

he
 lo

ca
l 

Co
un

cil 
an

d P
oli

ce
 

S4
07

 
NI

 33
i: A

rso
n I

nc
ide

nts
 – 

nu
mb

er 
of 

de
lib

era
te 

pri
ma

ry 
fire

s p
er 

10
,00

0 p
op

ula
tio

n 
N/

A 
 

11
.9 

11
.5 

 
S4

08
 

NI
 33

ii: 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
de

lib
era

te 
se

co
nd

ary
 fir

es
 pe

r 
10

,00
0 p

op
ula

tio
n (

Ar
so

n) 
38

 
 

35
.8 

34
.7 

 

S4
09

 
NI

 35
: B

uil
din

g r
es

ilie
nc

e t
o v

iol
en

t e
xtr

em
ism

 (fo
r 

AP
AC

S)
; th

is 
ind

ica
tor

 w
ill b

e t
ria

lle
d a

nd
 

ev
alu

ate
d i

n 2
00

8/0
9a

nd
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 in

 
AP

AC
S o

r u
se

d f
or 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
in 

AP
AC

S i
n 

20
08

/09
 

12
 

16
 

18
 

20
 

N/
A 

S4
10

 
NI

 40
: N

um
be

r o
f d

rug
 us

ers
 re

co
rde

d a
s b

ein
g i

n 
eff

ec
tiv

e t
rea

tm
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

S4
11

 
NI

 42
: P

erc
ep

tio
ns

 of
 dr

ug
 us

e o
r d

rug
 de

ali
ng

 as
 

a p
rob

lem
 

 
60

.5 
N/

A 
56

.5 
N/

A 

Page 111



50
 

A 
He

alt
hy

 C
om

mu
nit

y  
Lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
wa

nt 
To

we
r H

am
let

s t
o b

e a
 pl

ac
e w

he
re 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
pe

op
le’

s h
ea

lth
 an

d l
ife

 
ex

pe
cta

nc
y a

re 
red

uc
ed

, w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

lea
d h

ea
lth

y l
ive

s a
nd

 
wh

ere
 ev

ery
on

e h
as

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 w
orl

d c
las

s p
rim

ary
 ca

re,
 

co
mm

un
ity

, a
nd

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h a

nd
 ho

sp
ita

l s
erv

ice
s. 

At 
the

 
mo

me
nt,

 th
ere

 ar
e s

om
e s

tar
k d

iffe
ren

ce
s i

n t
he

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

he
alt

h e
xp

eri
en

ce
d b

y T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 re
sid

en
ts.

 W
e w

an
t to

 
wo

rk 
wit

h a
ll o

ur 
pa

rtn
ers

, in
clu

din
g r

es
ide

nts
 to

 lo
we

r th
os

e 
dif

fer
en

ce
s. 

 W
e w

ill u
se

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 sp

ec
ific

 m
ea

su
res

 to
 m

ea
su

re 
ou

r 
pro

gre
ss

 to
wa

rds
 ac

hie
vin

g a
 H

ea
lth

y C
om

mu
nit

y: 

  
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
07
/08

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
09
/10

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
5.1

 R
ed
uc
e d

iffe
ren

ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
alt
h a

nd
 pr
om

ote
 he

alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
  

S5
01

 
Ad

ult
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i

n s
po

rt a
nd

 ac
tiv

e r
ec

rea
tio

n  
 

17
.7 

18
.7 

19
.7 

20
.7 

NI
56

a: 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 in

 Ye
ar 

6 w
ith

 
he

igh
t a

nd
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 w

ho
 ar

e o
be

se
 

23
 

24
.49

 
23

.6 
23

.7 
 

S5
04

 
NI

56
b: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 in
 Ye

ar 
6 w

ith
 

he
igh

t a
nd

 w
eig

ht 
rec

ord
ed

 
 

 
 

 
 

S5
06

 
NI

11
2: 

Un
de

r 1
8 c

on
ce

pti
on

 ra
tes

  
-24

.2 
-20

.8 
-44

 
-55

 
-55

 
S5

07
 

NI
12

0a
: A

ll-a
ge

 al
l c

au
se

 m
ort

ali
ty 

rat
e –

 M
ale

 
 

 
 

 
 

S5
08

 
NI

12
0b

: A
ll-a

ge
 al

l c
au

se
 m

ort
ali

ty 
rat

e –
 Fe

ma
le 

 
 

 
 

 
S5

09
 

NI
12

3: 
Sto

pp
ing

 sm
ok

ing
 

1,2
20

 
1,8

16
 

1,0
43

 
1,0

61
 

 
 

Page 112



51
 

6. 
Us

e o
f R

es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 D

ata
 Q

ua
lity

 
 Int
ro
du
cti
on
 an

d B
ac
kg
ro
un
d 

Du
rin

g t
he

 fin
an

cia
l y

ea
r 2

00
9-1

0, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill s
pe

nd
 

ne
arl

y £
1.1

06
 bi

llio
n p

rov
idi

ng
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 of
 lo

ca
l s

erv
ice

s. 
Of

 th
is,

 £1
.03

6 b
illio

n i
s r

ev
en

ue
 sp

en
din

g, 
an

d £
70

 m
illio

n 
ca

pit
al.

 
 Int
eg
rat
ed
 Se

rvi
ce
 an

d F
ina

nc
ial
 Pl
an
nin

g 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 fin
an

cia
l p

lan
nin

g a
nd

 bu
dg

eti
ng

 ta
ke

s p
lac

e 
alo

ng
sid

e i
ts 

pla
nn

ing
 fo

r th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t o

f 
se

rvi
ce

s: 
  

• 
W

e h
av

e a
 m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an

cia
l p

lan
 w

hic
h e

ns
ure

s 
tha

t o
ur 

se
rvi

ce
 pl

an
s a

re 
aff

ord
ab

le.
  

• 
Th

e f
ina

nc
ial

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 of

 pr
op

os
als

 to
 im

pro
ve

 an
d 

de
ve

lop
 se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

ide
nti

fie
d a

nd
 co

ns
ide

red
.  

• 
Re

so
urc

es
 ar

e d
ire

cte
d t

o m
ee

tin
g t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 

str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv

es
, a

nd
 th

e b
ud

ge
t p

roc
es

s e
ns

ure
s 

tha
t m

on
ey

 flo
ws

 to
 th

e h
igh

es
t p

rio
riti

es
.  

• 
W

e m
on

ito
r b

oth
 th

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 th

eir
 

fin
an

ce
s t

o e
ns

ure
 pl

an
s a

re 
de

live
red

 w
ith

in 
bu

dg
et.

 
Va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
, b

ud
ge

ts 
an

d h
igh

 qu
ali

ty 
se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

de
ep

ly 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 th
e w

ay
 th

e C
ou

nc
il r

ev
iew

s i
ts 

bu
dg

et 
for

 fu
tur

e y
ea

rs.
 

  

Me
diu

m 
Te
rm
 Pl
an
  

Me
diu

m 
ter

m 
fin

an
cia

l p
lan

nin
g i

s a
n i

mp
ort

an
t c

om
po

ne
nt 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 s
tra

teg
ic 

pla
nn

ing
. W

hil
e 

ma
ny

 k
ey

 d
ec

isio
ns

, 
su

ch
 as

 se
ttin

g t
he

 C
ou

nc
il T

ax
, c

an
 on

ly 
be

 ta
ke

n a
nn

ua
lly,

 
tho

se
 de

cis
ion

s n
ee

d t
o b

e s
et 

in 
the

 co
nte

xt 
of 

a l
on

ge
r te

rm
 

pla
n. 

 
 W

e p
rep

are
 a

 ro
llin

g 
thr

ee
-ye

ar 
fin

an
cia

l p
lan

 w
ith

 in
dic

ati
ve

 
for

ec
as

ts 
of 

sp
en

din
g, 

go
ve

rnm
en

t g
ran

t a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

lev
els

. T
his

 p
lan

 ta
ke

s 
ac

co
un

t o
f t

he
 is

su
es

 s
et 

ou
t i

n 
the

 
Fin

an
cia

l C
on

tex
t s

ec
tio

n 
be

low
 a

s 
we

ll 
as

 d
em

og
rap

hic
 

ch
an

ge
s, 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
res

po
ns

ibi
litie

s, 
inf

lat
ion

, o
ng

oin
g 

co
sts

 
as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 ou

r c
ap

ita
l p

rog
ram

me
, e

ffic
ien

cy
 ta

rge
ts 

an
d 

the
 im

pa
ct 

of 
pla

nn
ed

 se
rvi

ce
 d

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
in 

the
 S

tra
teg

ic 
an

d S
erv

ice
 P

lan
s. 

Th
e M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 P
lan

 he
lps

 en
su

re 
tha

t 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 fi
na

nc
ial

 p
lan

s 
are

 s
us

tai
na

ble
 a

nd
 to

 id
en

tify
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 f

or 
mo

vin
g 

res
ou

rce
s 

int
o 

str
ate

gic
 p

rio
rity

 
are

as
.   

  
 Th

e t
ab

le 
be

low
 su

mm
ari

se
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 
Fin

an
cia

l P
roj

ec
tio

n f
or 

the
 pe

rio
d 2

00
9/1

0-2
01

1/1
2. 

 Fi
gu

res
 

for
 20

10
/11

 an
d 2

01
0/1

2 a
re 

pro
jec

tio
ns

 an
d d

ec
isio

ns
 on

 
the

se
 w

ill b
e t

ak
en

 as
 pa

rt o
f fu

tur
e b

ud
ge

t ro
un

ds
.  

 

Page 113



52
 

M
ED

IU
M

 T
ER

M
 F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 P
LA

N 
20

09
/1

0 
- 2

01
1/

12
20
09
/10

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

£'0
00

£'0
00

£'0
00

Ini
tia
l B
ud
ge
t

29
5,4
98

29
7,9
26

30
5,4
53

Inf
lat
ion

 
6,2
22

6,4
94

70
26

Co
mm

itte
d G

ro
wt
h 

7,2
23

2,1
23

2,9
19

Sa
vin

gs
-5,
67
4

-3,
39
6

-19
5

Ot
he
r A
dju

stm
en
ts 
Re
qu
ire
d

-2,
57
8

2,4
01

4,8
08

Ch
an
ge
s i
n C

on
tri
bu
tio
ns
 to
 R
es
erv

es
-3,
96
2

90
0

0

Ot
he
r F
un
din

g 
-3,
50
1

-29
5

3,7
96

Se
rvi
ce
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t G

ro
wt
h 

4,6
98

11
0

-2,
38
0

Sa
vin
gs
 ta
rge

t fo
r 2
01
1/1
2

-99
10

Bu
dg
et 
Re
qu
ire
me

nt 
29
7,9
26

30
5,4
53

31
1,5
17

Fo
rm
ula
 G
ran

t  
-22

8,8
16

-23
2,2
04

-23
5,6
87

 
Co
lle
cti
on
 Fu
nd
 Su

rpl
us
 / D

efi
cit

2,0
00

0
0

71
,11
0

73
,24
9

75
,83
0

Ind
ica

tiv
e B

an
d D

 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
£8
85
.52

£9
07
.67

£9
30
.35

Ch
an
ge
 in
 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
 

Ple
as

e n
ote

, C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 fig

ure
s f

or 
20

10
/11

 an
d 2

01
0/1

2 h
av

e n
ot 

be
en

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 ar

e f
or 

illu
str

ati
on

 on
ly.

  
   

Page 114



53
 

Co
un

cil 
Ta

x f
or 

20
09

/10
 ha

s b
ee

n s
et 

at 
£8

85
.52

 fo
r a

 Ba
nd

 D
 

pro
pe

rty
, w

hic
h i

s t
he

 6t
h  lo

we
st 

of 
the

 33
 Lo

nd
on

 Bo
rou

gh
s. 

 Th
e H

ou
sin

g R
ev

en
ue

 Ac
co

un
t, t

hro
ug

h w
hic

h t
he

 fin
an

ce
’s 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 so
cia

l h
ou

sin
g s

toc
k a

re 
ma

na
ge

d, 
ha

s a
 

Gr
os

s b
ud

ge
t fo

r 2
00

9/1
0 o

f £
95

.93
9M

  A
n a

ve
rag

e r
en

t o
f 

£8
3.7

2 h
as

 be
en

 se
t, w

hic
h i

s a
 2.

9%
 in

cre
as

e o
ve

r 2
00

8/0
9. 

 Fin
an
cia

l M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
tem

s a
re 

the
re 

to:
 

• 
Ma

xim
ise

 th
e r

es
ou

rce
s a

va
ila

ble
 to

 de
live

r th
e 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
 

• 
Ali

gn
 ou

r s
pe

nd
ing

 pl
an

s w
ith

 th
e p

rio
riti

es
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y a
nd

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
ns

 
• 

Me
as

ure
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st 
bu

dg
ets

 
• 

En
su

re 
we

 de
live

r v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y  
• 

Ba
lan

ce
  th

e n
ee

d f
or 

se
rvi

ce
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wit
h t

he
 

de
ma

nd
s p

lac
ed

 on
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 pa
ye

rs.
 

• 
Ma

int
ain

 an
d e

nh
an

ce
 co

nfi
de

nc
e i

n t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 
ste

wa
rds

hip
 of

 pu
bli

c m
on

ey
 

 Re
so
ur
ce
s f
or
 th
e Y

ea
r A

he
ad
 

Th
e t

ab
le 

be
low

 se
ts 

ou
t o

ur 
es

tim
ate

d r
ev

en
ue

 sp
en

din
g f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

20
09

/10
. R

ev
en

ue
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

is 
the

 da
y-t

o-d
ay

 
co

sts
 of

 ru
nn

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s. 
 Re
ve
nu
e B

ud
ge
t fo

r 2
00
9-1

0 
Di
rec

tor
ate

 
Gr
os
s E

xp
en
dit
ur
e (
£’0

00
) 
Inc

om
e (
£’0

00
) 
Ne
t E
xp
en
dit
ur
e (
£’0

00
) 

Ad
ult

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

15
3,9

99
 

-64
,45

2 
89

,54
7 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

40
6,5

10
 

-30
9,7

15
 

96
,79

5 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

& R
en

ew
al 

an
d H

ou
sin

g G
en

era
l F

un
d 

28
,00

8 
-10

,30
6 

17
,70

2 
Co

mm
un

itie
s &

 Lo
ca

litie
s 

11
8,0

01
 

-43
,50

2 
74

,49
9 

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
& O

the
r C

orp
ora

te 
 

19
,59

9 
-8,

72
8 

10
,87

1 
Re

so
urc

es
 

31
0,6

76
 

-28
0,5

97
 

30
,07

9 
To
tal
  

1,0
36
,79

3 
-71

7,3
00
 

31
9,4

93
 

  Ca
pit
al 
Inv

es
tm
en
t 

Ca
pit

al 
sp

en
din

g i
s a

bo
ut 

inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 bu
ild

ing
s a

nd
 ot

he
r 

as
se

ts 
we

 ne
ed

 to
 de

live
r s

erv
ice

s. 
 O

ur 
Ca

pit
al 

Str
ate

gy
 

pro
vid

es
 th

e b
as

is 
for

 ev
alu

ati
ng

 ca
pit

al 
pro

po
sa

ls 
an

d 

pri
ori

tis
ing

 ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t. C

ap
ita

l re
so

urc
es

 ar
e a

llo
ca

ted
 

to 
inv

es
tm

en
t p

rog
ram

me
s a

nd
 pr

oje
cts

 th
at 

off
er 

the
 m

os
t 

co
st-

eff
ec

tiv
e c

on
trib

uti
on

 to
 ac

hie
vin

g c
orp

ora
te 

pri
ori

tie
s. 

Clo
se

ly 
ali

gn
ed

 to
 th

e C
ap

ita
l S

tra
teg

y i
s o

ur 
As

se
t 

Page 115



54
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pla

n, 
wh

ich
 se

ts 
ou

t o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
he

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
ou

r e
xis

tin
g p

rop
ert

y p
ort

fol
io 

an
d i

ts 
rol

e i
n 

su
pp

ort
ing

 co
rpo

rat
e a

nd
 se

rvi
ce

 ob
jec

tiv
es

. 
Th

e t
ab

le 
be

low
 sh

ow
s h

ow
 ca

pit
al 

inv
es

tm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

d 
for

 th
e n

ex
t th

ree
 ye

ars
 is

 al
loc

ate
d t

o e
ac

h o
f th

e C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pla

n t
he

me
s.

 Ca
pit
al 
Pr
og
ram

me
 20

09
/10

 to
 20

11
/12

 
Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl
an
 Th

em
e 

20
09
/10

 
£M

 
20
10
/11

 
£M

 
20
11
/12

 
£M

 
20
12
/13

 
£M

 
To
tal
 

£M
 

A G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

49
.37

3 
37

.26
9 

31
.89

3 
6.3

62
 

12
4.8

97
 

A P
ros

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y 
20

.66
5 

19
.05

5 
17

.30
0 

- 
57

.02
0 

A S
afe

 an
d S

up
po

rtiv
e C

om
mu

nit
y 

0.5
37

 
0.3

92
 

- 
- 

0.9
29

 
A H

ea
lth

y C
om

mu
nit

y  
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

To
tal
  

70
.57

5 
56
.71

6 
49
.19

3 
6.3

62
 

18
2.8

46
 

  Fin
an
cia

l C
on
tex

t 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il f

ac
es

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ma

jor
 st

rat
eg

ic 
an

d s
erv

ice
 

iss
ue

s o
ve

r it
s s

tra
teg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 cy
cle

, m
an

y o
f w

hic
h h

av
e 

fin
an

cia
l im

pli
ca

tio
ns

. In
 ad

dit
ion

, o
ur 

pla
nn

ing
 pr

oc
es

se
s a

re 
tak

ing
 pl

ac
e a

ga
ins

t th
e b

ac
kg

rou
nd

 of
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
the

 ex
ter

na
l fi

na
nc

ial
 en

vir
on

me
nt.

 To
ge

the
r th

es
e m

ea
n a

 
ch

all
en

gin
g a

ge
nd

a f
or 

the
 C

ou
nc

il, 
an

d m
us

t b
e c

on
sid

ere
d 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e c
on

tex
t fo

r o
ur 

str
ate

gic
 pl

an
nin

g. 
So

me
 of

 th
e 

ke
y i

ss
ue

s a
re 

se
t o

ut 
be

low
. 

 Pu
bli
c S

pe
nd
ing

 an
d C

ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rn
me

nt 
Fin

an
ce
 Sy

ste
m 

Th
e l

as
t p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r s
pe

nd
ing

 re
vie

w 
oc

cu
rre

d i
n O

cto
be

r 
20

07
 an

d a
lso

 th
e r

ev
iew

 of
 th

e d
ist

rib
uti

on
 of

 gr
an

ts 
to 

loc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

 at
 th

e s
am

e t
im

e. 
 Th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f th
os

e t
wo

 

an
no

un
ce

me
nts

 m
ea

nt 
tha

t T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 w
as

 ex
pe

cte
d t

o 
rec

eiv
e i

nc
rea

se
s i

n g
ran

t fu
nd

ing
 at

 be
low

 th
e r

ate
 of

 in
fla

tio
n 

for
 th

e n
ex

t th
ree

 ye
ars

 an
d b

ey
on

d. 
 In

 ad
dit

ion
, a

s 
an

no
un

ce
d b

y t
he

 C
ha

nc
ell

or 
of 

the
 Ex

ch
eq

ue
r in

 th
e 2

00
9 

Bu
dg

et,
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f th
e e

co
no

mi
c d

ow
ntu

rn 
an

d t
he

 20
08

 
ba

nk
ing

 cr
isis

 w
ill f

ee
d t

hro
ug

h i
nto

 pu
bli

c s
pe

nd
ing

 de
cis

ion
s 

fro
m 

20
10

/11
 on

wa
rds

.  T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 w
ill b

e p
lan

nin
g o

n 
the

 ba
sis

 of
 a 

rea
list

ic 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

of 
wh

at 
thi

s w
ill m

ea
n. 

  
 Ca
pit
al 
Fu
nd
ing

 
Fu

nd
ing

 fo
r th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ca
pit

al 
pro

gra
mm

e c
om

es
 fro

m 
a 

va
rie

ty 
of 

so
urc

es
: p

rev
iou

sly
 on

e o
f th

e m
os

t s
ign

ific
an

t o
f 

the
se

 ha
s b

ee
n c

ap
ita

l re
ce

ipt
s f

rom
 th

e s
ale

 of
 C

ou
nc

il 
as

se
ts.

 Fu
nd

ing
 fro

m 
thi

s s
ou

rce
 ha

s r
ed

uc
ed

 si
gn

ific
an

tly
, 

pri
nc

ipa
lly 

du
e t

o c
ha

ng
es

 in
 le

gis
lat

ion
 go

ve
rni

ng
 th

e r
igh

t to
 

Page 116



55
 

bu
y C

ou
nc

il h
ou

se
s. 

Th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
ha

s t
he

ref
ore

 re
vie

we
d i

ts 
str

ate
gy

 fo
r fu

nd
ing

 af
for

da
ble

 ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 th
e l

igh
t o

f 
thi

s, 
rev

isit
ing

 its
 sp

en
din

g p
rio

riti
es

 an
d i

de
nti

fyi
ng

 al
ter

na
tiv

e 
so

urc
es

 of
 fu

nd
ing

 as
 ne

ce
ss

ary
. 

 Lo
ca
l  A

rea
 A
gr
ee
me

nt 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
 in

 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ne
go

tia
ted

 a 
se

co
nd

 Lo
ca

l P
ub

lic 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
(LP

SA
) to

 ru
n f

rom
 Ap

ril 
20

08
. . 

 Th
e f

ull
 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
se

 st
ret

ch
ing

 LP
SA

 ta
rge

ts 
wo

uld
 br

ing
 

ad
dit

ion
al 

rew
ard

 gr
an

t fu
nd

ing
 to

 th
e a

uth
ori

ty.
    

 
 De
ce
nt 
Ho
me

s 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 ad

op
ted

 a 
lon

g t
erm

 st
rat

eg
y t

o l
ev

er 
in 

as
 

mu
ch

 fu
nd

ing
 as

 po
ss

ibl
e t

ow
ard

s t
he

 co
st 

of 
me

eti
ng

 th
e 

De
ce

nt 
Ho

me
s S

tan
da

rd.
 Th

e n
um

be
r o

f d
we

llin
gs

 di
rec

tly
 

ma
na

ge
d b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 re

du
ce

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f o

ng
oin

g 
tra

ns
fer

 of
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
to 

Re
gis

ter
ed

 So
cia

l L
an

dlo
rds

. T
his

 ha
s 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il a
s a

 w
ho

le,
 as

 it 
ha

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 re

sh
ap

e b
oth

 di
rec

t s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s 

to 
ref

lec
t lo

we
r le

ve
ls 

of 
ac

tiv
ity

.  F
or 

the
 re

ma
ini

ng
 ho

us
ing

 
sto

ck
, m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 be
en

 tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 an

 Ar
m’

s L
en

gth
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
om

es
. F

or 
so

me
 

es
tat

es
, n

ota
bly

 O
ce

an
 an

d B
lac

kw
all

 R
ea

ch
, s

pe
cif

ic 
red

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
lan

s a
re 

be
ing

 sh
ap

ed
 to

 dr
aw

 in
 th

e 
ad

dit
ion

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t fu

nd
ing

 re
qu

ire
d. 

 

 Ef
fic
ien

cy
 an

d V
alu

e f
or
 m
on
ey
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o e

ffic
ien

cy
 is

 em
be

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
str

ate
gic

 pl
an

nin
g f

ram
ew

ork
 su

mm
ari

se
d i

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt.

 
Th

at 
fra

me
wo

rk 
is 

de
sig

ne
d t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
all

 re
so

urc
es

 
av

ail
ab

le 
to 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
re 

dir
ec

ted
 to

wa
rds

 m
ax

im
isin

g 
im

pa
ct 

in 
ter

ms
 of

 im
pro

ve
d s

erv
ice

 ou
tco

me
s a

nd
 th

e 
ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
str

ate
gic

 ob
jec

tiv
es

.  
Th

e d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
eff

icie
nc

y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 a 

co
ns

ist
en

t o
bje

cti
ve

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 fin
an

cia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pro

ce
ss

es
. F

ina
nc

ial
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 bu
dg

eta
ry 

pro
ce

ss
es

 ar
e 

de
sig

ne
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

an
d r

ea
lise

 an
nu

al 
eff

icie
nc

y g
ain

s, 
an

d 
thi

s c
on

tin
ue

s t
o c

on
trib

ute
 to

 To
we

r H
am

let
s’ 

Co
un

cil 
Ta

x 
be

ing
 on

e o
f th

e l
ow

es
t o

f a
ll 3

3 L
on

do
n C

ou
nc

ils.
  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill s

ee
k f

urt
he

r o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
eff

icie
nc

ies
 in

 al
l 

of 
its

 m
ain

 ar
ea

s o
f re

so
urc

e c
on

su
mp

tio
n a

nd
 in

co
rpo

rat
e 

the
se

 in
to 

its
 st

rat
eg

ies
 fo

r h
um

an
 re

so
urc

es
, in

for
ma

tio
n &

 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 te

ch
no

log
y, 

as
se

t m
an

ag
em

en
t, a

nd
 

pro
cu

rem
en

t. W
e w

ill a
lso

 co
ns

ide
r n

ew
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r 

eff
icie

nc
y i

mp
rov

em
en

t, i
nc

lud
ing

 th
os

e p
res

en
ted

 by
 na

tio
na

l 
an

d r
eg

ion
al 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 e.
g. 

sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s, 

bu
sin

es
s p

roc
es

s 
ree

ng
ine

eri
ng

, P
rio

rity
 O

utc
om

es
, a

nd
 th

e n
ati

on
al 

tra
ns

for
ma

tio
na

l e
-go

ve
rnm

en
t p

rog
ram

me
.  

 Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t S
tra
teg

y 
Th

e t
erm

 ‘p
roc

ure
me

nt’
 co

ve
rs 

the
 pr

oc
es

s f
or 

ac
qu

isit
ion

 of
 

all
 go

od
s, 

wo
rks

 an
d s

erv
ice

s, 
an

d e
nc

om
pa

ss
es

 th
e w

ho
le 

cy
cle

 fro
m 

ide
nti

fic
ati

on
 of

 ne
ed

s, 
thr

ou
gh

 to
 th

e e
nd

 of
 a 

Page 117



56
 

se
rvi

ce
s c

on
tra

ct 
or 

the
 en

d o
f th

e u
se

ful
 lif

e o
f a

n a
ss

et.
  A

ll 
Co

un
cil 

se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 so

me
 fo

rm
 of

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt,
 

wit
h c

orp
ora

te 
co

ord
ina

tio
n a

nd
 le

ad
ers

hip
 fro

m 
the

 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Se
rvi

ce
.   

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 pr

ov
ide

s o
ve

ral
l d

ire
cti

on
 

an
d a

 se
rio

us
 of

 st
rat

eg
ic 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e a
cq

uis
itio

n o
f 

go
od

s, 
wo

rks
 an

d s
erv

ice
s. 

 Th
e P

roc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 

su
pp

ort
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 vi

sio
n a

nd
 w

ill a
ss

ist
 it 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 th
e 

co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti

ve
s a

nd
 to

 de
live

r B
es

t V
alu

e. 
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

de
cis

ion
s i

nfo
rm

 th
e “

ma
ke

-or
-bu

y” 
de

cis
ion

, w
hic

h i
s b

as
ed

 
on

 th
e f

un
da

me
nta

l p
rin

cip
le 

tha
t th

e p
rov

isio
n o

f a
 se

rvi
ce

 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 th
e s

up
pli

er 
be

st 
su

ite
d, 

wh
eth

er 
tha

t 
be

 in
-ho

us
e, 

oth
er 

pu
bli

c p
rov

ide
rs,

 pr
iva

te 
or 

vo
lun

tar
y 

se
cto

rs.
  A

 ne
w 

Co
mp

eti
tio

n B
oa

rd 
ha

s b
ee

n s
et 

up
 to

 
ad

dre
ss

 is
su

es
 su

ch
 as

 th
is,

 an
d t

o t
rac

k a
nd

 dr
ive

 pr
og

res
s 

ag
ain

st 
the

 St
rat

eg
y. 

Th
is 

rol
e w

ill d
ev

elo
p a

nd
 be

 
str

en
gth

en
ed

 ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
12

 m
on

ths
. 

Co
rpo

rat
ely

, th
e P

roc
ure

me
nt 

Se
rvi

ce
 ha

s a
do

pte
d a

 ca
teg

ory
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ap

pro
ac

h, 
wh

ich
 gi

ve
s i

t v
isib

ility
 an

d i
nfl

ue
nc

e 
ac

ros
s t

he
 w

ho
le 

of 
the

 ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
po

rtfo
lio

, a
nd

 en
ab

les
 it 

to 
pro

vid
e t

he
 du

al 
rol

e o
f s

up
po

rt a
nd

 ch
all

en
ge

 in
 se

ek
ing

 to
 

ge
t th

e b
es

t o
ut 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 su
pp

lie
rs.

 Th
is 

is 
un

de
rpi

nn
ed

 
by

 an
 on

-lin
e c

on
tra

cti
ng

 to
olk

it, 
an

d h
an

ds
-on

 su
pp

ort
 fo

r 
co

ntr
ac

tin
g o

ffic
ers

 ac
ros

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 ad
op

ted
 a 

ma
nd

ato
ry 

tol
lga

te 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

hig
h v

alu
e c

on
tra

cts
, w

hic
h e

va
lua

tes
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

pro
jec

ts 
on

 th
e b

as
is 

of 
a n

um
be

r o
f c

rite
ria

. T
he

se
 in

clu
de

: 
• 

Str
ate

gic
 fit

 

• 
Ma

rke
t c

on
dit

ion
s 

• 
Co

lla
bo

rat
ive

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 

• 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 
• 

Bu
sin

es
s c

os
ts 

an
d b

en
efi

ts 
• 

Sa
vin

gs
 an

d o
the

r b
en

efi
ts 

• 
Sta

ke
ho

lde
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

pro
ce

du
res

 ha
ve

 be
en

 re
vie

we
d d

uri
ng

 20
08

/09
, 

an
d n

ew
, s

tre
am

lin
ed

 pr
oc

ed
ure

s h
av

e b
ee

n a
gre

ed
.  

 Da
ta 

Qu
ali

ty 
 A k

ey
 as

pe
ct 

of 
eff

ec
tiv

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t is
 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t th

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 da

ta 
ag

ain
st 

wh
ich

 w
e 

me
as

ure
 ou

r p
rog

res
s t

ow
ard

s k
ey

 go
als

 an
d t

arg
ets

 is
 

ac
cu

rat
e, 

rel
iab

le 
an

d t
im

ely
. W

he
re 

thi
s i

s n
ot 

the
 ca

se
, 

inf
orm

ati
on

 m
ay

 be
 m

isle
ad

ing
, d

ec
isio

n m
ak

ing
 fla

we
d, 

res
ou

rce
s w

as
ted

 or
 se

rvi
ce

 fa
ilu

res
 no

t b
e i

de
nti

fie
d a

nd
 

ad
dre

ss
ed

. T
he

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

ou
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta 

is 
the

ref
ore

 
ce

ntr
al 

to 
the

 w
ay

 in
 w

hic
h w

e m
an

ag
e a

nd
 m

on
ito

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
et'

s o
bje

cti
ve

 fo
r D

ata
 Q

ua
lity

 is
 to

: 
 

En
su
re 
tha

t a
ll in

for
ma

tio
n w

hic
h c
on
trib

ute
s t
o t
he
 

Co
un
cil’
s p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, w

he
the

r 
pro

du
ce
d i
nte

rna
lly 
or 
ex
ter
na
lly,
 is
 ac
cu
rat
e r
eli
ab
le 

an
d t
im
ely
. 

 Th
is 

ob
jec

tiv
e 

is 
su

pp
ort

ed
 b

y 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 

Po
licy

 w
hic

h s
ets

 ou
t th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 st
an

da
rds

: 

Page 118



57
 

• 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e a

nd
 ac

co
un

tab
ility

 fo
r d

ata
 qu

ali
ty 

• 
Po

lici
es

 a
nd

 p
roc

ed
ure

s 
for

 d
ata

 r
ec

ord
ing

 a
nd

 
rep

ort
ing

 
• 

Sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

es
se

s t
o s

ec
ure

 da
ta 

qu
ali

ty 
 

• 
Kn

ow
led

ge
, s

kill
s a

nd
 ca

pa
cit

y o
f s

taf
f to

 ac
hie

ve
 th

e 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

ob
jec

tiv
es

; a
nd

  
• 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 an

d c
on

tro
ls 

in 
pla

ce
 fo

r th
e u

se
 of

 da
ta 

 Go
ve
rn
an
ce
 an

d a
cc
ou
nta

bil
ity
 

Ov
era

ll r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 ac
co

un
tab

ility
 of

 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

lie
s w

ith
 th

e C
ab

ine
t a

nd
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

 (C
MT

). W
ith

in 
the

 C
ab

ine
t, t

he
 Le

ad
 M

em
be

r fo
r 

Re
so

urc
es

 an
d P

erf
orm

an
ce

 ha
s o

ve
ral

l re
sp

on
sib

ility
 fo

r d
ata

 
qu

ali
ty.

  W
ith

in 
CM

T, 
the

 As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e (

Po
licy

 
an

d P
erf

orm
an

ce
) h

as
 ov

era
ll s

tra
teg

ic 
res

po
ns

ibi
lity

.   
 Po
lic
ies

 an
d p

ro
ce
du
res

 
Th

e h
igh

 le
ve

l p
oli

cie
s f

or 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

ap
ply

 ac
ros

s t
he

 
Co

un
cil.

  O
pe

rat
ion

al 
pro

ce
du

res
 an

d g
uid

eli
ne

s a
re 

se
t o

ut 
in:

 • 
the

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 ac

tio
n p

lan
; 

• 
the

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 Pr

oto
co

l; 
• 

In-
ye

ar 
sa

mp
lin

g g
uid

eli
ne

s a
nd

 ch
ec

klis
t; 

• 
Ex

ce
lsis

 PI
 M

on
ito

rin
g G

uid
an

ce
; 

• 
En

d-Y
ea

r P
erf

orm
an

ce
 D

ata
 C

oll
ec

tio
n G

uid
an

ce
;  

• 
PI 

W
ork

ing
 Pa

pe
r c

he
ck

list
s a

nd
 si

gn
-of

f 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

. 
  

Sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
ro
ce
ss
es
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 a 
co

rpo
rat

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
so

ftw
are

 sy
ste

m,
 Ex

ce
lsis

, w
hic

h i
nte

gra
tes

 th
e c

oll
ec

tio
n, 

rec
ord

ing
 an

d r
ep

ort
ing

 of
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 da
ta 

en
su

rin
g a

 si
ng

le 
ce

ntr
al 

rep
os

ito
ry 

for
 al

l k
ey

 co
rpo

rat
e p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta.

  T
he

 
sy

ste
m 

ha
s a

 se
t o

f in
ter

na
l c

on
tro

ls 
inc

lud
ing

 pa
ss

wo
rd 

pro
tec

ted
 ac

ce
ss

 fo
r u

pd
ati

ng
 an

d e
dit

ing
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 da
ta,

 
an

 au
dit

 co
ntr

ol 
fun

cti
on

 id
en

tify
ing

 w
ho

 an
d w

he
n c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
da

ta 
we

re 
ma

de
 an

d a
 sy

ste
m 

of 
ap

pro
va

ls 
an

d a
uth

ori
sa

tio
n. 

 
Us

er 
an

d q
uic

k r
efe

ren
ce

 gu
ide

s f
or 

Ex
ce

lsis
 ar

e a
va

ila
ble

 
an

d r
eg

ula
r tr

ain
ing

 is
 pr

ov
ide

d. 
 Pe
op
le 
an
d s

kil
ls 

Ro
les

 an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

litie
s f

or 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

are
 se

t o
ut 

in 
thi

s 
po

licy
 an

d t
he

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 pr

oto
co

l.  
As

 id
en

tifi
ed

 ab
ov

e, 
ea

ch
 ke

y P
I h

as
 a 

de
sig

na
ted

 Pr
ep

ari
ng

 O
ffic

er 
wh

o h
as

 th
e 

ke
y r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r e
ns

uri
ng

 th
at 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 da

ta 
for

 th
at 

ind
ica

tor
 is

 ac
cu

rat
e. 

 D
ire

cto
rat

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 le

ad
s o

ve
rse

e 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

for
 th

eir
 D

ire
cto

rat
e, 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t k

ey
 sy

ste
ms

 
are

 ch
ec

ke
d, 

tha
t p

roc
ed

ure
 no

tes
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e a

nd
 th

at 
the

re 
are

 da
ta 

qu
ali

ty 
ag

ree
me

nts
 w

ith
 ke

y p
art

ne
rs.

   
 Da
ta 
us
e a

nd
 re
po
rti
ng
 

Ke
y p

erf
orm

an
ce

 in
dic

ato
rs 

an
d t

arg
ets

 ar
e e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 st

rat
eg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 fra
me

wo
rk 

an
d 

reg
ula

rly
 re

po
rte

d a
nd

 m
on

ito
red

 as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ram
ew

ork
.   

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 da

ta 
is 

us
ed

 w
ith

in 
tea

ms
 an

d i
nd

ivid
ua

l P
DR

s t
o a

ss
es

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 an
d e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 us

e o
f p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta 

is 
un

de
rst

oo
d b

y t
ho

se
 ge

ne
rat

ing
 it.

 

Page 119



58
 

 Th
ere

 ar
e p

roc
es

se
s t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
ac

tio
n i

s t
ak

en
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s i
de

nti
fie

d b
y p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta 

an
d 

rep
ort

s. 
Th

es
e i

nc
lud

e t
he

 co
rpo

rat
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 R
ev

iew
 

Gr
ou

p, 
ch

air
ed

 by
 th

e C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e, 
wh

ich
 re

gu
lar

ly 
rev

iew
s a

rea
s o

f p
oo

r p
erf

orm
an

ce
 id

en
tifi

ed
 th

rou
gh

 
co

rpo
rat

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 re

po
rtin

g w
ith

 ac
co

un
tab

le 
off

ice
rs.

  
 Ri

sk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 Ris

k m
an

ag
em

en
t is

 de
fin

ed
 as

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

bo
th 

po
ten

tia
l o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
nd

 th
rea

ts 
to 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

hie
vin

g i
ts 

ob
jec

tiv
es

. 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il f

irm
ly 

be
lie

ve
s t

ha
t e

ffe
cti

ve
 ris

k m
an

ag
em

en
t is

 
an

 es
se

nti
al 

ele
me

nt 
of 

co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce

 an
d h

as
 a 

str
ate

gy
 to

 m
an

ag
e r

isk
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 

its
 op

era
tio

ns
, in

itia
tiv

es
 

an
d p

art
ne

rsh
ips

. T
he

 ai
m 

is 
to 

en
ab

le 
the

 ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

str
ate

gic
 an

d s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es
 in

 th
e m

os
t o

pti
mu

m 
wa

y, 
rec

og
nis

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 an
d c

on
tro

llin
g n

eg
ati

ve
 fa

cto
rs 

or 
ris

ks
 th

at 
co

uld
 im

pa
ct 

su
cc

es
s. 

 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il s

ee
ks

 to
 m

ini
mi

se
 un

ne
ce

ss
ary

 ris
k a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
res

idu
al 

ris
k c

om
me

ns
ura

te 
wit

h i
ts 

sta
tus

 as
 a 

pu
bli

c b
od

y. 
Ho

we
ve

r, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill p
os

itiv
ely

 de
cid

e t
o t

ak
e r

isk
s i

n 
pu

rsu
it o

f it
s a

mb
itio

ns
 fo

r lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 w

he
re 

it h
as

 su
ffic

ien
t 

as
su

ran
ce

 th
at 

ris
ks

:- 
• 

Ha
ve

 be
en

 pr
op

erl
y i

de
nti

fie
d a

nd
 as

se
ss

ed
 

• 
W

ill b
e a

pp
rop

ria
tel

y m
an

ag
ed

, in
clu

din
g t

ak
ing

 
mi

tig
ati

ng
 ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 re
gu

lar
 re

vie
w 

of 
like

lih
oo

d a
nd

 
im

pa
ct 

• 
Ar

e j
us

tifi
ed

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 

be
ne

fits
 

ac
cru

ing
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 fo
rm

all
y a

do
pte

d a
 R
isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t P
oli
cy
 

an
d S

tra
teg

y t
o s

up
po

rt i
ts 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o r
isk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

Ris
ks

 ar
e g

en
era

lly 
ide

nti
fie

d a
t p

roj
ec

t le
ve

l a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 by
 

the
 pr

oje
ct 

ma
na

ge
r. K

ey
 le

ga
l a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l ri
sk

s a
ss

oc
iat

ed
 

wit
h p

art
icu

lar
 pr

oje
cts

 ar
e s

pe
cif

ica
lly 

hig
hli

gh
ted

 in
 re

po
rts

 
se

ek
ing

 de
cis

ion
s o

r a
pp

rov
al 

for
 ac

tio
n. 

Th
e r

isk
s a

ss
oc

iat
ed

 
wit

h w
ork

ing
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ar
e c

ap
tur

ed
 in

 a 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

an
d a

re 
mo

nit
ore

d t
hro

ug
h t

he
 ris

k-r
ep

ort
ing

 
fra

me
wo

rk.
 Th

e r
isk

s t
o t

he
 ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
co

rpo
rat

e a
nd

 
se

rvi
ce

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 ar
e a

cti
ve

ly 
co

ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt o

f s
erv

ice
 

pla
nn

ing
 an

d t
he

 id
en

tifi
ca

tio
n o

f ri
sk

s i
s a

 ke
y p

art
 of

 th
e 

pla
nn

ing
 fra

me
wo

rk 
at 

all
 le

ve
ls.

 
 Th

e A
uth

ori
ty 

ma
int

ain
s a

 C
orp

ora
te 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er 

tha
t 

ide
nti

fie
s t

he
 m

os
t s

ign
ific

an
t c

orp
ora

te 
an

d s
tra

teg
ic 

ris
ks

. 
Th

e r
eg

ist
er 

co
nta

ins
 de

tai
ls 

of 
the

 pr
inc

ipa
l ri

sk
s t

o t
he

 
ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
the

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d t

arg
ets

 in
 th

is 
pla

n. 
Th

es
e 

are
: • 

tho
se

 th
at 

are
 in

he
ren

t in
 th

e b
us

ine
ss

 of
 a 

loc
al 

au
tho

rity
  - 

for
 ex

am
ple

 re
sp

on
sib

iliti
es

 to
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe

op
le,

 th
e n

ee
d t

o h
ou

se
 ho

me
les

s p
eo

ple
 an

d 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 of
 ef

fec
tiv

e f
ina

nc
ial

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

ms
; 

Page 120



59
 

• 
tho

se
 th

at 
ari

se
 fro

m 
str

ate
gic

 in
itia

tiv
es

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il  

- fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
the

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

an
 Ar

ms
 Le

ng
th 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

 an
d i

mp
rov

em
en

ts 
to 

cu
sto

me
r a

cc
es

s t
o C

ou
nc

il s
erv

ice
s; 

an
d 

• 
tho

se
 th

at 
ari

se
 fro

m 
ini

tia
tiv

es
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e b
us

ine
ss

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il  

- fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
the

 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y, 
the

 IC
T/e

-G
ov

ern
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f c
ha

ng
e. 

 Ea
ch

 of
 th

es
e r

isk
s i

s a
ss

es
se

d f
or 

like
lih

oo
d a

nd
 im

pa
ct 

an
d 

ha
s a

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
ow

ne
r a

nd
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 m
itig

ati
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

/co
ntr

ols
. T

he
 re

gis
ter

 is
 up

da
ted

 th
rou

gh
ou

t o
ut 

the
 

ye
ar 

an
d r

ep
ort

ed
 qu

art
erl

y t
o t

he
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

. E
ac

h s
erv

ice
 m

ain
tai

ns
 its

 ow
n r

eg
ist

er 
of 

ris
ks

 th
at 

fee
ds

 in
to 

the
 co

rpo
rat

e m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 ev
alu

ati
on

 pr
oc

es
s. 

In 
thi

s w
ay

 se
nio

r m
an

ag
ers

 as
se

ss
 ris

ks
, d

ev
elo

p m
itig

ati
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 m
on

ito
r p

rog
res

s i
n a

 sy
ste

ma
tic

 m
an

ne
r. T

his
 

ap
pro

ac
h i

s i
nte

nd
ed

 to
 st

ren
gth

en
 th

e o
ve

ral
l c

orp
ora

te 
go

ve
rna

nc
e e

nv
iro

nm
en

Page 121



60
 

 

Page 122



 
 
 

 
The Council’s Strategic 

Plan 2009/10-2011/12 
 

Summary  
Year 1 2009/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 1 

A message from the Leader 
 
I am pleased to present the summary for year one of the Council’s Strategic 
Plan for 2009/10–2011/12. It sets out our plans to further improve services for 
the coming year and details activities that demonstrate how we will help deliver 
our vision of improving the quality of life for everyone living and working in 
Tower Hamlets. 
 
The Community Plan 2020 and the Local Area Agreement provide a clear 
context for the development of the Council’s Strategic Plan. There is also a solid 
foundation on which to build for the year ahead. 
 
Once again 2008/09 was a year of considerable progress. The Council 
achieved a 4 star overall rating in the most recent Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment. According to the Audit Commission, Tower Hamlets Council is 
performing strongly and was assessed as having outstanding services for 
children and adults. Indeed we are the only Council to have had both services 
top-rated for the last three years. 
 
At the centre of our work, and underpinning each of the themes in our 
Community Plan, is the commitment to build One Tower Hamlets, a borough 
where everyone can access the same opportunities. To this end we have taken 
steps to ensure that we meet the highest level (five) of the Equality Standard for 
Local Government – a commitment that was recognised when Tower Hamlets 
became the first council in the country to receive the Equality Mark. 
 
We’ve also been recognised for our commitment to innovation with Beacon 
awards for Reducing Re-offending; Preventing and Tackling Child Poverty; and 
the Positive Engagement of Older People, in addition to the 6 Beacon awards 
we’ve already obtained over the last six years.  
 
Our continually improving services are also recognised by local people. In 
relation to resident satisfaction, for example, 69% of residents say we are doing 
a good job.    
 
While these achievements are important – and wouldn’t be achieved without the 
commitment and hard work of staff – there is still much to do.  The Strategic 
Plan is our road map: it keeps us on track to further improve our services and 
the quality of life for local people.  
 
We all – staff and councillors – have a part to play in making more 
improvements in the first year of our new Strategic Plan. I am sure that at the 
end of the year, we will be reporting further successes. 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Leader of the Council 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 2 

What is the Strategic Plan? 
 
The new Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12 Summary describes the Council’s overall 
aims and objectives, the improved outcomes intended for people who live and 
work in the borough, and the actions to be taken to deliver that improvement in 
2009/10 
 
Each year, services across the Council – in consultation with key stakeholders – 
help to draw up a new action plan with activities that they will carry out in the 
forthcoming year to improve the Councils’ performance and deliver the goals of 
the Strategic Plan. These key initiatives reflect the significant change or 
improvement activity which will be our focus for the year ahead. Within the 
Council each directorate and service, will develop more detailed action plans 
demonstrating how they contribute to the achievement of the priority outcomes. 
 
 
Our Vision 
 
The Council's vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living and 
working in Tower Hamlets. It is a vision that is shared by all partners in the 
Tower Hamlets Partnership, which comprises residents, the Council and other 
public service providers, businesses, faith communities and the voluntary and 
community sector.  
 
The five major themes contained in the Strategic Plan set out the means by 
which our vision will be delivered. These themes are:  
 
One Tower Hamlets 
A Great  Place to Live 
A Prosperous Community 
A Safe and Supportive Community 
A Healthy Community 
 
Although One Tower Hamlets underpins all themes, it is included in the 
Strategic Plan as a separate theme. Each of the five themes is supported by 
key priorities for action which will provide the focus for our service delivery for 
the period to March 2010 and which are detailed below:   
 
 
 

Page 125



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 3 

One Tower Hamlets 
 
Priority 1.1: Reduce inequalities and foster strong 
community cohesion 
 
We are committed to reducing inequalities, fostering strong community 
cohesion, providing inclusive services and strong community leadership. 
These objectives are reflected in all of the themes of the Strategic Plan. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
1. Produce new Equality Schemes in relation to age, race, sexual orientation 
and religion/belief to complement existing gender and disability Equality 
Schemes 
2. Develop the Council’s community leadership role to deliver the communities 
in control agenda, ensure a vibrant local democracy and strengthen civic 
participation 
 

Priority 1.2: Work efficiently and effectively as One Council 
 
Underpinning the Council’s leading role in delivering against our priorities is our 
commitment to work efficiently and effectively by ensuring value for money 
across the Council; by recruiting, supporting and developing an effective 
workforce reflective of the Tower Hamlets’ community and by providing 
effective and joined up corporate services 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
3. Achieve a reduction in the Council’s reliance on Agency staff 
4. Develop the Workforce Plan and implement the Workforce to Reflect the 
Community Year 1 Action Plan 
5. Deliver the Efficiency Programme 
6.  Develop an asset and capital management strategy to enable the Council’s 
assets to be utilised in the most effective way 
7. Deliver the Local Priorities Programme 
8. Conclude and implement the Channel Strategy to ensure that customer 
enquiries can be resolved at their first point of contact through the channel of 
their choice 
9.  Conclude the Council’s information management strategy so that the full 
potential of the council’s IT infrastructure is leveraged to deliver service 
improvements and financial efficiencies 
10. Implement the stage 1 recommendations of the review of Financial 
Management Arrangements so that financial management information is 
improved and we exceed our targets for the timely payment of suppliers 
11.  Complete the Human Resources Improvement Project and implement its 
recommendations so that the organisation is more effectively supported at a 
lower cost 
12. Continue to robustly manage performance across the Council, especially 
with regard to the Local Area Agreement, and lead preparations for the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment 
 

Page 126



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 4 

These actions will enable us to: 
• Build resilience to violent extremism 
• Increase residents’ overall satisfaction with the local area 
• Increase the proportion of people from different backgrounds who think 

people get on well together in their local areas 
 
 
A Great Place to Live  
 
Priority 2.1: Provide affordable housing and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is reducing over-crowding 
 
We remain committed to providing high quality housing in line with the needs of 
our community. Key objectives for the Partnership are to increase the supply 
to affordable housing, especially for families alongside continuing to 
improve housing management. We also remain focused on improving the 
quality of streets and neighbourhoods. A key element of this is making sure 
that neighbourhoods have the right range of facilities, like schools and 
healthcare.  
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
13. Deliver a programme of acquisition and new build to reduce overcrowding  
14. Strengthen RSL partnership working to i) Secure private and public 
investment to deliver a supply of new affordable housing and ii) improve 
standard and quality of housing management 
15. Achieve improvements in the quality of housing management through Tower 
Hamlets Homes and unlock resources to deliver the Decent Homes  
16. Reshape major estate renewal projects with key partners 
17. Engage in the Olympic Legacy Masterplan process to secure maximum 
benefits for Tower Hamlets 
18. Finalise the Local Development Core Strategy Framework to drive the 
sustainable development of the Borough 
 
Priority 2.2: Strengthen and connect communities 
 
This priority includes a range of elements. We will connect communities by 
improving public transport networks and enabling more residents to walk 
and cycle safely. We have agreed to invest energy in bringing communities 
together to foster understanding, wellbeing and avoid people being 
isolated. Supporting strong communities also requires us to ensure 
communities have good access to a full range of facilities - including 
health services, schools and leisure. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 

Page 127



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 5 

19. Implement the Sustainable Transport Strategy to improve the connections 
between communities 
20. Use the Olympic and Paralympic Games to engage communities in cultural, 
sporting and celebratory events  
21. Develop and implement the Victoria Park Master Plan to improve the 
quality, safety and usability of the Park and restore the heritage landscape 
22. Develop the Olympic Games Live Site proposition for Victoria Park so that 
local residents have a free to access Games time venue 
23. Improve the management and regulatory framework governing events in 
parks 
24. Develop a Playing Pitch Strategy 
25. Deliver a  Baishakhi Mela in Banglatown Brick Lane and develop a 
community management infrastructure to take it forward 
26. Deliver a range of cultural improvements to the Bishops Square Cultural 
Trail 
27. Utilise the Local Strategic Partnership to provide more efficient and localised 
services 
28. Deliver a programme of improvements to the local history and archive 
service 
 
Priority 2.3: Support vibrant town centres and a cleaner, 
safer public realm 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is to improve cleanliness and 
quality of the public realm 
 
Developing vibrant town centres involves providing first-class and well 
managed centres where people come together for business, shopping, 
leisure and recreation. Improving the public realm means that we prioritise 
supporting and improving open spaces. Another key objective is to improve 
street lighting and reduce graffiti and litter. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
29. Develop and implement the Waste Strategy and the Partnership Public 
Realm Improvement Strategy to deliver a measurably cleaner, safer and more 
sustainable environment 
30. Deliver the Borough-wide Town Centre Strategy 
31. Inclusion of the High Street 2012 Vision Study proposals as a key strategic 
programme within LDF  
32. Design, develop and commence implementation of the High Street 2012 
Historic Building Conservation Scheme including securing English Heritage 
funding. 
33. Deliver the Local Implementation Plan to improve road safety  
 
Priority 2.4: Improve the environment and tackle climate 
change 
 
The Council will work in partnership to play a key role in leading the local 
response to environmental challenges and climate change. One key objective is 
to reduce energy use and use more renewable energy sources. We will also 

Page 128



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 6 

use a range of methods aimed at changing behaviour to focus on reusing 
wherever possible and recycle more. Another objective involves leading work 
to adapt our built environment to cope with the changing climate and 
weather patterns. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
34. Implement the Carbon Management Plan to reduce carbon emissions 
generated by the Council 
35. Improve recycling rates through targeted communications and better 
working with Social Landlords and other partners 
36. In collaboration with the Environment Agency to complete the primary 
stages of programme development to deliver the priority actions arising from the 
Environment Agency's Thames Catchment Flood Management Plan. 
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Support the supply of nearly 9,000 more new homes 
• Support the supply of new affordable homes, including up to 1,400 social 

rented homes for families (three bedrooms or more) 
• Increase the proportion of Council homes meeting the Decent Homes 

Standard by 12% and increase the proportion of Decent Homes that have 
been transferred to RSLs 

• Reduce the level of CO2 emissions that are produced in the borough by 10% 
• Increase the proportion of waste that households recycle or compost to 32% 
• Make our streets cleaner and reduce incidents of graffiti and fly tipping 
• Reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads in road 

traffic accidents by 15% 
 
 
A Prosperous Community 
 
Priority 3.1: Support lifelong learning opportunities for all 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is to raise GCSE results to be 
the best in the country 
 
We want our community to enjoy life, feeling proud of where they live and what 
they have achieved.  This means we are committed to providing the best 
possible foundation for long term success, supporting our children and 
young people to acquire the knowledge and skills they need to fulfil their 
full potential, as well as an providing an excellent range of learning, leisure, 
play and cultural opportunities that everyone can learn basic and new skills 
at any age.  
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
37. Improve GCSE results to be the best in the country by implementing the 
priorities identified in the Children and Young People’s Plan, with an emphasis 
on evidence-based intervention and personalised learning to support all pupils 
to maximise their potential 

Page 129



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 7 

38. Rebuild or refurbish all of our secondary schools, through Building Schools 
for the Future, and upgrade our primary school estate through Primary Strategy 
for Change 
39. Expand parental engagement and learning programmes in secondary 
schools so that parents and carers get involved in supporting their children’s 
learning, and learn with them 
40. Commission an additional 860 entry level English as a Second Language 
places 
41. Deliver the refreshed Idea Store Strategy to ensure greater library usage, 
improvements in literacy and numeracy 
42. Extend the range of positive activities and recorded and accredited 
outcomes available outside of school hours, ensuring all children and young 
people have access 
 
Priority 3.2: Reduce worklessness 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is to reduce levels of youth 
unemployment 
 
We aim to help families escape poverty. Reducing worklessness will also 
involve the identification and removal of barriers to employment for target 
groups as well as ensuring there is support and training before and after 
they get a job 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
43. Implement the action plan within the Employment Strategy to ensure that 
Tower Hamlets residents access new and existing jobs and thereby reduce the 
numbers of people on out of work benefits 
44. Develop and deliver our Child Poverty Strategy and Action Plan 
45. Increase employment opportunities for vulnerable people, in particular 
people with disabilities and mental health problems and those experiencing 
homelessness 
46. Reduce levels of youth unemployment by agreeing a 14-19 sector pathway 
to employment with local employers, linked to all 14 Diploma lines of learning, 
and provide targeted learning programmes for each significant group of 14-18 
learners at risk of becoming NEET 
 
Priority 3.3: Foster enterprise 
 
Our objective is to provide incentives that encourage both business and 
social entrepreneurship. In addition it is our intention to maximise the 
opportunities for local businesses to benefit from key growth sectors, and 
the Olympic and Paralympic Games and to reinforce these opportunities by 
promoting Tower Hamlets businesses and encouraging growth and 
tourism, with particular emphasis on the Olympics and Paralympics 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
47. Refresh the Third Sector Strategy and Compact to ensure that we fully 
support these organisations 

Page 130



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 8 

48. Develop an Enterprise Strategy which sets out our approach to fostering 
business and entrepreneurship. 
49. Market Tower Hamlets as the key visitor destination for the Olympic Games 
and support venues and other suppliers to capitalise on this 
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Increase the proportion of local people in employment by 2.5% to 55.7% - 

around 4000 additional people into work 
• Reduce the proportion of local people on out of work benefits by 2% - a 

reduction of more than 2,500 people 
• Increase the number of adults with learning difficulties in jobs 
• Increase the number of adults, who are getting support from mental health 

services, in jobs 
• Ensure the proportion of 19 year olds achieving a level 2 qualification 

(GCSE, Intermediate GNVQ, BTEC First Diploma, NVQ 2), rises by 14% to 
72% 

• Ensure the proportion of 19 year olds with a level 3 (Intermediate GNVQ, 4 
GCSEs) qualification rises by 9% to 46% 

• Increase the proportion of young people achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at 
GCSE including English and mathematics 

• Reduce the proportion of 16-18 year olds who aren’t in education, 
employment or training from 8.2% to 6% 

• Increase the number of young people from families with low incomes going 
on to higher education 

• Increase the number of young people participating in positive activities 
• Take more than 1,000 children out of child poverty 
• Increase the proportion of students completing entry level 1 ESOL courses 

by 8% 
• Support an environment for a thriving third sector with an increased 

proportion of local voluntary and community organisations recognising this 
support 

 
 
A Safe and Supportive Community 
 
Priority 4.1: Empower older and vulnerable people and 
support families 
 
Key elements which support this priority include the provision of responsive and 
appropriate services for adults which promote independence, choice and 
control, security and community and which prevent and reduce 
homelessness by helping more people into settled homes and employment. 
Also central to this priority is the protection of children and vulnerable adults 
from harm and neglect as well as continuing improvements to support for 
children and young people with disabilities and their families. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 

Page 131



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 9 

50. Implement the Homelessness Strategy to further reduce the incidence of 
homelessness in the borough and improve support to individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness 
51. Improve support and information for carers across the whole of the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership 
52. Deliver the Transforming Social Care programme putting people who use 
services in control of their own care  
53. Deliver fully integrated service provision across health and social care 
54. Deliver fully integrated commissioning across health and social care 
55. Further strengthen arrangements across the Council and the Partnership to 
protect vulnerable adults from abuse, harm and neglect  
56. Deliver priority actions in the CYPP to ensure that children and young 
people are protected from harm and feel safe and confident in their area 
57. Deliver a range of targeted programmes of improvement to private sector 
housing stock that support vulnerable households to live independently, safely, 
securely and free from fuel poverty 
58. Implement the actions in our Children and Young People’s Plan to improve 
access to care for children with disabilities through a coordinated, multi-agency 
approach  
 
Priority 4.2: Tackle and prevent crime 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is tackling anti-social behaviour 
and crime 
 
Objectives which underpin this priority include both a reduction of crime and a 
reduction in the fear of crime. Prevention is also a key element of this priority 
and is reflected in our commitment to reduce re-offending with all who 
become involved with the criminal justice system – an objective that is 
complimented by the Council’s intention to make crime prevention a key 
element of all service planning 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
59. Further develop more community-oriented and localised services and 
integrate new models of enforcement to improve public confidence in the 
Council and Police response to anti-social behaviour and crime  
60. Develop our Reducing Re-offending Programme 
61. Improve the provision of positive diversionary activities, restorative justice 
and information, advice and guidance to reduce youth offending  
62. Develop a drug intervention and enforcement strategy 
 
Priority 4.3: Focus on early intervention 
 
Objectives associated with early intervention include a focus on improving 
parental engagement and support as well as the use of joined-up 
approaches to address links between health, drugs, alcohol, education, 
skills, employment, accommodation, mental health, debt and benefits 
across all age groups. There is also a commitment under this priority to tackle 
the causes of crime by working with ‘at-risk’ groups, to nip problems in 
the bud 
 

Page 132



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 10 

Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
63. Improve access to preventative services for vulnerable adults, reducing use 
of institutional care and reliance on care managed services  
64. Deliver the priority actions identified in our CYPP to support parents and 
families to provide a safe environment where children and young people thrive 
and achieve their full potential, with a continued focus on early intervention by 
putting families at risk at the centre of service planning and delivery 
65. Develop Children’s Centres to increase the engagement of families with 
children under the age of three so that more families are involved in activities 
that support their child’s development  
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Reduce the number of serious violent and acquisitive crimes in the borough 
• Reduce the proportion of local people who think drug use or drug dealing is 

a problem by 8% 
• Increase the number of residents who believe that the Police and council are 

dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour 
• Cut reoffending by adults under probation supervision and reoffending by 

young people 
• Reduce the rate of arson 
• Increase the proportion of carers who are receiving a specific carer’s 

service, or advice and information by 15% 
• Increase the number of drug users in effective treatment 
• Prevent more than 2,100 households becoming homeless 
 
 
A Healthy Community 
 
Priority 5.1: Reduce differences in people’s health and 
promote healthy lifestyles 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership is committed to four key objectives which 
support this priority. These include: reducing the use of tobacco; reducing 
rates of diabetes, high blood pressure and cholesterol; slowing down the 
increase in obesity and improving sexual health 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
66. Strengthen the community leadership role of health scrutiny to tackle local 
health inequalities  
67. Implement the Leisure Centre Strategy to increase leisure centre use and 
promote healthy lifestyle activities 
68. Deliver a targeted programme to increase the number of people taking 
regular physical activity 
69. Agree Olympic sports engagement programme for local residents 
70. Implement an innovative new project, ASPIRE, which targets the most 
vulnerable young women, at risk of becoming pregnant, with individual support  
71. Support children and families with identified weight management needs to 
manage their weight 

Page 133



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 11 

 
Priority 5.2: Support mental health services to improve 
mental health  
 
The objectives laid out in the Community Plan that support this priority include 
the provision of high-quality accessible services as well as integrated 
planning and treatment for patients with multiple health needs. These 
objectives are complimented by a strong commitment to combat 
discrimination against individuals and groups with mental health 
problems 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these 
objectives: 
72. Develop safe and seamless mental health services that empower users and 
promote recovery and citizenship   
73. Increase engagement with mental health services by under represented 
groups 
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Further reduce the proportion of under 18s getting pregnant 
• Slow down the increase in childhood obesity – to ensure that less than a 

quarter of primary age children are obese 
• Increase adult participation in sport  
• Increase life expectancy 

Page 134



The Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12                         Year 1 Summary 2009/10 12 

How do I contribute to the Strategic Plan? 
 
This booklet summarises the priorities, key objectives and activities set out in 
the 
Council’s Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan is the Council’s core planning 
document, and feeds into service and team plans, right through to individual 
targets for staff.  
 
This is a two-way process, with staff views feeding back up to help shape future 
plans. In this way, the work of every member of staff helps the Council to 
achieve the aims and objectives of the Strategic Plan. 
 
The diagram below shows the links between these plans. 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY PLAN 
A strategic document prepared in partnership with local agencies and residents. 

THE COUNCIL'S STRATEGIC PLAN 
The Council's corporate aims, objectives and key initiatives to achieve them, along with an 

analysis of performance against targets and future targets. 
 
 

SERVICE AND RESOURCE PLANS  
Linking operational aims and objectives for services/directorates to resource use.   

Purpose 
 
Strategic 

Focus 
 

Broad 

  

Specific 

TYPE OF PLAN 

TEAM PLANS 
Operational objectives and initiatives for teams working within services. 

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
Set out performance objectives and training and development needs for individual staff. 

Operational 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 15th JULY 2009 
 

APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

REPORT OF MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
 
 
Summary  
 
1. This report requests the Council to consider appointing one of the officers of the 

authority as Interim Chief Executive (Head of the Paid Service), as required by 
section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act, 1989. 

 
Recommendation 
 
2. The Council is recommended to appoint Dr Kevan Collins, currently Director of 

Children’s Services, as Interim Chief Executive (Head of the Paid Service) from 1 
August 2009 until a permanent appointment is made. 
 

Background 
 
3. As Members will be aware the Chief Executive will be leaving the authority’s 

service on 31 July 2009.  The Deputy Chief Executive is Kevan Collins who is 
also the Director of Children’s Services.  The post of Deputy is intended to cover 
for short periods when the Chief Executive is on annual leave.  The provisions of 
Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act, 1989 require every relevant 
authority to “designate one of their officers as head of the paid service”. The 
Chief Executive is currently the Head of the Paid Service.  

 
4. There will be a recruitment process over the next few months to fill the post of 

Chief Executive.  However, both the Director of Children’s Services post and the 
Chief Executive post are significant in terms of workload and it is not possible for 
dual roles to continue for several months.  It is therefore proposed that the 
Deputy Chief Executive is appointed as Interim Chief Executive (Head of Paid 
Service) and that acting up arrangements will cover the Director of Children’s 
Service. 

 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 137



Comments of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 
5.  The statutory duty to designate a Head of Paid Service is referred to in 

paragraph 3 above. Additionally Article 12 of the Council’s Constitution at 
paragraph 12.01 (c) (page 30) provides that the Council has designated the 
officer holding the post of Chief Executive to be Head of the Paid Service. 

 
 
Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
6. All proposals set out within the report can be managed within existing budgets. 

Page 138



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 15TH JULY 2009 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER SPECIAL 
URGENCY PROVISIONS 

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL FOR 
INFORMATION 

 

 

 
 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Authority’s Constitution (Part 4.2, Access to Information Procedure 

Rules) provides that the Leader shall submit a quarterly report as 
necessary to the Council on any Executive (Cabinet) decisions taken 
during the preceding three months under the Special Urgency 
provisions at Access to Information Rule 19.1. 

 
1.2 Rule 19.1 applies to key decisions where prior notice of the decision 

has not been included in the Forward Plan but it is nevertheless 
necessary for reasons of urgency to take the decision at the Cabinet 
meeting, and where it has additionally not been possible to provide 
notice of the decision in accordance with the General Exception 
provisions in Access to Information Rule 18. 

 
1.3 During the period 8th April 2009 to 7th July 2009, four decisions were 

taken by the Executive (Cabinet) under the Special Urgency provisions 
at Access to Information Rule 19.1.  A brief summary of the matters in 
respect of which each of these decisions was made is included overleaf 
for information. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the report be noted.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.2

Page 139



EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER SPECIAL URGENCY 
PROVISIONS – 8th APRIL to 7th JULY 2009. 
 
 
1. Housing Revenue Account Amended Rent Setting Report (CAB 

145/089) – Cabinet meeting 8th April 2009, agenda item 11.1  
 
The Cabinet took a number of decisions associated with a reduction in the 
proposed level of rent increases to apply from April 2009 and consequent 
amendments to the 2009/10 Housing Revenue Account Budget, following 
guidance from the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) and the offer of additional HRA subsidy as a consequence of the 
unprecedented global downturn in the economy.   
 
The DCLG proposals were published on 26th March 2009 and authorities were 
invited to bid for additional subsidy, in order to reduce rent increases to 3.1% 
or less, by Friday 24th April, 2009.   Cabinet consideration of the Minister of 
State’s offer was therefore urgently required in order satisfy this requirement.    
 
 
2. Davenant Centre (CAB 007/090) – Cabinet meeting 10th June 2009, 

agenda item 19.1 (exempt from publication) 
 
The Cabinet took decisions in relation to the Davenant Centre Company, an 
independent charitable company which owns the Davenant Centre building in 
Whitechapel.  The objects of the Davenant Centre are to promote the benefit 
of those living or working in Tower Hamlets, and to use the building for such 
ends, the advancement of education and work training, recreation, and advice 
and assistance.   
 
The report on this matter was exempt from publication in accordance with 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as it 
contained information relating to the financial affairs of the Davenant Centre 
Company and the trustees of the Davenant Centre, and the Cabinet 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption on the 
information outweighed the public interest in disclosing it. 
 
 
3. Five Borough Olympic Legacy Multi Area Agreement (CAB 

015/090) – Cabinet meeting 1st July 2009, agenda item 11.1 
 
The Cabinet authorised the Corporate Director, Development and Renewal, 
after consultation with relevant Lead Members and officers, to negotiate and 
agree with the London Boroughs of Newham, Hackney, Greenwich and 
Waltham Forest the detailed content of the proposed 5 Borough Olympic 
Legacy Multi Area Agreement for submission to Central Government; and to 
report back to Cabinet on the final content of the Multi Area Agreement  once 
approved by CLG. 
 

Page 140



The report was unavailable for public inspection within the timescales set out 
in the constitution because negotiations between the 5 Olympic Host 
Boroughs and Central Government over the principles and detailed content of 
the multi area agreement did not conclude until 24th June 2009.   However 
with the government timetable for sign off being before the 21st July 2009 the 
only available Cabinet to provide authority for the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets to participate within the Multi Area Agreement (MAA) was 1st July 
2009.   
 
The MAA would provide freedoms and flexibilities to the Olympic Host 
Boroughs which would enhance and support the delivery of services under the 
Great Place to Live and Prosperous Communities Community Plan themes.   
Therefore a decision in respect of the recommendations contained in the Five 
Borough Olympic Legacy Multi Area Agreement Report could not reasonably 
be deferred as deferral would prejudice the Council’s and the public interests.   
 
 
4. Authorisation of Decisions by Common Housing Register 

Partners to make allocation decisions under Part VI of the 
Housing Act 1996 (CAB 016/090) – Cabinet meeting 1st July 2009, 
agenda item 11.2 

 
The Cabinet agreed to formally delegate the Authority’s functions under Part 6 
of the Housing Act 1996 to its Registered Social Landlord (RSL) partners 
under the Council’s Common Housing Register (CHR).  The report also 
sought Cabinet’s approval for ratification of previous decisions taken by RSL 
partners on behalf of the Authority under the CHR.  These measures were 
necessary to regularise the operation of the CHR and decisions taken in 
accordance with it. 
 
The issues which were the subject of the report were first raised in a Judicial 
Review claim against the Authority on 20th May 2009.  The Council 
investigated whether there had been any formal delegation to Registered 
Social Landlord partners and took advice.  The recommendations in the report 
reflected the advice obtained and needed to be agreed before the Judicial 
Review claim was listed for further hearing on 3rd July 2009.   Deferral would 
prejudice the Council’s and the public interests and therefore consideration of 
the report was required as a matter of urgency. 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY 15th JULY 2009 
 

MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Thirteen motions have been submitted by Members of the Council under 

Council Procedure Rule 13 for the Council meeting on Wednesday 15th July 
2009. 

 
2. In accordance with the protocol agreed by the Council on 21st May 2008, the 

order in which the motions are listed is by turns, one from each group, 
continuing in rotation until all motions submitted are included.  The rotation 
starts with any group(s) not reached at the previous meeting. 

 
3. Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or 

which affect the Borough.  A motion may not be moved which is substantially 
the same as a motion which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the 
previous six months unless notice of motion is given signed by at least twenty 
Members.  

 
4. There is no specific duration set for this agenda item and consideration of the 

attached motions may continue until the time limit for the meeting is reached.  
The guillotine procedure at Council Procedure Rule 9.2 does not apply to 
motions on notice and any of the attached motions which have not been put to 
the vote when the time limit for the meeting is reached will be deemed to have 
fallen.  A motion which is not put to the vote at the current meeting may be 
resubmitted for the next meeting but is not automatically carried forward.   

  
 
 
MOTIONS 
 
Set out overleaf are the motions that have been submitted. 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 143



 
11.1 Motion submitted by Councillor Tim Archer regarding local bin 
 taxes/Waste Incentive Pilot Schemes  
 
Proposed: Councillor Tim Archer 
Seconded: Councillor Peter Golds 
 
This Council notes that: 
 
1.  The Government is moving ahead with plans to introduce new local bin 

taxes, through so-called ‘waste incentive pilot schemes’, which will 
subsequently be rolled out to two in three homes according to Whitehall 
estimates. 

 
2.  Even the Government’s own optimistic Impact Assessment admits that the 

poorest families will pay £72.31 a year more, and the Treasury has stated 
the new ‘waste incentives’ are officially classified as a tax. 

 
3.  Bin taxes will lead to a surge in fly-tipping and backyard burning, and in the 

Republic of Ireland, bin taxes have led to 4 in 10 households now burning 
their rubbish, and such burning of now causes 73% of all dioxin emissions. 

 
4.  The Government is not properly compensating local authorities for the new 

burdens imposed through landfill taxes and the Landfill Allowance Trading 
Scheme, increasing pressure on council tax.  

 
This Council resolves to: 
 
1.  Oppose Government plans for new bin taxes. 
 
2.  Write to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs 

rejecting the Government’s invitation to participate in these new charges for 
the collection of household waste. 

 
3.  Call on the Secretary of State to ensure local authorities are properly 

compensated for new burdens imposed by central government, instead of 
introducing new taxes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



11.2 Motion submitted by Councillor Marc Francis regarding Strangers into 
Citizens campaign 

 
Proposed:  Councillor Marc Francis 
Seconded: Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
  
This Council notes: 
 
That the government is committed to tightening UK border controls and introducing 
new monitoring and assessment systems into the immigration process; 
  
That the Home Office estimates that there are currently around 500,000 irregular 
migrants living and working in Britain, around 400,000 of them in London; 
  
The contribution of irregular migrants to the national and regional economy; 
 
That in the current economic crisis, irregular migrants are more vulnerable than ever 
to exploitation and abuse; 
  
That the “strangers into citizens” campaign, orchestrated by London Citizens, has 
cross-party support from Councils, MPs and both the current and former Mayors of 
London.  
 
This Council resolves: 
 
To publicly support London Citizen’s “Strangers into Citizens” campaign for the one-
off regularization of long-term irregular migrants; 
 
To encourage other Local Authorities to do so; 
 
To urge the Government to adopt the Strangers into Citizens proposal for an earned 
right of residence subject to and in accordance with the tests applied to other 
migrants.  
 
 
 
11.3 Motion submitted by Councillor Stephanie Eaton regarding future 

provision of a Multi-Faith Burial Ground 
 
 
Proposed:  Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Seconded: Councillor Azizur Rahman Khan 
  
This Council notes: 
  
1. All Councils are required to produce a Local Development Framework and in 

Tower Hamlets that will comprise a series of Development Plan Documents 
including a Core Strategy and a Site Allocations document.  

 

Page 145



2. Tower Hamlets Council has recently undertaken consultation on the second 
phase of the Local Development Framework - Core Strategy.  The 
consultation document ‘Core Strategy - Options and Alternatives for Places’ 
looked at how growth and change will affect the different places in Tower 
Hamlets. 

 
3.  The places plan for LAPs 5 and 6 identifies as one of the long term objectives 

(5-15 years) the plan "to regenerate the Bow Common Gasworks site as a 
place for family housing " 

  
This Council further notes: 
  
1.  The longstanding wishes of local people for a new multi-faith burial facility in 

the Borough 
 
2.  The difficulty of finding suitable sites for a multi-faith burial facility in the 

Borough 
  
This Council proposes: 
  
1.  That the Local Development Framework Core Strategy sets out clear criteria 

for identifying appropriate locations for a future multi-faith burial facility  
 
2.  That the Local Development Framework Core Strategy does not identify the 

Bow Common Gasworks site solely as a place for family housing 
 
3.  That the Site Allocations Development Plan Document explores all 

appropriate options for a future multi-faith burial facility within the borough for 
example Bow Common Gasworks. 

  
 
 
11.4 Motion submitted by Councillor Abjol Miah regarding Education cuts 
 
Proposed:  Councillor Abjol Miah 
Seconded: Councillor Dulal Uddin 
  
This Council notes that: 
 
1) 11,000 students places and hundreds of jobs are in jeopardy at London 
Metropolitan University due to alleged past financial mismanagement 
 
2) London Metropolitan has attracted many students from less educationally 
advantaged backgrounds 
 
3) the loss of student places at London Met will seriously and adversely impact on 
educational opportunities for young people in Tower Hamlets 
 
4) the Government has washed its hands of any responsibility in this disaster and is 
allowing these swingeing cuts to go ahead. 

Page 146



This Council notes that: 
 
1) Tower Hamlets College is seeing cuts which will lose some 1,000 classes and 
make some 40 lecturers redundant 
 
2) many of the classes that are to be lost are English for Speakers of Other 
Languages (ESOL) 
 
3) many of the outreach projects involving ESOL are threatened with closure 
 
4) the loss of these classes will seriously adversely impact on members of the BME 
community in Tower Hamlets and within that community women 
 
This Council notes that: 
 
1) teachers at St Paul’s Way Community School are being forced to reapply for their 
jobs 
 
2) the numbers of teaching staff are to be reduced through redundancy 
 
3) support for pupils with Special Educational Needs is being reduced 
 
4) the curriculum is being narrowed 
 
This Council believes that these attacks on secondary, further and higher education 
in the borough are a disaster and must be stopped immediately 
 
This Council supports:  
 
1) the campaigns against these cuts being waged by the trade unions, parents and 
students 
 
2) any industrial action that staff decide is appropriate to preserve jobs and save 
educational opportunity in Tower Hamlets 
 
This Council believes the Council Leader and Lead Members should make urgent 
representations to the Government to find the funding necessary to stop the cuts at 
London Met, Tower Hamlets College and St Paul’s Way Community School. 
 
 
11.5 Motion submitted by Councillor Ahmed Hussain regarding Sex and 

Relationship Education (SRE) in the Borough 
 
Proposed:  Councillor Ahmed Hussain 
Seconded: Councillor Tim Archer 
  
The Government, under its Education Strategy, proposes to introduce Sex and 
Relationship Education (SRE) to students as young as five years old. 
 

Page 147



There are serious concerns amongst parents within Tower Hamlets regarding this 
proposal and the Council resolves that the final decision should be that of the parent 
of primary age children as to whether the child receives SRE.  
 
 
 

11.6 Motion submitted by Councillor Ohid Ahmed regarding opposing Tory 
cuts 

 
Proposed:  Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Seconded: Councillor Joshua Peck 
  
This Council notes; 
 
That  Tory Shadow Chancellor George Osbourne has proposed sweeping 10% cuts 
to all government services. 
 
That London Mayor, Boris Johnson, strongly opposes the government’s plans to 
introduce a new tax bracket for the super rich. 
 
That flagship Tory borough Hammersmith and Fulham has been in secret talks with 
property developers to demolish residents’ homes. 
 
That while it is clear that spending needs to be monitored closely in these difficult 
times, such a broad brush approach would inevitably led to hardship for the most 
vulnerable in society. 
 
That in Tower Hamlets, the levels of poverty, unemployment and deprivation mean 
that the impact of such cuts would be even worse. 
 
This Council resolves: 
 
To fight any cuts to frontline services. 
 
To ensure that the load of this current economic crisis is spread as fairly as possible. 
 
To increase the number of social rented and affordable homes in the borough. 
  
 
 
11.7 Motion submitted by Councillor Abdul Matin regarding eliminating 

excessive punishment for minor parking offences  
 
Proposed:  Councillor Abdul Matin 
Seconded: Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
  
This Council notes: 
 

1. That parking controls are necessary to ensure the availability of parking for 
entitled residents and their visitors, business people, traders and others; 

Page 148



2. That parking management and the promotion of public transport is essential to 
control traffic flow, avoid climate change and improve air quality; 

3. That many residents value the use of a car, and that vehicle use is often 
essential for e.g. businesses, families, and to enable people with disabilities to 
participate in all aspects of community life; 

 
This Council believes: 
 

1. That breaches of parking regulations should be enforced fairly and rigorously; 
2. That the penalty charge for a breach of a parking regulations is a necessary 

deterrent to ensure parking space is available to those who need it and are 
entitled to use it; 

3. That where a vehicle is parked dangerously, or in a disabled bay or other area 
that blocks access for a particular purpose, immediate action to remove a 
vehicle is necessary and reasonable; 

4. That the punishment for a breach of a non-serious parking offence (one that 
attracts a lower penalty charge notice) initially should be a penalty charge 
notice and no other action; 

5. That where a lower penalty charge notice has been issued but a vehicle is 
parked safely, immediate action should not be taken to clamp that vehicle or 
remove that vehicle to the pound; 

6. That where a lower penalty charge notice has been issued but the vehicle is 
parked safely, there should be a minimum period of 6 hours between the 
issue of the penalty charge notice and any clamping of the vehicle or the 
removal of a vehicle parked safely to enable the owner of that vehicle to 
remove the vehicle to a location where it is not in breach of any parking 
regulations; 

7. That where a safely parked vehicle is in breach of a minor parking regulation 
the rapid removal of the vehicle to the pound and the costs and inconvenience 
incurred by the owner of the vehicle amounts to disproportionate ‘punishment’. 

This Council directs:  
 

1. Officers to undertake a review of the parking enforcement policy and engage 
in consultation with residents with the intention of eliminating cases where a 
minor breach of a parking regulation (which currently would attract a penalty 
charge notice £120 reduced to £60 if paid within 14 days) results in a payment 
by the resident of this £60 penalty charge plus £200 fee for release of the 
vehicle from the pound; 

2. Officers to provide a report to Cabinet by September 2009 which recommends 
measures to eliminate disproportionate and excessive ‘punishment’ in relation 
to penalties for parking offences. 

 
 
 
 

Page 149



11.8 Motion submitted by Councillor Harun Miah regarding Overcrowding 
Strategy 

 
Proposed: Councillor Harun Miah 
Seconded: Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
A) This Council notes: 
 
1) East End Life reported on 11th May “One of the key elements of the [housing] 
strategy is an urgent £20 million package of investment designed to help an extra 
500 families escape overcrowded conditions”.  
 
2) This claim was untrue. 
 
3) Council Officers have confirmed that the £20 million is in fact £19.4 million and 
that this is expected to purchase 100 three bedroom family homes helping a 
maximum 200 families move out of overcrowding over a three year period. 
 
4) Even this plan to purchase 100 homes is over-optimistic given the current market 
price for ex-council three bedroom properties in the borough and reasonable 
expectations about future price movements in the housing market. 
 
5) that the parking free requirements which attach to many new build projects in the 
borough effectively preclude many overcrowded families from bidding for these 
properties because of their dependency on large family cars for economical 
travelling. 
 
6) that the “affordable” housing strategy has singularly failed to make housing 
affordable to those languishing on the waiting list as the recent committee review of 
this strategy chaired by Councillor Waiseul Islam made abundantly clear. 
 
B) This Council deplores the inaccurate reporting of the housing strategy which was 
put on the front page of East End Life and then distributed to every household in 
Tower Hamlets as raising false expectations for the thousands of families living in 
overcrowded conditions in Tower Hamlets 
 
C) This Council believes  
 
1) an investigation should be undertaken by relevant authorities as to how a paper 
paid for out of council taxpayers’ money and which should only be providing 
essential and impartial information to the residents of Tower Hamlets came to 
present an untrue picture of the Council’s housing strategy. 
 
2) that the Council’s housing strategy, even in the exaggerated terms it has been 
presented, remains woefully inadequate in addressing the overcrowding problem in 
Tower Hamlets which stands at more than 7,000 families on the Council’s restricted 
definition of overcrowding and which was estimated by Shelter to include 12,000 
families. 
 

Page 150



3) that only a crash programme of council house building can seriously address the 
problem of overcrowding in this borough in the short to medium term. 
 
D) This Council welcomes the motion laid before parliament by George Galloway MP 
calling on the Government to pass legislation to stop council’s using taxpayers’ 
money to finance weekly newspapers which put out propaganda to try and benefit 
the ruling group on the Council. 
 
 
 
11.9 Motion submitted by Councillor Alex Heslop regarding support for the 
 co-operative and social enterprise sector 
 
Proposed: Councillor Alex Heslop 
Seconded: Councillor Denise Jones 
 
This Council recognises that there is a diverse and healthy co-operative sector in 
Tower Hamlets with a combined turnover of approximately £50 million and also 
appreciates the important role that co-operatives and other social enterprises can 
play in community and economic regeneration initiatives.  Although there are many 
successful co-operative enterprises operating in Tower Hamlets such as Tower 
Hamlets Community Credit Union, Tower Hamlets CDA and Greenwich Leisure 
(effectively a workers co-op), as well as several food co-ops and housing co-
operatives, there is not a single Council officer with a specific remit or indeed 
expertise for working with the co-operative & social enterprise sectors. 
 
This Council resolves to do the following: 
 

• Allocate responsibility for supporting the co-operative & social enterprise 
sectors to the Lead Member for Regeneration as well as a designated Council 
officer who will promote and support new mutual models for the provision of 
community services, including housing, pre-school childcare, residential and 
home care, recycling and leisure.  Made possible through service reviews, 
externalising, or re-contracting services and procurement procedures. 

 
• Organise an annual event to celebrate International Co-operatives Day in 

partnership with the local Co-operative Movement; this could also involve the 
Tower Hamlets Partnership and its Creating and Sharing Prosperity 
Community Plan Action Group. 

 
• Develop procurement strategies that make a direct link between the 

Community Plan and other strategic objectives and contract specifications 
ensuring that community benefits can be fully integrated into the procurement 
process. 

 
• Work with the Co-operative Sector and London Development Agency to 

improve access to finance and support for socially and mutually owned 
businesses. 

 

Page 151



• Work with staff and unions on a partnership basis in the creation of new 
cooperative services 

 
 
11.10 Motion submitted by Councillor Dulal Uddin regarding Robin Hood  
          Gardens  
 
Proposed: Councillor Dulal Uddin 
Seconded: Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
A) This Council notes with regard to Robin Hood Gardens: 
 
1) the continued concern and worry of the residents of their future and the future of 
the estate. 
 
2) the desire of residents to retain their secure tenancies and to remain with the 
council. 
 
3) the desire of residents to have any replacement homes directly built by the 
Council and for the estate not to be transferred to a Registered Social Landlord. 
 
4) continued concern of residents over the delays in giving residents decant status. 
 
5) continued concern over how other adult members of households who are not 
tenants will be treated in the decant. 
 
6) continued concern over the lack of a written guarantee of the right to return to the 
estate if it is demolished. 
 
7) continued concern over what will happen if residents and Regeneration Partners 
cannot agree the Charter. 
 
B) This Council believes: 
 
1) the redevelopment of Robin Hood Gardens should be carried out directly by the 
Council and that the Council should approach the Government to seek necessary 
permissions and support financially and in other respects to do this. 
 
2) residents should retain their secure tenancies, be guaranteed like for like decant 
and like for like right of return to the estate when developments has been completed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 152



11.11 Motion submitted by Councillor Mamun Rashid regarding Tipaimukh 
Dam 
 
Proposed: Councillor Mamun Rashid 
Seconded:  Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
A) This Council notes that: 
 
1) the Indian government is proceeding with the construction of the Tipaimukh dam 
just one kilometre from the Bangladesh border. 
 
2) this dam threatens to deprive much of the Sylhet region of Bangladesh of 
essential water and threatens the welfare and the livelihoods of tens of millions of 
people in Bangladesh. 
 
3) this dam is being built on an esrthquake fault line and that an earthquake in the 
area could breach the dam and flood a significant part of Bangladesh with potentially 
large loss of life. 
 
4) the dam is almost certainly being constructed in defiance of international law. 
 
5) many residents of Tower Hamlets have friends and family living in the threatened 
part of Sylhet, and have historical connections to this part of Bangladesh where their 
ancestors are buried and some have property there. 
 
6) there is widespread concern amongst some Tower Hamlets residents registered 
by large meetings that have been held on the issue at the London Muslim Centre 
and elsewhere. 
 
7) George Galloway MP has laid a motion before parliament calling on the Indian 
government not to proceed with the construction of the dam until adequate 
reassurances on the matters of concern both to citizens of Bangladesh but also 
Manapur in India have been provided and that the project should be abandoned if 
those assurances are not forthcoming. 
 
B) This Council believes that the Council Leader and the Cabinet should add their 
voices to those of many others in expressing their opposition to the construction of 
this dam and should write to the Indian government expressing the concerns of 
many residents in Tower Hamlets about the Tipaimukh Dam. 
 
 
11.12 Motion submitted by Councillor Fozol Miah regarding Crossrail 
 
Proposed: Councillor Fozol Miah 
Seconded: Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
A) This Council notes: 
 
1) there is a £29billion shortfall in the Government’s transport budget. 
 

Page 153



2) that Crossrail will cost at least £16billion and is now in serious jeopardy of being 
dumped or at least delayed. 
 
3) that serious changes were made to the Crossrail digging strategy not because of 
the representations of this Council but because of a magnificent campaign against 
the digging and potential disruption in Tower Hamlets  by many community groups 
and campaigners of which Khoodeelaar was a very important part. 
 
4) that nonetheless there is still a serious threat to Stepping Stones farm and the 
residents of Stepney from Crossrail. 
 
5) that the advantage to residents in Tower Hamlets from Crossrail is minimal. 
 
B) This Council believes the money being spent on Crossrail should be subject to 
urgent review to assess whether it could be better spent elsewhere in the transport 
system now that there is such extreme pressure on transport investment. 
 
 
 
11.13 Motion submitted by Councillor Abdul Munim regarding Chief    
           Executive’s Resignation  
 
Proposed: Councillor Abdul Munim 
Seconded: Councillor Abjol Miah 
 
A) This Council notes that: 
 
1) The Chief Executive has resigned from his post. 
 
2) this brings to an end a lengthy period of uncertainty in which there was much 
rumour but all that any of us were officially told was that the Chief Executive was 
suddenly “on leave”. 
 
3) the events leading up to the Chief Executive’s decision to resign were precipitated 
by the Leader of the Council without consultation with the leader of the other parties 
represented in the Council. 
 
4) The Chief Executive’s precipitate departure may cost the council taxpayers a large 
sum of money in severance pay. 
 
5) the “explanation” for his departure as being the need for a “fresh approach” to 
important policy areas the Council is responsible for. 
 
B) This Council deplores the process which led to the Chief Executive’s resignation 
and the substantial costs to the taxpayer that have been incurred as a result. 
 
C) This Council believes that: 
 
1) The Chief Executive did the job he was appointed to two and a half years ago to 
the best of his ability and effectively. 

Page 154



 
2) a fresh approach is needed, but that this did not need a change of Chief 
Executive. 
 
3) the fresh approach we need is a fundamental change from the failed New Labour 
policies of the past. 
 
4) such a fresh approach will only occur once New Labour are no longer in a majority 
on this Council. 
 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES
	5 TO RECEIVE ANY DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS
	6 TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
	7 TO RECEIVE QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
	8.1 Report of the Cabinet of 6th May 2009: Joint Drinking Control Zone with LB Hackney for Arnold Circus and Shoreditch
	Item 8.1 Appx A DCZ Cabinet report

	8.2 Report of the Cabinet of 10th June 2009:  Strategic Plan 2009/10 - 2011/12:  Year 1 Action Plan and Outline Plan
	Item 8.2 Appx A Strategic Plan Cabinet report
	Item 8.2 Appx A1
	Item 8.2 Appx A2

	10.1 Appointment of Interim Chief Executive
	10.2 Executive Decisions taken under Special Urgency Provisions
	11 TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

